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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014
OR

[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 001-35667

AMBARELLA, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Cayman Islands 98-045962¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
3101 Jay Stree
Santa Clara, California 95054
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(408) 734-8888
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registere
Ordinary Share, $0.00045 Par Value Per Shar NASDAQ Global Market
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) diie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a wkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405dB#turities Act. YESO NO
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ornt®®ecl5(d) of the Act. YESO NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €8 filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the preceding 12 months
and (2) has been subject to such filing requiremémtthe past 90 days. YE&I NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ésnitted electronically and posted on its corpokilb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and posted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.40thisf chapter) during the preceding 12 monthsdostich shorter period that the registrant wasireduo submit and post such
files). YES NO O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K i contained herein, and will not be contained heltest of the registrant’s
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statents incorporated by reference in Part 11l of #iism 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlesge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se the definitions of “large

accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smalteporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchaige
Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel

Non-accelerated file O Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the ActyES O NO

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmgardinary shares held by non-affiliates of Begistrant as of July 31, 2013, was approximat8iAdmillion based upon the
closing price reported for such date on the NASD®IQbal Market. For purposes of this disclosurejrard shares held by persons known to the Registb@ased on information provided
by such persons and/or the most recent scheduls flleé@ by such persons) to beneficially own mdrant 5% of the Registrant’s ordinary shares anchargtishares held by officers and
directors of the Registrant have been excludedusecauch persons may be deemed to be affiliatés d€termination is not necessarily a conclusivert@ination for other purposes.

Number of ordinary shares, $0.00045 par value tantng as of January 31, 2014: 28,748,513 shares.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain information is incorporated into Part Ifltbis report by reference to the Proxy Statementtfe Registrant’s annual meeting of shareholtteb® held on or about June 4, 2014
to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsinispursuant to Regulation 14A not later than d&gs after the end of the fiscal year covered syRbrm 10-K.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report on Form 10-K contains forwdabking statements within the meaning of Sectioh @the Securities Act and Section 21|
the Exchange Act. The forward-looking statemergscantained principally in, but not limited to, teections titled “Business,” “Risk
Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Figal Condition and Results of Operations,” as wadlelsewhere in this Form
10-K. Forward-looking statements are identifiedthg use of the words “would,” “could,” “will,” “may,” “expect,” “believe,” “should,”
“anticipate,” “outlook,” “if,” “future,” “intend,”  “plan,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “target s,” “seek” or “continue” and similar
words and phrases, including the negatives of thesas, or other variations of these terms, thatale future events. Forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, infotioraconcerning our possible or assumed future lissaf operations, competitive position,
industry environment, potential growth opporturstend the effects of competition, our market opputy, our ability to develop new solutio
our future financial and operating performance,esahnd marketing strategy, investment strategytl@desults of our investments, research
and development, customer and supplier relatiorsshdpstomer demand, industry trends, our cash need<apital requirements, and
expectations about seasonality, taxes, and opagraipenses. These statements reflect our currewswvith respect to future events and our
potential financial performance and are subjectitiks and uncertainties that could cause our acteallts and financial position to diff
materially and adversely from what is projectedroplied in any forward-looking statements includedhis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
These factors include, but are not limited to, isks described under Item 1A of Part —*Risk fastbltem 7 of Part [—*Management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition aadults of operations,” elsewhere in this Annuap®® on Form 10-K and those discussed in
other documents we file with the SEC. You are oaatl not to place undue reliance on the forwardking statements, which speak only as of
the date of this Form 10-K. We have no obligatiamd(expressly disclaim any such obligation) to upda alter any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informatiootherwise except as otherwise required by séesriegulations.

” ” o« " ow ” o

For purposes of this Annual Report, the terms “Amsbia”,
consolidated subsidiaries.

(LT

the Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” refer t o Ambarella, Inc. and its
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading developer of semiconductor praegs®lutions for video that enable high-definitiam HD, video capture, sharing and
display. We combine our processor design capaslitiith our expertise in video and image processilyprithms and software to provide a
technology platform that is designed to be easijlable across multiple applications and enablelrapd efficient product development. Our
system-on-a-chip, or SoC, designs fully integral®\itleo processing, image processing, audio praogssd system functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qualiifferentiated functionality and low power congption.

The inherent flexibility of our technology platforemables us to deliver our solutions for numergyieations in multiple markets. In t
camera market, our platform enables the creatidrighf-quality video content in wearable sports carmeautomotive aftermarket cameras,
professional and consumer Internet Protocol, oséeurity cameras, telepresence cameras and canso@lr revenue growth over the last
three years has been driven by specialized vidddraage capture devices such as wearable sporesraayrautomotive aftermarket cameras
and IP security cameras. In the infrastructure etadur solutions efficiently manage IP video ti@fbroadcast encoding and transcoding and
IP video delivery applications.

We initially focused our technology platform on tihérastructure market, where we were able to difféiate our solutions for broadcast
customers based on high performance, low powenuopgon, transmission and storage efficiency andlksform factor. Leveraging these
same capabilities, we then designed hpginformance solutions for the camera market. Aesalt of the advantages of our solutions, we be
a leading provider of video processing solutionrscBimeras that capture both HD video and high-oéisal still images simultaneously. In
addition, we have released SoC solutions that coenbigh-resolution video and image capture capdslivith advanced networking,
connectivity and application processing functiotiedi.

We sell our solutions to leading original desigmurfacturers, or ODMs, and original equipment maauifi@rs, or OEMs, globally. We
refer to ODMs as our customers and OEMs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahixt otherwise requires. In the
camera market, our video processing solutions eseyded into products from leading OEMs includingglon Corporation, Axis
Communications AB, Dahua Technology Co., Ltd., OBam, Inc., GoPro Inc., Hikvision Digital Technolo@y., and Robert Bosch GmbH
and affiliated entities, who source our solutiomsf ODMs including Asia Optical Co. Inc., ChiconieEtronics Co., Ltd., DigiLife
Technologies Co., San Jet Technology Corp., and.8}tyt Digital Ltd. In the infrastructure marketyiosolutions are designed into products
from leading OEMs including Harmonic Inc., Motord¥obility, Inc. (owned by Arris Group, Inc.) and [Eéonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson, who
source our solutions from leading ODMs such asR&Xorp.

We employ a fabless manufacturing strategy andwamently shipping the majority of our solutionstive 65, 45 and 32 nanometer, or
nm, process nodes. We have a proven track recatdvaloping and delivering multiple solutions wfittst-pass silicon success. As of
January 31, 2014, we had 495 employees worldwigleroximately 72% of whom are in research and depraknt. Our headquarters are
located in Santa Clara, California, and we alsceh@gearch and development design centers andesagiavelopment offices in China, Japan
South Korea and Taiwan. For our fiscal years erddadiary 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recorded revei$157.6 million, $121.1 million
and $97.3 million, respectively, and net incom&25.7 million, $18.2 million and $9.8 million, remgtively. We have generated net income in
each quarter beginning with the first quarter stéil year 2010, and we have generated cash fromatapes in each of fiscal years starting fr
20009.

Ambarella was founded and incorporated in the Cayhslands in January 2004. Our principal execubiffices are located at 3101 Jay
Street, Santa Clara, California. Our website is waabarella.com. You can
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obtain copies of our Forms 10-K, 10-Q, 8-K, andeotfilings with the SEC, and all amendments to éfdags, free of charge, from our
website as soon as reasonably practicable followindiling of any of these reports with the SER alddition, you may read and copy any
material we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Publeféence Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, B0649. You may obtain information
on the operation of the Public Reference Room Hingathe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also raaista website that contains reports,
proxy, and information statements, and other inftion regarding registrants that file electronigalith the SEC at www.sec.gov.

Industry Background
Trends Impacting the Video Content Creation and Bibution Markets

Video traffic is growing at a significant rate. Awrding to the Cisco Visual Networking Index: Globabbile Data Traffic Forecast
Update, 2011-2016, mobile video will comprise 71&total mobile data traffic in 2016, a 90% compowamhual growth rate, or CAGR, from
2011 to 2016. The market trends that are fundartgmapacting video content creation and distrilbuatinclude the following:

* Increasing Number of Video Capture Devic. Traditionally, HD video has been captured usargé, power intensive and
expensive dedicated devices. Recent improvemei®inideo capture quality, device size and cosehalowed video capture
functionality to be incorporated into a broad ranfjdevices. Today, smartphones, tablets, weacasteeras, automotive
aftermarket cameras, IP security cameras and esepce cameras are increasingly including both idBovcapture and high-
quality still image capture. In the IP video seginafithe camera market, growth is being driven bgteamers’ demand for HD
imaging and networking capabilities to replace gginalog and standard-definition systems currargid for professional and
consumer security applications. In addition toghgmificant growth in the number of devices, newlagations are emerging for
video capture devices. Very small HD cameras, @aralg@e cameras, incorporating connectivity to thars phone or internet are
being developed for new applications such as lalwreement, personal security and social mediaomesregions of the world,
such as China, Russia, South Korea and Taiwangddpture devices are being added as aftermar&essaries to automobiles ¢
connected to on-board recording systems to captde® in the event of an incident, which assistsittsurance claims process
following an accident

» Growing Use-Generated Conter. Historically, most video content was created gdia companies, professional studios and |
broadcasters that possessed the equipment, egpamtisother resources necessary to produce anithalistsuch programming.
However, with the proliferation of low-cost digitaldeo devices and greater penetration of broadbandectivity, individuals are
playing a greater role in content creation andrithistion than ever before. Websites such as YouHueeFacebook have enablec
effective new channel to widely distribute, stongl @isplay video and other rich media. In additomser-created videos, other
user-generated content such as video conferennithgideo instant messaging through services provieApple, Inc., Google
Inc. and Skype, among others, are becoming inerglgspopular. According to the 2010 Cisco Repoltbgl video
communications traffic will increase over 550% fr@®l0 to 2015

» Broadband Penetration Enabling the Proliferation dhe Video Clouc. The adoption of high-speed broadband and the
proliferation of connected devices such as smartphotablets, laptops, desktop computers and ctatheglevisions have allowed
consumers to more easily download and share IRdadeessed upon demand through the video cloudvifiee cloud has led to
new business models based on personal contenswstheaming video provided by services like Yol ukdditionally, consume
are leveraging the video cloud for security byizitilg an IP camera and cloud infrastructure to Wéitee HD video streaming to
any web connected device. This video cloud apptinatas enabled intelligent IP surveillance systéms detect activity and then
stream encrypted HD video through secure servetskemt end user:
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Advancements in Display Technolow. The increasing proliferation of HD displays ifetgsion and in mobile connected devices
such as laptops, smartphones and tablets is aatteteHD video content growth. This trend highligtite new paradigm of
escalating consumer expectations of video quaitgh that video is comparable to high-resolutidhistages, which drove the
transition from standard definition to HD, and wdlive the transition to Ultra HigBefinition, or UHD. UHD is commonly referre
to as 4K video, which supports up to 4096x2160 Ipiper frame, more than four times greater resmhuthan the current Full HD
standard, which supports up to 1920x1080 pixeldraene.

Requirement for Efficient Video Compressic. HD video is increasingly a requirement for consuwideo cameras, IP security
cameras and for the broadcast of television prograrhether via cable, satellite or IP networks. dinpressed HD video requires
massive amounts of digital data to represent ttessitating the need for H.264 video compressiohnelogy to reduce data rates
for storage or for transmission of video over natgowith limited bandwidth. In broadcast televisidime upgrade of networks to
new High Efficiency Video Coding, or HEVC, videornpression technology will support the transitiorcohsumers to 4K video.
In consumer cameras, the efficiency of the encoblama significant impact on video quality, recogdiime and battery life. In IP
security cameras, encoding efficiency is imporfantealizing the highest image quality possibleobandwidth-limited networks,
and for minimizing the costs of cloud-based storafgédeo content. Additionally, the ability to actly adapt the encoding bit-rate
based on changing network bandwidth availabiligvites the highest possible video quality and eesabktwork traffic
management. As consumers increasingly view videsnoartphones and tablets, in addition to tradititelavisions and PCs, the
ability to trans-rate video content in real timetie various resolutions and bit-rates supportethbysmartphones or tablets is
essential

Evolving End User Requirements for Video CapturedaBistribution
Camera users have evolving requirements with réspaonnectivity, simplicity and portability indaing:

Connectivity. Integrated wireless capability using wireles&disuch as Bluetooth and Wi-Fi is becoming an asirggly prevalent
feature across many classes of video capture dev@mmsumers want to watch, control and captuletirea video using their
smartphones as the remote control and viewer f@l@gsly enabled wearable and sports cameras.idwlallly, rather than storing
images and video to local media and transferring computer later, consumers are demanding thiyatbilwirelessly transfer and
share their video content to websites such as Ybe;THacebook and other online media albums. Nelatima services, such as
Google Helpouts, provide users the ability to sher@wvledge and expertise using 2-way live video andio. In video security
applications, connectivity to cloud services allavgers to monitor surveillance video in real-tinmetloeir smartphones or tablets.
The storage of video in the cloud also providesqmtion against theft of the video content and tagabsers the capability to
interrogate and playback the stored vic

Simplicity . Device manufacturers and software developersragaity struggle to balance enhanced functionaliith a simpler use
experience. Consumer preference has moved awayideo capture devices with multiple buttons andtaas to less complex
devices with fewer buttons and more intuitive giaphuser interfaces and software applications.s0arers also expect video and
images to be captured and stored in a format wéachbe edited, displayed and shared quickly, easifywithout the need to
upload to a computer. To provide consumers witheiasingly easy-to-use devices and interfaces, \ateldmage capture, OEMs
must be able to embed more intelligence in theliageplatforms to facilitate devices that strikbadance between making decisi
for the user and providing the user with the delsiezel of control. For example, smartphone compaicameras are utilizing easy-
to-use camera devices, with no display and limitewtrol functionality on board, and leveraging thtiitive graphical user
interfaces of smartphones as the command and taetnter for view finding and for video playbacksivaring. In addition, simple
to install HD home security cameras connecteddadbased services offering remote home monitaimdjvideo storage are
replacing the more complicated, low resolution agaecurity system:
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Portability and Rugged Durability. Consumers are demanding increasingly smallepantdble video capture devices with rugged
durability that capture high-quality images andeddSpecifically, consumers want to capture highliguvideo and images while
being active, such as with wearable cameras fatspo social media applications, or with camemadedded in accessories sucl
sunglasses, or record possible events such asateatwith an automotive aftermarket camera, ptwa security related footage
from an IP security camera in an indoor or outdgrorironment. These growing use cases are all liagled by technology that
allows high performance, low power, still image aifdeo capture in rugged form facto

Evolving requirements for cameras and broadcasdsiructure equipment typically center around videfinition and frame rates, ability
to capture high-quality still images and video, evghgle viewing, analytics, and transcoding cafigbil

Higher Definition and Higher Frame Rate. The demand for enhanced video resolution has ineegasing in both the camera ¢
infrastructure markets. Consumers expect videaityual be closer to high-resolution still imagedjieh continues to drive the
transition from standard definition to Full HD abedyond. Similarly, as new display technologies émaigher resolutions and
higher frame rates, we believe consumer demandivile the requirement for UltraHD or 4K video caigt and transmission. In
market for wearable sports cameras, for exampd®ugon and frame rate have been the primary fastoonsumers’ purchasing
decisions. In the infrastructure market, consuneenahd for viewing Full HD content has prompted dig@ssters to seek high-
performance solution:

Ability to Capture Higt-Quality Still Images and Video Historically, consumers have purchased devicasetther provide high-
quality image capture or record high-quality vid&bis was the result of consumer preference, asoredbly priced and sized
devices would provide only one of those attribukéswever, as a result of technological improvemetdssumer devices that
deliver both attributes have proliferated to thepthat a pure video capture device or still imagpture device is becoming
uncommon. Increasingly, devices are able to simattasly capture HD video and high-quality still tea without adversely
impacting the quality of either. We believe devitest can capture Full HD video while encoding eosel mobile resolution video
for uploading to the Internet or streaming over aRivhetwork will expand consumer demand for spkéal video capture devices.
Additionally advanced low-light processing inclugifligh Dynamic Range and High-1SO processing vaghtinue to improve
image quality even in challenging lighting conditso

Wide Angle Viewing The addition of de-warping capability allows cansst@ utilize a wide angle or “fish eyé&ns to cover a wic
viewing area. In security applications this caggbdan allow a single camera to replace multigeneras and may also eliminate
the need for mechanical pan-tilt-zoom in the camdraautomotive markets, the ability to combind display images captured by
multiple cameras can allow the automotive cametarder to capture and display images from the fr@ar and sides of the ¢

Analytics. Analytics is becoming increasingly important foe tthevelopment of intelligent video cameras. Inlfheecurity camera
market, analytics can be used for various functinokiding motion detection to trigger alarms, dhe counting and tracking of
people. The application of analytics data may ke Ak used to help control the video encoding pot@reduce video bitrates and
maximize network efficiency. In the automotive mettkhe application of analytics for Advanced Drigesistance Systems
(ADAS) is increasingly being used to help drivekstomotive analytics functions include Lane DeteatiWarning System (LDW¢
and Forward Collision Warning (FCW). In generalyeoful CPUs and dedicated analytics hardware ayeired to support the
analytics algorithms in video camer

Transcoding. The ability to decode and simultaneously re-eeduidh-quality video streams in multiple format$ieh is
commonly referred to as transcoding, using demsall$orm factor and power-efficient hardware isrdical requirement for
content providers and the video cloud. Given tlifedhg connection speeds and capacities in cugemmunication networks,
broadcasters must |
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able to deliver video to consumers at varying aierand quality levels. Furthermore, the significaorease in the number and
types of devices capable of displaying video, fidBtelevisions to cell phones, requires broadcastad other distributors to have
the capability to provide video content in multidemats and source resolutiol

Limitations of Current Video Content Creation andi§tribution Solutions

A device that captures video includes four primaognponents: a lens, an image sensor, a video macasd storage memory. The videc
processor is the most complex of these four princaryiponents as it converts raw video input intoranfit that can be stored and distributed
efficiently. Optimizing this process representsgmiicant engineering challenge that only a lidittumber of companies have successfully
overcome. The processor is based on a suite adlgigacessing and compression algorithms implendenséng hardware specifically built to
process video and audio and is supported by syatehsoftware architectures to manipulate, storedéstdbute data efficiently.

Given the complexity of video processing, meetih@@nsumer demands in a single device is challemghs a result, solution providers
often compromise on one or more key specificati6os.example, in portable consumer devices andaré&®d video applications where power
consumption and device size are critical attributesny video capture devices available in the ntadday sacrifice image quality in order to
achieve low power consumption and a compact fogtofa

The performance of video and image compressiomtdogy has become increasingly important as fdeshave grown and video trai
volumes have increased. Many current compressiloicios are developed from architectures that veeiginally optimized for still image
processing needs or lower resolution videos. Assalt, these solutions use inefficient video corsgian algorithms, which limit overall syst
performance, increase storage and power consumgipuirements and slow video-transfer speeds aludpimes. In the infrastructure
market, solutions based on inefficient architeusend to consume more power and have bigger factorfs, thereby lowering the number of
available channels per encoder and limiting thétaho deliver multiple streams of video simultanssly.

Many leading camera OEMs have used proprietaryntdolgies to try to address these technical chaflengowever, many of these
OEMs are vertically integrated and generally atedawer resources to semiconductor design solsitioan are necessary, and hence are not
generally able to produce low-cost leading edgkrtelogies quickly and efficiently. Additionally,etmarket for traditional Single Lens Reflex
(SLR) and Digital Still Cameras (DSC) is decliniag smartphones increasingly include high qualigtpgraphy and video capture capability.
The decline in market size combined with increasifigon tape out costs may continue to make valftiéntegrated semiconductor
developments less commercially attractive.

Our Solution

Our video and image processing SoCs, based onroprigtary technology platform, are highly confighle and satisfy the needs of
numerous applications in the camera and infrastraagnarkets. Our HD video and image processingisolsienable our customers to deliver
exceptional quality video and still imagery in siahsy-to-use devices with low power requiremedts. customized software solution
includes middleware, firmware and software develepnkits to optimize system-level functions andwalrapid integration of our solution and
specification adjustments.

e Camera Markel. In addition to enabling small device size and fmawer consumption, our SoC solutions make possible
differentiated functionalities such as simultaneweideo and image capture, multiple-stream videdwrapand wireless connectivity.
For example, our solutions enable rugged weargdgscameras and small form factor wearable casrtbed transmit captured
video and images to connected devices and thenbtiencluding social media sites. Additionallyy &oC
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solutions enable HD and UHD IP security camerasttaasmit HD and UHD video efficiently to providemote monitoring and
control. Another use case is the automotive aftekatacamera, particularly popular in emerging meslseich as China, Russia,
South Korea and Taiwan, which allows consumergd¢ond video constantly and automatically from tlaeitomobiles so that there
is visual evidence of accidents or other incide

Infrastructure Market. Our SoC solutions enable high-performance, lowgraconsumption broadcast devices with small form
factors, thereby reducing bandwidth needs, enesgg@ and costs of additional hardware. Our solsit@mable an increased numbel
of channels per encoder due to high compressidciezities. They also make possible a new classaotoders that can
simultaneously encode and stream multiple videméds to different end devices and can change vielsmlution and transmission
rates based on available bandwidth and the disgapgbility of receiving device

New and Emerging Market. We intend to continue to customize and adapsolutions to meet the needs of additional emerging
markets. For example, we are working with end austs to develop video capture devices for bothgasibnal and consumer
wearable camera applications, such as Google’sdd&d@pplication and service. In the IP securitpea market, we are
developing solutions optimized for both professiaral consumer applications, including low bit-rateeoding and low light
operation. In addition, we are developing advaramalytics for the consumer and professional IPritgycand automotive markets

to enhance SoC functionality. We believe advanecedyéics on the SoC, such as face recognition,alijentification and motion
detection will expand the addressable market forSm('s.

Our Competitive Strengths

Our platform technology solutions provide performamttributes that meet the highest standardseohfhastructure market, satisfy the
stringent demands of the camera market and enaelgration of HD video and image capture capaédith portable devices. We believe that
our leadership in HD video and image processindiedons is the result of our competitive strerggtimcluding:

High-Performance, Low Power Video and Image Algorithnxjgertise. Our solutions provide Full HD and UHD video at
exceptional resolution and frame rates. Our extenaigorithm expertise, which facilitates efficiemieo and image compression,
enables our solutions to achieve low power consiamptithout compromising performance. Our solutiacieve high storage a
transmission efficiencies through innovative anthptex video and image compression algorithms tigaifecantly reduce the
output bit-rate. This smaller storage footprinedity benefits the performance of our solutionsemeral ways including lower
memory storage requirements and reduced bandwaditisfor transmission, which is more conduciventiriag content between
devices. These benefits are particularly imporiamtanscoding and video cloud applications. Ouutsmns can enable high-
performance image capture of up to 30 16-megagtielmages per second. Our solutions can delivear images in low light
conditions because of our 3D Motion Compensatedpieai Filtering, or MCTF, and multiple exposure geesing. Additionally,
our Wide Dynamic Range (WDR) and High Dynamic Ra(tgBR) processing capabilities provide greater dyitarange between
the lightest and darkest areas of an image, péngitaptured still images to reveal details thatildamtherwise be lost against a
bright background. Our advanced de-warping capghatiables cameras to use wide angle lenses toredaptages from a wide
area, making it ideal for a variety of IP secuggmera application:

Proprietary Video Processing Architectul. Our proprietary video processing architecturgesigned to efficiently integrate our
advanced compression algorithms into our SoCsfey ekceptional storage and transmission efficiemeit lower power across
multiple products and end markets. We engineeredeny-large-scale integration, or VLSI, architeetwith a focus on high-
performance video compression as opposed to sptutiat are based on a still image processingtanthie with add-on video
capabilities. Due to our primary focus on videogassing compression, we believe that our solutidfes exceptional performance
metrics with lower power requirements and redudedsites. Our integrated algorithms and architecalso enable simultaneous
processing of multiple video and image stree
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» Highly-Integrated SoC Solutions Based on a Scalable Platfc. Our product families leverage our core high-perfance video
processing architecture, combined with an extensdtef integrated peripherals, which enables tatfqym to address the
requirements of a variety of applications and emak®ts. Traditional solutions have generally relipodn significant customization
to meet the specific requirements of each marksulting in longer design cycles and higher devaleqt costs. Our flexible and
highly-scalable platform enables us to address multipiketsiwith reduced design cycles and costs. Otfopha also enables us
develop fully integrated SoC solutions that prowide system functionalities required by our custanus a single chip. Our
extensive system integration expertise enables ugdgrate core video processing functionalitywitany peripheral functions
such as multiple inputs and outputs, lens contimligash controllers and remote control interfameeduce system complexity and
interoperability issues. Furthermore, we have ss&fedly migrated our process nodes from 130nm tm28ince our founding and
have a proven track record of developing and defigemultiple solutions with first-pass silicon s@ss. Beginning in fiscal year
2015, we will begin investing in development of ot generation SoCs in the 14nm/16nm processsn

» Comprehensive and Flexible Softwa. Our years of investment in developing and optingiour comprehensive and flexible
software serve as the foundation of our high-pertoice video application solutions. Key componehtsuo software include
highly customized middleware that integrates mamgue features for efficient scheduling and othestem-level functions, and
firmware that is optimized to reduce power requieats and improve performance. In addition, we glewd our customers fully-
functional software development kits with a suit@pplication programming interfaces or APIs, whadlow them to rapidly
integrate our solution, adjust product specificadiand provide additional functionality to theissyms, thereby enabling them to
differentiate their product offerings and reducesito market

» Broad Domain Experience in Video Processing and Dety. Our engineering team, whose core members havieegdogether
for over 15 years, includes leading innovatorsidew processing and delivery. Our VLSI team hasmsitze multi-gigahertz,
superscalar CPU design experience from Intel Catjmor, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. and Sun Micsieyns, Inc. Our team has
developed many industry firsts such as the firsglsi chip MPEG-2 encoder, the first consumer MPE@2scoding SoC, the first
single chip HD H.264 encoder and camera SoC anfiritedd 080p60 and UHD infrastructure SoCs. Ountdsas developed an
ecosystem of high-performance software and hardsaltgions that reduce customer system developtimeatand cost, thus
allowing for accelerated tin-to-market.

» Key Global Relationships with Leading OEM and ODMugtomers. Our solutions have been designed into top-tiel@Eands
currently in the market. We have established collative relationships with most of the leading ODM®l OEMSs that serve our
primary markets. Our collaborations with ODMs gugeextensive visibility into critical product desigdevelopment and producti
timelines, and keep us at the forefront of techgiclal innovation. We actively engage with OEMs @sidn specifications and with
ODMs on product implementation. Additionally, apxiraately 77% of our employees are located in Agianarily in Taiwan and
China, strategically placing us near many of owtemners and allowing us to provide superior salesign and technical support
and to strengthen our customer relationst

Our Strategy

Our objective is to be the leading provider of gsging solutions for the capture, sharing and ayspf HD video and still imagery. Key
elements of our strategy are to:

» Extend Our Technology Leadershi. We intend to continue to invest in the developtdivideo and image processing solutions
designed to meet evolving consumer demands suliglasr performance, lower cost, lower power, cotiaiég and interoperabilit
with other connected devices. We intend to levemageexisting technical expertise and continuent@st significant resources both
in our curren
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Products

solutions and in developing solutions that addresg markets as well as new segments of existingetarWe will continue to
recruit and develop expertise in the area of higtfggmance processor design and algorithm and acdétgevelopment, and build
on our proprietary intellectual property positionHD video processing. We believe that continuegstment in our proprietary
technology platform will enable us to increase ahnological leadership in terms of the perforneaaied the functionality of our
solutions.

Deepen and Expand Our Customer Relationsh. We intend to continue to build and strengthenrelationships with existing
customers and also diversify our customer base close relationships with leading ODMs and OEMsvjite us with insight into
product roadmaps and trends in the marketplaceshaulie intend to leverage to identify new opportiesitand applications for our
solutions, and we intend to continue to activelgaage with ODMs and OEMSs at every stage of theiigesycles. Once integrated
into a customer’s design, our product lifecyclexitéo be for the life of the product, and we intémanaintain our incumbent
position with our customers by continually improgiour solutions to meet their evolving needs. Wefe as video formats evol
toward UHD and beyond, complexity of design wilegtly increase the required investment for in-hansevation, making high-
performance merchant solutions, such as ours, attwctive to potential camera end custon

Target New Applications Requiring Connectivity, HBideo Processing and Low Povr. We intend to leverage our core
technology platform to address other processingeatathat have higherformance, robust connectivity, low latency ama powe
requirements. Examples of markets that we are &xtos penetrating are the wearable camera markstiwclude sports,
professional and consumer applications, the mdoketutomotive aftermarket cameras and the prajessiand consumer IP
security camera markets. Our camera solutionsitalbd provide connectivity and simultaneous highality video and image
capture in a power efficient system have faciligteeliminary engagements with leaders in the emgrggearable camera markets.
Additionally, our high-performance video and imaggture, connectivity, capability to stream HD adsficiently and power
efficiency have enabled us to develop relationshiils leaders in the wearable sports camera matketnarket for automotive
aftermarket cameras and the IP security cameraatavkich we intend to expand as those marketsragnto develop

Leverage Our Global Business Infrastructur. We are committed to continue growing our glolddastructure. Our proximity to
key customers due to our extensive presence intfesianabled us to build strong relationships ieilding ODMs and OEMs. We
intend to increase our investments in researchbasthess development personnel in Asia to furttrengthen these relationships.
We believe that growing our highly-integrated globganization also provides us with a favorablstatructure while enabling
continued advancement of our technology. Our gletrakcture provides us access to an internatiomall @f engineering and
management talent, allowing us to recruit and netéghly accomplished personnel with proven experin video and image
processing solution:

Our technology platform delivers a high-performaroe power video and image processing solution ¢ha be tailored with our
software development kits to meet the specific segdnultiple end markets. We also provide cust@méth guidelines known as reference
designs so that they can efficiently incorporatesmiutions in their product designs. We currestl our solutions into the following end

markets:

Broadcast and Traffic Managemer. Broadcasting equipment that enables HD videcetdistributed through satellite, cable ant
infrastructures comprises this market. Our flexiliigital signal processor, or DSP, architecture; pmwer requirements and
encoding expertise allow our end customers to cesgand thus transmit video efficiently optimizbandwidth and power usac

Wearable Sports Camer: Durable cameras that provide HD video quality@asingly include embedded connectivity to shac
display video. Our low power, hi-resolution and connected solution can be foundémbajority of cameras in this end marl
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» Automotive Aftermarket Camera. In several international markets, such as Chitssia, South Korea and Taiwan, small video
cameras are mounted on board vehicles to recdfit taacidents and help establish records for iaae and liability purposes.
This market is still emerging, but has grown meghilly over the last year. Our low power, high-perhance, small form factor
solutions are well suited for this mark

e Professional IP Security Camere. These cameras are used for video monitoring eodrisy surveillance in professional
applications. Our solutions enable the streaminguaitiple video streams to enable remote monitoahmultiple locations.
Embedded intelligence supports advanced analytatading motion detection and people tracking. Tameras often have the
ability to operate in low light conditions and oweide temperature ranges in order to be used idomutenvironments

» Consumer IP Security Camere. Consumer IP security cameras are designed foetmramall business use and are typically
connected to cloud services and applications vimehnetworks using WiFi. These cameras may requeirg low bitrate operation
support HD resolution over limited bandwidth broadd connections, while small form factors may regjuery low power
operation. The implementation of intelligent motetection may reduce the number of false ala

e Camcorders Our highperformance and low power architecture enablesdrgat consumer experience with Full HD video cap
In addition, our ability to provide high-resolutistill image capture and HD video capture simultarsty enables a hybrid
capability for the consume

The chart below describes our current product larestarget markets:
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Technology

Our semiconductor processing solutions enable HDWAD (up to 3840x2160p30) video and image captide®o compression, sharing
and display while offering exceptional power, sirwl performance characteristics.

Key differentiators of our technology include:
» algorithms to compress video signals with high coeapion and power efficiency at multiple operatioints;
» algorithms for hig-speed image processing with high image qualitypowler efficiency:

» scalable architecture that covers the gamut ofuoes and professional HD video camera and encagfipdjcations from Full HD
to UHD performance level:

» ability to encode multiple video streams simultaumsdp to support simultaneous recording and videsashing, or streaming to
multiple devices with different resolutior

» support for transcoding between video formats k@aneple MPE(-2 to H.264;

* low-power architecture with minimal system memory foiotp

e programmable architecture that balances flexihitiyality, power and die siz

« full software development kit comprised of APIdagilitate integration into custom¢ products; ant
« powerful CPUs and dedicated hardware to suppomrackd analytics function

Our technology platform, comprised of our video &ndge processors, is based on a high-performémegiower architecture support
by a high level of system integration. The buildiigcks of our platform are illustrated below:

Complete Sl 4
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: 'I' i , t' g Lo Power Dhesign Methodology
X B s Pl -cnre
High Perfommince Chip Architecturs T
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(R e 2 a1 e I
= ."fl..l.x.- High Ooality FL.264 K pa0 (LIHD
R Skl L Tege HIY Video
Processing Processing

Our technology platform enables the capture of m@golution still images and high-definition videsile simultaneously encoding HD
video for high-quality storage and lower resolutiecieo for Internet sharing and wireless networkingal stream video capture enhances the
consumer experience by offering the ability toamsaneously share captured video without havirgptthrough a transcoding process.
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AmbacClear

Our proprietary image signal processing architegtinown as AmbaClear, incorporates advanced #hgasito convert raw sensor data
to high-resolution still and high-definition vidémages concurrently. Image processing algorithrokide sensor, lens and color correction,
demosaicing, which is a process used to reconsrfudt color image from incomplete color samplesise filtering, detail enhancement and
image format conversion. For example, raw senstar ¢ be captured at up to 16-megapixel resolaticid frames per second and filtered
down to two megapixels for HD video processing wisiélected 16-megapixel frames are concurrentlygssed by the still image processor.
This image processing reduces noise in the inglgosand improves video quality resulting in betterage and transmission efficiencies.

AmbaCast

Our proprietary HD video processing architecturegn as AmbaCast, incorporates advanced algorifbnmaotion estimation, motion-
compensated temporal filtering, mode decision aiel control. Successful implementation of thesemdationally intensive steps has helped
us maximize compression efficiency. We supportrate compression profiles—baseline, main and high-specified in the H.264 standard.

Our solutions for the broadcast infrastructure raagtlow OEMs to offer both the H.264 and MPEG-2aing formats. Although H.264
has become the industry standard, MPEG-2 is diilely used as the format of both standard and Higfinition digital television signals that
are broadcast by terrestrial (over-the-air), calplé direct broadcast satellite television systekiiof our video encoding solutions have
decoding capabilities as well.

Design Methodology

The success of our technology platform stems framatgorithm-driven design methodology. We test aedfy our algorithms on our
proprietary architectural model prior to implemagtiour algorithms in hardware. Our advanced veiifoi;m methodology validates our
approach through simultaneous modeling of architectalgorithms and the hardware itself. This refdum approach enables us to identify anc
remediate any weaknesses early in the developryel®, providing a solid foundation on which we loudlur hardware implementation, and
enhances our ability to achieve first-pass silisnocess. We have a history of using several progssss from 130nm through 28nm. We
possess extensive expertise in video and imaggwitims as well as deep sub-micron digital andemhizignal design experience.

SoC Solution

Our SoC designs integrate HD video processing, enagcessing, applications processing and systaotifuns onto a single chip,
delivering exceptional video and image quality wdtfferentiated features, including advanced wisleonnectivity. Our multi-core DSP
architecture is highly scalable and balances soéyweaogrammability with hardware-accelerated penfmnce to achieve extremely low power
consumption and maximize camera battery life. Tiogiammable architecture provides our customets thig flexibility they need to quickly
develop a wide range of differentiated productsdifidnally, our SoCs integrate mixed signal (an&iégjtal) functionality and high speed
interfaces required for interfacing to advancedisgeed CMOS sensors and industry standard inesrfuech as USB 2.0 and HDMI 1.4.

Our A9 SoC, which we introduced in January 2018psuits 4K UHD video resolution at 30 frames peiosecas well as high frame-rate
video for capturing fast-action sports with 1080geo at 120 frames per second or 720p video afra@es per second. Our A9 SoC includes
dual core ARM® Cortex™-A9 CPUs providing the perfamae required for advanced applications includiingless connectivity to
smartphones for video streaming or image sharingdeanced analytics. Fabricated in 32nm CMOS teldyy, the A9 SoC offers very low
power consumption, enabling 4K resolution video eam with small form factors and extended battéey |
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Software Development Kit for Connectivity

Our video streaming technology enables the camearaige to be previewed on a smartphone, so therearaa be optimally set up and
controlled remotely. To enable this functionaliyd customers deploy our Wireless Camera Develoiét; or the Kit, which enables the
design of cameras that combine still photographd/Fudl HD video with wireless video streaming toatphones. The Kit leverages our multi-
stream encoding capability which supports the diogrof Full HD video while simultaneously recordiand streaming a second stream to the
smartphone. The Kit is available for our A7L So©gurct family, providing full 1080p60 HD video witfhotography and low power
consumption. This Kit enables accelerated end oust@roduct development and allows consumers tayeghg benefit of a ruggedized sports
or wearable camera with smartphones that enabletescontrol, viewing, playback and Internet videaring.

Transcoding Expertise

We were the first to market with a single-chip litoast-class high definition H.264 CODEC. Our cursaiution, the A6 Broadcast
Encoder/Transcoder solution delivers high-qual@3dp60 encode and 1080i60 transcode in a smallfactor and power-efficient device
suited for high-density applications. Targeting 6#tz2and MPEG-2 head-end encoders and high-denaitgdoders in the infrastructure market,
our A6 SoC deploys features such as rate-distodmimization, a method of improving video qualityd compression, and multipass, a
technique for encoding video into another formangsnultiple passes to improve quality. Our A6 Smvides the ability to decode and
simultaneously re-encode high-quality video streantseither H.264 or MPEG-2 formats. This facii@s the delivery of video to various
consumer devices, such as personal computergsbbxes, smartphones and tablets, which reqiffereht formats at varying resolutions ¢
bit-rates.

Customers

We sell our solutions to leading original desigmurfacturers, or ODMs, and original equipment maauifi@rs, or OEMs, globally. We
refer to ODMs as our customers and OEMs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahixt otherwise requires. In the
camera market, our video processing solutions eseyded into products from leading OEMs includingglon Corporation, Axis
Communications AB, Dahua Technology Co., Ltd., OBam, Inc., GoPro Inc., Hikvision Digital Technolo@y., and Robert Bosch GmbH
and affiliated entities, who source our solutiomsf ODMSs including Asia Optical Co. Inc., ChiconieEtronics Co., Ltd., DigiLife
Technologies Co., San Jet Technology Corp., and.8}tyt Digital Ltd. In the infrastructure marketyiosolutions are designed into products
from leading OEMs including Harmonic Inc., Motordobility, Inc. (owned by Arris Group, Inc.) and [ééonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson, who
source our solutions from leading ODMs such asR&orp.

Sales to customers in Asia accounted for approxip&8%, 87% and 84% of our revenue in the fisearg ended January 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively. As many of our OEM emstomers or their ODM manufacturers are locatelsia, we anticipate that a majority
of our revenue will continue to come from salesustomers in that region. Although a large peraggmtf our sales are made to customers in
Asia, we believe that a significant number of theducts designed by these customers and incorpgratir SoCs are then sold to consumers
globally. In fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, 88%86 and 75% of our revenue was attributable tessaf our solutions into the camera
market, respectively, and 12%, 22% and 25% of evuemue was attributable to sales of our solutintssthe infrastructure market,
respectively. To date, all of our sales have besrodhinated in U.S. dollars.

We work closely with our end customer OEMs and OOMsughout their product design cycles that oféest six to nine months for the
camera market, though new products within the camerket may have longer design cycles, and 18 todnths for the infrastructure
market. As a result, we are able to develop lomgrtelationships with our customers as our techonolzecomes embedded in their products.
Consequently, we
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believe we are well positioned to not only be desdjinto our customers’ current products, but sdswontinually develop next-generation, HD
video and image processing solutions for theirrifaroducts.

The product life cycles in the camera market tylpiaange from six to 18 months. The product lifekes in the infrastructure market
typically range from two to five years, where nemsghuct introductions occur less frequently. For ynahour solutions, early engagement with
our customers’ technical staff is necessary focess. To ensure an adequate level of early engageoue application and development
engineers work closely with our customers to adpstuct specifications and add functionality ittieir products.

Approximately 85%, 80% and 80% of our revenue werdved from sales through our logistics provideint&’ch Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd., or Wintech, and through one large direct OBltomer, Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd., or Chicdioy the fiscal years ended January 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. We currently, rrahd expect to continue to rely, on a limited temof customers for a significant portion
of our revenue. In fiscal year 2014, sales direatly through our logistics providers to our fivegksst customers collectively accounted for
approximately 55% of our revenue and sales to 6uargest customers collectively accounted for apipnately 67% of our revenue. In fiscal
year 2013, sales directly and through our logigticviders to our five largest customers collediivaecounted for approximately 37% of ¢
revenue and sales to our 10 largest customerstivliy accounted for approximately 48% of our newe. In fiscal year 2012, sales directly
and through our logistics providers to our fivegkest customers collectively accounted for 46% ofreuenue and sales to our 10 largest
customers collectively accounted for approxima6i¥o of our revenue.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our solutions worldwide using both our dirsales force and logistics providers. We haveatlisales personnel covering the
United States and Asia, and we operate sales sffic€anta Clara, California and Hong Kong, andriass development offices in China,
Japan, South Korea and Taiwan. In addition, in edi¢chese locations, we employ a staff of field laggtions engineers to provide direct
engineering support locally to our customers.

Our sales cycles typically require a significantastment of time and a substantial expendituresdurces before we can realize revenu
from the sale of our solutions, if any. Our typisales cycle consists of a multi-month sales anéldpment process involving our customers’
system designers and management and our salesipersmd software engineers. If successful, thosgss culminates in a custonsedecisiol
to use our solutions in its system, which we ré&deas a design win. Our sales efforts are typiddiligcted to the OEM of the product that will
incorporate our video and image processing solutiahthe eventual design and incorporation of®a€ into the product may be handled by
an ODM on behalf of the OEM. Volume production niegin within six to 18 months after a design wiepending on the complexity of our
customer’s product and other factors upon whichmag have little or no influence. Once our solutibase been incorporated into a
customer’s design, they are likely to be usedHerlife cycle of the customer’s product. Conversalgesign loss to a competitor will likely
preclude any opportunity for future revenue froralsaustomer’s product.

The end markets into which we sell our productshseen significant changes as consumer preferéavesevolved in response to new
technologies. As a result, the composition of @wenue may differ meaningfully during periods afteology or consumer preference chan
For example, in fiscal year 2011, pocket video nexerepresented approximately 40% of total revefhe.proliferation of smartphones and
their ability to capture high-quality video andlstnages significantly impacted this market, desiag pocket video cameras’ contribution to
approximately 0% of total revenue in fiscal yeat 20Conversely, our revenue derived from the wdargiorts camera market, the IP security
camera market and the market for automotive afteket@ameras supported total revenue growth ir2€ie2-2014 fiscal years despite the loss
of our pocket video revenue. We expect shifts imsconer use of video capture to continue to changetime, as more specialized use cases
emerge and video capture continues to proliferate.
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Our sales are generally made pursuant to purchrdsesareceived approximately four to 18 weeks pdhe scheduled product delivery
date, depending upon agreed terms with our custareat the current manufacturing lead time at the the purchase order is received. Thes
purchase orders may be cancelled without charge optification within an agreed period of time itvance of the delivery date, which may
be as short as 30 days. Due to the schedulingresgents of our foundry, assembly and test contraciee generally provide our contractors
with our production forecasts and place firm ordergproducts with our suppliers up to 20 week®ptd the anticipated delivery date, usually
without a purchase order from our own customers.standard warranty provides that our SoCs contgidefects in materials, workmanship
or performance may be returned for a refund ofptlmehase price or for replacement, at our disanetio

Manufacturing

We employ a fabless business model and use plairty- foundries and assembly and test contractonsanufacture, assemble and test
solutions. This outsourced manufacturing approdlolva us to focus our resources on the designssaild marketing of our solutions and
avoid the cost associated with owning and operatimgown manufacturing facility. Our engineers woltisely with foundries and other
contractors to increase yields, lower manufactudosts and improve quality. In addition, we beliewtsourcing many of our manufacturing
and assembly activities provides us the flexibitigeded to respond to new market opportunitieg)lffies our operations and significantly
reduces our capital requirements. We do not hayseanteed level of production capacity from angwf suppliers’ facilities to produce our
solutions. We carefully qualify each of our supgdiand their subcontractors and processes in todeeet the extremely high-quality and
reliability standards required of our solutions.

Backlog

Our sales are primarily made through standard mselorders for delivery of products. Our manufactuproduction is based on
estimates and advance non-binding commitments fnastomers as to future purchases. We follow ingiystactice that allows customers to
cancel, change or defer orders with limited advaratece prior to shipment. Given this practice, deenot believe that backlog is a reliable
indicator of future revenue levels.

Wafer Fabrication

We have a history of using several process nodes f30nm through 28nm. We currently manufacturemtgrity of our solutions in
65nm, 45nm and 32nm silicon wafer production preggometries utilizing the services of severaledéht foundries. Currently, the majority
of our SoCs are supplied by Samsung in South Kdreian, whom we have the option to purchase botlyfaisembled and tested products as
well as tested die in wafer form for assembly. Wse dave products supplied by Global UniChip Cogpion, or GUC, in Taiwan, from whom
we purchase fully-assembled and tested productswitiers used by GUC in the assembly of our pradaiet manufactured by Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or TSMCTmiwan.

Assembly and Testing

Samsung subcontracts the assembly and initiahtesfithe assembled chips it supplies to us toeigsn Corporation and STATS
ChipPAC Ltd. In the case of purchases of testedrdim Samsung, we contract the assembly to AdvaSesdiconductor Engineering, Inc., or
ASE. GUC subcontracts the assembly of the produstgpplies to us to ASE and Powertech Technology Final testing of all of our produc
is handled by King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd. og@8d Corporation under the supervision of our eegis. All test software and related
processes for our products are developed by ouneag. We continually monitor the results of tegtat all of our test contractors to ensure
that our testing procedures are properly implentente

As part of our total quality assurance program,aquality management system has been certified@9801:2000 standards. Our
foundry vendors are also ISO 9001 certified.
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Research and Development

We believe our technology is a competitive advami@gd engage in substantial research and develaomfferis to develop new produc
and integrate additional features and capabilitissour HD video processing solutions. We belitheagt our continued success depends on ou
ability to both introduce improved versions of existing solutions and to develop new solutionstiiermarkets that we serve. Our research
and development team is comprised of both semiatindand software designers. Our semiconductogddsiam has extensive experience in
large-scale semiconductor design, including archire description, logic and circuit design, impkrtation and verification. Our software
design team has extensive experience in developamehterification of software for the HD video markBecause the integration of hardware
and software is a key competitive advantage ofsolutions, our hardware and software design teaark wlosely together throughout the
product development process. The experience ofiadware and software design teams enables utetdieély assess the tradeoffs and
advantages when determining which features andbdéjes of our solutions should be implementedhardware and in software.

We have assembled a core team of experienced emgiard systems designers in three research aetbgment design centers located
in the United States, China and Taiwan.

For the fiscal years ended January 31, 2014, 20d2812, our research and development expense4@a8 fiillion, $42.8 million and
$37.6 million, respectively.

Competition

The global semiconductor market in general, andritheo and image processing markets in partical@ highly competitive. We expect
competition to increase and intensify as more angklr semiconductor companies enter our marketeedsed competition could result in price
pressure, reduced profitability and loss of magketre, any of which could materially and adversdfigct our business, revenue and operating
results.

Currently, our competitors range from large, inggimnal companies offering a wide range of semicetal products to smaller
companies specializing in narrow markets. Our print@mpetitors in the wearable sports and IP sgcodmera markets include Fujitsu
Limited, HiSilicon Technologies Co., Ltd., Geo Sennductor, Inc. and Texas Instruments Incorporasdyell as vertically integrated
divisions of consumer device OEMs, including Cafrm, Panasonic Corporation and Sony Corporatiothé automotive aftermarket camera
market, we compete against Alpha Imaging Technologsp., Core Logic, Inc., Novatek Microelectroniésrp. and Sunplus Technology Co.
Ltd. Our primary competitors in the infrastructumarket include Intel Corporation, Magnum Semicordydnc. and Texas Instruments
Incorporated. Certain of our customers and supphéso have divisions that produce products cotinetivith ours. We expect competition in
our current markets to increase in the future &stiag competitors improve or expand their prodefférings and as potential new competitors,
such as Broadcom Corporation, NVIDIA Corporatiomal@omm Incorporated and Samsung, enter these tearke

Our ability to compete successfully depends on elgmboth within and outside of our control, inéhglindustry and general economic
trends. Many of our competitors are substantiatgér, have greater financial, technical, marketitstribution, customer support and other
resources, are more established than we are, aedsigmificantly better brand recognition and breraproduct offerings which may enable
them to better withstand adverse economic or madeditions in the future.

Our ability to compete successfully in the rapieiyolving HD video market depends on several factaduding:

» the design and manufacturing of new solutions dinéitipate the video processing and integratiords@é our customers’ next-
generation products and applicatio
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» performance, as measured by video and still pigtaegje quality, resolution and frame processings;
e power consumptior

» the ease of implementation by custom

» the strength of customer relationshi

» the selection of the foundry process technologyactitecture tradeoffs to meet customers’ prodegtiirements in a timely
manner;

* reputation and reliability
* customer support; ar
» the cost of the total solutio

We believe we compete favorably with respect tdhe#Edhese factors, particularly because our smhgtitypically provide high-
performance and low power consumption video, effitintegration of our advanced algorithms, excswt storage and transmission
efficiencies at lower power, highly-integrated Sefutions based on a scalable platform, and conepigbe and flexible software. We cannot
ensure, however, that our solutions will continmeampete favorably or that we will be successiuhie face of increasing competition from
new products introduced by existing or new compeit

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of intellectual propeiiyhts, including patents, trade secrets, copyrightstrademarks, and contractual
protections, to protect our core technology anelliettual property. As of January 31, 2014, we tvaghty-five issued and allowed patents in
the United States plus thirteen additional contiimmapatents, three issued patents in China, auedpatent in Japan and thirty-five pending
and provisional patent applications in the Unit¢aké&s. The issued and allowed patents in the UStatks expire beginning in 2024 through
2031. Many of our issued patents and pending pajgpitcations relate to image and video procesairyHD video compression.

We may not receive competitive advantages fromraghyts granted under our patents, and our pategiicapions may not result in the
issuance of any new patents. In addition, any paterhold may be opposed, contested, circumvendiggigned around by a third-party or
found to be unenforceable or invalidated. Otherg develop technologies that are similar or supenayur proprietary technologies, duplicate
our proprietary technologies or design around gatewned or licensed by us.

In addition to our own intellectual property, wealuse thirgparty licenses for certain technologies embeddeiir5oC solutions. The
are typically non-exclusive contracts provided ungalty-accruing or paidyp licenses. These licenses are generally perpet@itomaticall
renewed for so long as we continue to pay any reaartce fees that may be due. To date, maintenaasédfive not constituted a significant
portion of our capital expenditures. While we da believe our business is dependent to any sigmifidegree on any individual third-party
license, we expect to continue to use and mayse@aditional third-party technology for our sauis.

We generally control access to and use of our denfial information through employing internal adernal controls, including
contractual protections with employees, contracame customers. We rely in part on U.S. and inteznal copyright laws to protect our mask
work. All employees and consultants are requireeiecute confidentiality agreements in connectidth their employment and consulting
relationships with us. We also require them to edoedisclose and assign to us all inventions derdeor made in connection with the
employment or consulting relationship.
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Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual pecty, unauthorized parties may still copy or otvise obtain and use our software,
technology or other information that we regard mgppgetary intellectual property. In addition, weeénd to expand our international operations
and effective patent, copyright, trademark andersetcret protection may not be available or maljnieed in foreign countries.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by ngge protection and pursuit of intellectual propeights and positions, which has
resulted in protracted and expensive litigationffiany companies. Our customers have in the pasitvest; and we expect that in the future we
may receive, communications from various industitipipants alleging infringement of their patentade secrets or other intellectual prop
rights by our solutions. In addition, certain of @nd customers have been the subject of lawdliggirag infringement of patents by products
incorporating our solutions. Any lawsuits could jgab us to significant liability for damages, inigklte our proprietary rights and harm our
business and our ability to compete. Any litigaticegardless of success or merit, could cause in&to substantial expenses, reduce our sale
and divert the efforts of our technical and managm@npersonnel. In the event we receive an advessétiin any litigation, we could be
required to pay substantial damages, seek licdrmmsthird parties, which may not be available easonable terms or at all, cease sale of
products, expend significant resources to develi@prative technology or discontinue the use otpsses requiring the relevant technology.

Employees

At January 31, 2014, we employed a total of 495eadncluding 115 in the United States and 388sra, primarily in China and
Taiwan. We also engage temporary employees anditants. None of our employees are either represdy a labor union or subject to a
collective bargaining agreement. We have not egpesd any work stoppages, and we consider ouramsatvith our employees to be good.

Information concerning revenue, results of operaj@ssets and revenue by geographic area isrgeirfdtem 6, “Selected Financial
Data” and Note 11, “Segment Reporting,” of Note€tmsolidated Financial Statements of this FornKldhd is incorporated herein by
reference. Information concerning risks attendardur foreign operations is set forth below in It&f& “Risk Factors.”

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Certain factors may have a material adverse ef@cbur business, financial condition and result®pérations. You should consider
carefully the risks and uncertainties describebglin addition to other information contained g Annual Report on Form 10-K, including
our consolidated financial statements and relatetes. The risks and uncertainties described bel®anat the only ones we face. Additional
risks and uncertainties that we are unaware ofthat we currently believe are not material, mayodi&ecome important factors that adversely
affect our business. If any of the following rigksually occurs, our business, financial conditioesults of operations, and future prospects
could be materially and adversely affected. In #nant, the trading price of our ordinary share ktbdecline, and you could lose part or all of
your investmeni

Risks Related to Our Business and Our Industry

If our customers do not design our solutions inteir product offerings, or if our customers’ prodeiofferings are not commercially
successful, our business would suffe

We sell our video and image processing system-onia-or SoC, solutions to original equipment mactidrers, or OEMs, who include
our SoCs in their products, and to original desiganufacturers, or ODMs, who include our SoCs ingteelucts that they supply to OEMs. \
refer to ODMSs as our customers and OEMs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahtxt otherwise requires. Our video
and image processing SoCs are generally incorgbnate our customergroducts at the design stage, which is referrexbta design win. As
result, we rely on OEMs to design our solutions ithte products that they
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design and sell. Without these design wins, oumass would be harmed. We often incur significaqemditures developing a new SoC
solution without any assurance that an OEM wilesebur solution for design into its own produchc® an OEM designs a competitodevice
into its product, it becomes significantly morefidifilt for us to sell our SoC solutions to that OBMcause changing suppliers involves
significant cost, time, effort and risk for the OERuUrthermore, even if an OEM designs one of ol Solutions into its product, we cannot be
assured that the OEM’s product will be commercialigcessful over time or at all or that we willeB® or continue to receive any revenue
from that OEM. For example, improved smartphonewidapture capabilities, and rapid adoption of gohanes by consumers, led to the
decline of an entire category of pocket video cam@imed at the casual video capture market. ¢alfissar 2011, pocket video revenue
represented approximately 40% of our total revemte. proliferation of smartphones and their abil@iycapture high-quality video and still
images significantly impacted this market, decmegsiur revenue from pocket video cameras to n€8dyof our total revenue in fiscal year
2014. If other product categories incorporating 8a€ solutions are not commercially successfukpedence rapid decline, our revenue and
business will suffer.

We depend on a limited number of customers and eodtomers for a significant portion of our revenu#.we fail to retain or expand
our customer relationships, our revenue could dedi

We derive a significant portion of our revenue frarimited number of ODMs who build products on &élof a limited number of
OEMs and from a limited number of OEMs to whom \ugdglirectly. We anticipate that this customer camtcation will continue for the
foreseeable future. In fiscal year 2014, salextir&nd through our logistics providers to ourfiargest customers collectively accounted for
approximately 55% of our total revenue, and salesut 10 largest customers collectively accountedpproximately 67% of our total
revenue. In fiscal year 2014, sales to our lar@&3vl customer was approximately 29% of our totakrave. This ODM customer builds
products for several OEM customers as well astéoown brand. We believe that our operating regattthe foreseeable future will continue
depend on sales to a relatively small number afocnsrs and endustomers. In the future, these customers may dewtito purchase our S
solutions at all, may purchase fewer solutions thay did in the past or may alter their purchagiagierns. As substantially all of our sales to
date have been made on a purchase order basis ciiigsmers may cancel, change or delay produchase commitments with little or no
notice to us and without penalty and may make euemue volatile from period to period. For exampler, largest OEM end customer in fiscal
year 2011, Eastman Kodak Company, or Kodak, clitsethmera division in January 2012. The loss sifjaificant customer like Kodak cou
happen again at any time and without notice, act fass would likely harm our financial conditiondaresults of operations.

In addition, our relationships with some custonmaey deter other potential customers who compete thvése customers from buying
our solutions. To attract new customers or retaistiag customers, we may have to offer these coste favorable prices on our solutions. In
that event, our average selling prices and grosginsmwould decline. The loss of a key customegdaiction in sales to any key customer or
our inability to attract new customers could sesigumpact our revenue and harm our results of atpmrs.

Our customers may cancel their orders, change protion quantities or delay production. If we fail taccurately forecast demand for
our solutions, revenue shortfalls, or excess, oledelor insufficient inventory could result.

Our customers typically do not provide us with fidlong-term purchase commitments. Substantiallpfatiur sales are made on a
purchase order basis, which permits our custonoetcaricel, change or delay their product purchaserdtments with little or no notice to us
and without penalty to them. Because productiod teéaes often exceed the amount of time requiredurycustomers to fill their orders, we
often must build SoCs in advance of orders, relyingan imperfect demand forecast to project voluamesproduct mix.
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Our SoCs are incorporated into products manufagtoyeor for our end customers, and as a resultadenfor our solutions is influenced
by the demand for our customers’ products. Ouiitglid accurately forecast demand can be adveefédgted by a number of factors,
including inaccurate forecasting by our custometiscalculations by our customers of their inventaguirements, changes in market
conditions, adverse changes in our product orderamdl fluctuating demand for our customers’ progduEven after an order is received, our
customers may cancel these orders or request aeadecin production quantities. Any such cancelabiodecrease subjects us to a number of
risks, most notably that our projected sales will materialize on schedule or at all, leading taniitipated revenue shortfalls and excess or
obsolete inventory that we may be unable to seitier customers.

Alternatively, if we are unable to project customeguirements accurately, we may not build enoug@sSwhich could lead to delays in
product shipments and lost sales opportunitiekémear term, as well as force our customers ttifgealternative sources, which could affect
our ongoing relationships with these customers Haiee in the past had customers significantly irmedheir requested production quantities
with little or no advance notice. If we do not flilEustomer demands in a timely manner, our cugtenmay cancel their orders and we may b
subject to customer claims for cost of replacemenaddition, the rapid pace of innovation in owdustry could render portions of our
inventory obsolete. Excess or obsolete inventorgliecould result in unexpected expenses or ineseimsour reserves that could adversely
affect our business, operating results and findicoiadition. In addition, any significant futurerzzellations or deferrals of product orders coul
harm our margins, increase our write-offs due twlpct obsolescence and restrict our ability to fandoperations.

Our target markets may not grow or develop as werently expect and are subject to market risks, asfywhich could harm our
business, revenue and operating results.

To date, our revenue has been attributable to dériweirour video and image processing SoCs in theeca and infrastructure markets
and the growth of these overall markets. We injtifdcused on the infrastructure market, and tlemetaged our knowledge and experience to
design solutions for the camera market. We deheenajority of our revenue from the camera market, our operating results are
increasingly affected by trends in the camera maikeese trends include demand for higher resaluticcreasing functionality, longer battery
life, greater storage and connectivity requirementsle accommodating more sophisticated standarmdgdeo compression. We may be
unable to predict the timing or development of ¢herkets with accuracy. For example, the prolifenaof smartphones having the ability to
capture high-quality video and still images hasificantly impacted the camera market in a reldyiwhort period of time and continues to
impact this market. In the Internet Protocol, ordBcurity camera market, a slower than expectegtexh rate for digital technology in place
analog solutions could slow the demand for ourtgmts. If our target markets, such as wearable casn@automotive aftermarket cameras, IP
security cameras, and telepresence cameras, dpoveior develop in ways that we currently expeetndnd for our video and image
processing SoCs may not materialize as expectedanigusiness and operating results could suffer.

Fluctuations in our operating results on a quartgrland annual basis could cause the market priceoaf ordinary shares to decline.

Our revenue and operating results have fluctuatgdficantly from period to period in the past aa likely to do so in the future. In
particular, our business tends to be seasonalhigtier revenue in our third quarter as our custemgically increase their production to meet
yea-end demand for their products. We may also expeeiseasonally lower demand in our first quartehénAsia-based IP security camera
market as a result of industry seasonality andntipact of ODM and OEM factory closures associatét the Chinese New Year holiday. A
result, you should not rely on period{teriod comparisons of our operating results asidication of our future performance. In future pes,
our revenue and results of operations may be b#evexpectations of analysts and investors, whichdccause the market price of our
ordinary shares to decline.
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Factors that may affect our operating results iheiu
» fluctuations in demand, sales cycles, product i prices for our product
» the forecasting, scheduling, rescheduling or cadabeh of orders by our custome

» shifts in consumer preferences and any resultaarig#in demand for video and image capture deintesvhich our solutions are
incorporated

» changes in the competitive dynamics of our marketduding new entrants or pricing pressul

» delays in our customers’ ability to manufacture ahipp products that incorporate our solutions caumseinternal and external
factors beyond our contrc

* our ability to successfully define, design and ask2new solutions in a timely manner that meetastomer’ needs

» changes in manufacturing costs, including wafest, aad assembly costs, mask costs, manufacturatdsyand product quality and
reliability;

» timely availability of adequate manufacturing capafrom our manufacturing subcontracto

» the timing of product announcements by our cometior by us

» incurrence of research and development and retededoroducts expenditure

» write-downs of inventory for excess quantities and tetdgioal obsolescenc

« future accounting pronouncements and changes wuatiag policies

« volatility in our share price, which may lead tghér stoc-based compensation expen

» general socioeconomic and political conditionshi@ tountries where we operate or where our proguetsold or used; at

» costs associated with litigation, especially ralateintellectual property

Moreover, the semiconductor industry has histoiyda¢en cyclical in nature, reflecting overall eoaric conditions as well as budgeting

and buying patterns of consumers. We expect thedieal conditions to continue. As a result, ouaderly operating results are difficult to

predict, even in the near term. Our expense levelselatively fixed in the short term and are bage part, on our expectations of future
revenue. If revenue levels are below our expectatiwe may experience declines in margins andtphility or incur losses.

Achieving design wins is subject to lengthy compes selection processes that require us to incigniicant costs. Even if we begin a
product design, a customer may decide to cancattmnge its product plans, resulting in no revenuein such expenditures

We are focused on selling our video and image sing solutions to ODMs and OEMs for incorporatiaio their products at the desi
stage. These efforts to achieve design wins tyfgieae lengthy, especially in new markets we intemdddress, and in any case can require u:
to both incur design and development costs anccdezliscarce engineering resources in pursuit imighescustomer opportunity. We may not
prevail in the competitive selection process andnevhen we do achieve a design win, we may neseergte any revenue despite incurring
development expenditures. For example, in theywadiad achieved a significant design win and pteftsubstantial future revenue from that
end customer as a result of that design win. Swlesgty, based on changes in that end customerssisent of the consumer market, among
other factors, the end customer abruptly shut didgsvbusiness unit with which we achieved the design with no notice to us.

These risks are exacerbated by the fact that sémer@nd customers’ products, particularly in taenera market, likely will have short
life cycles. Further, even after securing a design we have experienced and may
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again experience delays in generating revenue fnansolutions as a result of the lengthy produeettgpment cycle typically required, if we
generate any revenue at all as a result of any design win.

Our customers generally take a considerable anafuithe to evaluate our solutions. The typical tifram early engagement by our st
force to actual product introduction runs from niael2 months for the camera market, and 12 to @Aths for the infrastructure market,
though it may take longer in new markets we intendddress. The delays inherent in these lengtleg ssgicles increase the risk that a custc
will decide to cancel, curtail, reduce or delaypteduct plans, causing us to lose anticipatedssaieaddition, any delay or cancellation of a
customer’s plans could harm our financial resatsye may have incurred significant expense andrgtad no revenue. Finally, our
customers’ failure to successfully market and thelir products could reduce demand for our SoCtisols and harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations. If we werehl@do generate revenue after incurring substaexpénses to develop any of our solutions,
our business would suffer.

The average selling prices of video and image pssirg solutions in our target markets have histally decreased over time and will
likely do so in the future, which could harm our venue and gross margins.

Average selling prices of semiconductor productthemarkets we serve have historically decreasedtone, and we expect such
declines to continue to occur for our solutionsrdirae. Our gross margins and financial results suffer if we are unable to offset reductions
in our average selling prices by reducing our ¢atgseloping new or enhanced SoC solutions on alyitmasis with higher selling prices or
gross margins, or increasing our sales volumesitidddlly, because we do not operate our own mariufang, assembly or testing facilities,
we may not be able to reduce our costs as rapgdtpmpanies that operate their own facilities, amdcosts may even increase, which could
also reduce our gross margins. In the past, we rexteced the prices of our SoC solutions in arditgm of future competitive pricing
pressures, new product introductions by us or oorpetitors and other factors. Recently, we haveeapced competitive pricing pressures at
the low end of the automotive aftermarket camerekataWe expect that we will have to address pgg@ressures again in the future, which
could require us to reduce the prices of our Sd@isas and harm our operating results.

We expect competition to increase in the future,igthcould have an adverse effect on our revenue andrket share.

The global semiconductor market in general, and/itheo and image processing markets in particalar highly competitive. We
compete in different target markets to various degron the basis of a number of competitive fachocfuding our solutions’ performance,
features, functionality, energy efficiency, sizase with which our solution may be integrated imtio customers’ products, customer support,
reliability and price, as well as on the basis of @putation. We expect competition to increasgiatensify as more and larger semiconducto
companies enter our markets, and as the intersalirees of large OEMs grow. Increased competitariccresult in price pressure, reduced
profitability and loss of market share, any of whaould harm our business, revenue and operatsutse

Our competitors range from large, international panies offering a wide range of semiconductor pctglto smaller companies
specializing in narrow markets. In the wearablertspeamera market, our primary competitors areicadly integrated divisions of camera
device OEMs, including Sony Corporation and Pani&sBorporation. In the IP security camera markat, mrimary competitors include
HiSilicon Technologies Co., Ltd., Geo Semiconduchoc. and Texas Instruments Incorporated, as agellertically integrated divisions of IP
Security camera device OEMSs, including Axis Comngations AB, Panasonic and Sony. In the marketditsraotive aftermarket cameras, we
compete against Alpha Imaging Technology Corp.eQamgic, Inc., Novatek Microelectronics Corp. anthflus Technology Co. Ltd. Our
primary competitors in the infrastructure marketlimle Intel Corporation, Magnum Semiconductor, Brod Texas Instruments Incorporated.
Certain of our customers and suppliers also havisidns that produce products competitive with oMve expect competition in our current
markets to increase in the future as existing caitgps improve or
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expand their product offerings and as potential nempetitors, such as Broadcom Corporation, NVIQIérporation, Qualcomm Incorporated
and Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., enter these etark

Our ability to compete successfully depends on etfgmboth within and outside of our control, inéghglindustry and general economic
trends. Many of our competitors are substantiahgér, have greater financial, technical, marketitigtribution, customer support and other
resources, are more established than we are aredskgnificantly better brand recognition and bragateduct offerings which may enable
them to better withstand adverse economic or madxeditions in the future. Our ability to compet#l wepend on a number of factors,
including:

« our ability to anticipate market and technologyntte and successfully develop solutions that meetehaeeds

e our success in identifying and penetrating new migtkapplications and custome

» our ability to understand the price points and genfance metrics of competing products in the matkeg;

e our solution’ performance and cc-effectiveness relative to that of competing prody

» ourability to gain access to leading design tools amdluct specifications at the same time as our etitops;

* our ability to develop and maintain relationshigwvkey OEMs and ODMs

» our product’ effective implementation of video processing stadsl;

» our ability to protect our intellectual proper

» our ability to expand international operations itineely and co«efficient manner

» our ability to deliver products in volume on a tisnbasis at competitive price

e our ability to support our custom’ incorporation of our solutions into their producsd

« our ability to recruit design and application erggirs with expertise in image video and image psinggechnologies and sales anc
marketing personne

Our competitors may also establish cooperativeiogiships among themselves or with third partieacguire companies that provide
similar products to ours. As a result, new compsgdior alliances may emerge that could acquirefsgignt market share. Any of these factors,
alone or in combination with others, could harm business and result in a loss of market shareandcrease in pricing pressure.

We are dependent on sales of a limited number ofea and image processing solutions, and a declimenarket adoption of these
solutions could harm our busines

From inception through January 31, 2014, our regdras been generated primarily from the sale mhiteld number of high-definition,
or HD, video and image processing SoC solutiorteéncamera and infrastructure markets. Moreovergwreently derive a significant amount
of our revenue from the sale of our SoCs for ugaéncamera market and we expect to do so foreReseveral years. As a result, continued
market adoption of our SoC solutions in the canmeasket is critical to our future success. If demé&srdour SoC solutions were to decline, or
demand for products incorporating our solutiondides, does not continue to grow or does not grevwexected, our revenue would decline
and our business would be harmed.

If we fail to develop and introduce new or enhancedlutions on a timely basis, our ability to attiaand retain customers could be
impaired and our competitive position could be hazth

We operate in a dynamic environment characterizadpidly changing technologies and technologitsabescence. To compete
successfully, we must design, develop, market aticeshanced solutions that
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provide increasingly higher levels of performannd &unctionality and that meet the cost expectatiaiour customers. Our existing or future
solutions could be rendered obsolete by the inttdn of new products by our competitors; convergeof other markets, such as
smartphones, with or into the camera market; theketadoption of products based on new or alteraagchnologies; or the emergence of
industry standards for video compression. In addjtthe markets for our solutions are characteri@efitequent introduction of nexfeneratior
and new products, short product life cycles, insimademand for added functionality and signifigarte competition. If we or our customers
are unable to manage product transitions in a yiraetl cost-effective manner, our business andteestibperations would suffer.

Our failure to anticipate or timely develop newemhanced solutions in response to technologictibstould result in decreased revenue
and our competitors achieving design wins that eeeght. In particular, we may experience difficutigith product design, development of
new software, manufacturing, marketing or qualifma that could delay or prevent our developmaenrttoduction or marketing of new or
enhanced solutions. In addition, delays in develapnecould impair our relationships with our custosnend negatively impact sales of our
solutions under development. Moreover, it is pdediftat our customers may develop their own produetdopt a competitor’s solution for
products that they currently buy from us. If wd faiintroduce new or enhanced solutions that rtteeheeds of our customers or penetrate
markets in a timely fashion, we will lose markeaihand our operating results will be adverselgaéd.

If we fail to penetrate new markets, our revenuedafinancial condition could be harmed.

In the past several years, a significant amounuofrevenue was generated from sales of our predacddEMs and ODMs of high
definition, or HD, video cameras and broadcastiritastructure equipment. Our future revenue groviitémy, will depend in part on our abili
to expand within these markets with our video anddge processing SoC solutions, particularly forraele sports cameras, automotive
aftermarket cameras, IP security cameras, andtés raw markets such as the non-sports wearablereamarket. Each of these markets
presents distinct and substantial risks and, inyncases, requires us to develop new software tceaddhe particular requirements of that
market. If any of these markets do not develop @swrently anticipate or if we are unable to peatetthem successfully, our revenue could
decline.

Some of these markets are primarily served by arigw large, multinational OEMs with substantiagjotating power relative to us and,
in some instances, with internal solutions thatcamapetitive to our products. Meeting the technieguirements and securing design wins \
any of these companies will require a substantiastment of our time and resources. We cannotagsu that we will secure design wins
from these or other companies or that we will aohiemeaningful revenue from the sales of our sahstioto these markets.

If we fail to penetrate these or other new marketsare targeting, our revenue likely will decreaser time and our financial condition
could suffer.

We do not have long-term supply contracts with dhird-party manufacturing vendors, and they may not alide sufficient capacity t
us at reasonable prices to meet future demandsdor solutions.

The semiconductor industry is subject to intensapetitive pricing pressure from customers and cditgrs. Accordingly, any increase
in the cost of our solutions, whether by adverselpmase price variances or adverse manufacturingvaosinces, will reduce our gross margins
and operating profit. We currently do not have kegn supply contracts with all of our primary thiparty vendors, and we negotiate pricing
with our main vendors on a purchase ordephyehase order basis. Therefore, they are notateligto perform services or supply product t
for any specific period, in any specific quantitiesat any specific price, except as may be pexvich a particular purchase order. Availability
of foundry capacity has in the recent past beeitdiofrdue to strong demand. The ability of our fayneendors to provide us with a product,
which is sole sourced at each foundry, is limitgdHheir available capacity, existing obligationgldachnological capabilities. Foundry
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capacity may not be available when we need it oe@tonable prices. None of our third-party fourmrassembly and test vendors has
provided contractual assurances to us that adegapseity will be available to us to meet our dptited future demand for our solutions. Our
foundry and assembly and test vendors may alla@giacity to the production of other companies’ piaidl while reducing deliveries to us on
short notice. In particular, other companies thatlarger and better financed than we are or the¢ long-term agreements with our foundry ol
assembly and test vendors may cause our foundrgsembly and test vendors to reallocate capacttyetn, decreasing the capacity available
to us. Converting or transferring manufacturingira primary location or supplier to a backup foynekendor could be expensive and would
likely take three or more quarters. As we trangitio more advanced process nodes beyond 28 nanmpmeten, we will be increasingly
dependent upon Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., mis8ag, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co.,,ldd TSMC, who are two of the

only three foundries currently available for cartadvanced process technologies that we may utilize

If, in the future, we enter into arrangements wgitippliers that include additional fees to expedékvery, nonrefundable deposits or lo
in exchange for capacity commitments or commitménfsurchase specified quantities over extendeidggrsuch arrangements may be
costly, reduce our financial flexibility and be terms unfavorable to us, if we are able to secucé arrangements at all. Moreover, if we are
able to secure foundry capacity, we may be obl@jadause all of that capacity or incur penaltiese3e penalties could harm our financial
results. To date, we have not entered into any augmgements with our suppliers. If we need aoldditi foundry or assembly and test
subcontractors because of increased demand anah#ify to obtain timely and adequate deliveriesf our current vendors, we may not be
able to do so cost-effectively, if at all.

A substantial portion of our revenue is processédaugh a single logistics provider and the losstbfs logistics provider may cause
disruptions in our shipments, which may adverselje&t our operations and financial condition.

We sell most of our solutions through a single $tigs provider, Wintech Microelectronics Co., Ltor,Wintech, which serves as our non
exclusive sales representative in all of Asia othan Japan. Approximately 56%, 63% and 80% ofreuenue was derived from sales through
Wintech for the fiscal years ended January 31, 20043 and 2012, respectively. We anticipate thagaificant portion of our revenue will
continue to be derived from sales through Wintectine foreseeable future. Our current agreemeht Wintech is effective until September
2015, unless it is terminated earlier by eithetypfor any or no reason with 90 days written noticéoy failure of the breaching party to cure a
material breach within 30 days following writtentice of such material breach by the non-breachamtypOur agreement with Wintech will
automatically renew for additional successive 1hthderms unless at least 60 days before the etitedhen-current term either party
provides written notice to the other party thalécts not to renew the agreement. Terminatioh@felationship with Wintech, either by us or
by Wintech, could result in a temporary or permaness of revenue. We may not be successful inrilpguitable alternative logistics
providers on satisfactory terms, or at all, and tuuld adversely affect our ability to effectivelgil our solutions in certain geographical
locations or to certain end customers. Additionaflyve terminate our relationship with Wintech, wey be obligated to repurchase unsold
product, which could be difficult or impossiblegell to other end customers. Furthermore, Winteclany successor or other logistics
providers we do business with, may face issuesrabtacredit, which could impair their ability toake timely payments to us.

Deterioration of the financial conditions of our cstomers could adversely affect our operating result

Deterioration of the financial condition of our lstics providers or customers could adversely irhpac collection of accounts
receivable. We regularly review the collectabibtyd creditworthiness of our logistics providers andtomers to determine an appropriate
allowance for doubtful receivables. Based on ouierg of our logistics providers and customers, waently have no reserve for uncollectible
accounts. If our uncollectible accounts, howeveamento exceed our current or future allowance éaradful receivables, our operating results
would be negatively impacted.
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If we do not sustain our growth rate, we may not &lgle to execute our business plan and our opergtiesults could suffer.

We have experienced significant growth in a shertqa of time. Our revenue increased from $21.3ionilin fiscal year 2008 to $157.6
million in fiscal year 2014, including growth rate630% and 24% in the last two fiscal years. We mat achieve similar growth rates in
future periods. You should not rely on our revegtenth, gross margins or operating results for jamgr quarterly or annual periods as an
indication of our future operating performancew# are unable to maintain adequate revenue grauttfinancial results could suffer and our
stock price could decline.

If we are unable to manage any future growth, we ynaot be able to execute our business plan and operating results could suffer.

Our business has grown rapidly. Our future opegatasults depend to a large extent on our abdityuccessfully manage any expansion
and growth, including the challenges of managircgmpany with headquarters in the United Statedtamdnajority of its employees in Asia.
To manage our growth successfully and handle thgoresibilities of being a public company, we bedieve must effectively, among other
things:

e recruit, hire, train and manage additional qualifemgineers for our research and development tieiyparticularly in our offices
Asia and especially for the positions of semiconidudesign and systems and applications enginee

» add additional sales and business developmentmpegk:
» add additional finance and accounting persor
* implement and improve our administrative, finaneiatl operational systems, procedures and congott

» enhance our information technology support for gmise resource planning and design engineeringdaypting and expanding our
systems and tool capabilities, and properly trgjmiew hires as to their us

We are increasing our investment in research aadlolement and other functions to grow our businéss.are likely to incur the costs
associated with these increased investments etirdiarsome of the anticipated benefits, and themeain these investments, if any, may be
lower, may develop more slowly than we expect oy mat materialize.

If we are unable to manage our growth effectivelg,may not be able to take advantage of marketryqities or develop new solutior
and we may fail to satisfy customer product or suppequirements, maintain product quality, exeauebusiness plan or respond to
competitive pressures.

Due to our limited operating history, we may havifidulty accurately predicting our future revenuand appropriately budgeting our
expenses.

We were incorporated in 2004 and first generatedyct revenue in the third quarter of fiscal ye@®& As a result, we have a limited
operating history from which to predict future raue. This limited operating experience, combineiththe rapidly evolving nature of the
markets in which we sell our solutions, substantraertainty concerning how these markets may devahd other factors beyond our control,
limits our ability to accurately forecast quarteilyannual revenue. In addition, because we reg@ignificant portion of our revenue from
sales when we have received notification from ogistics providers that they have sold our produsime of the revenue we record in a
quarter may be derived from sales of products gup our logistics providers during previous qeiet This revenue recognition methodol
limits our ability to forecast quarterly or annuavenue accurately. We are currently expandingstaifing and increasing our expenditures in
anticipation of future revenue growth. If our reuerdoes not increase as anticipated, we could incur
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significant losses due to our higher expense laf/@lse are not able to decrease our expensesiinedytmanner to offset any shortfall in future
revenue.

While we intend to continue to invest in researchcadevelopment, we may be unable to make the suitistainvestments that are
required to remain competitive in our business.

The semiconductor industry requires substantiaéstment in research and development in order g lid market new and enhanced
solutions. Our research and development expens&488 million, $42.8 million and $37.6 million fiscal year 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. We expect to increase our researdidanelopment expenditures as compared to pridogeas part of our strategy of focusing
on the development of innovative and sustainaldewiand image processing solutions. We do not kmbether we will have sufficient
resources to maintain the level of investment seagch and development required to remain comyetiEior example, development in the
latest process nodes, such as 14 or 16 nm, casigasgftcantly more than required to develop inr28. This added cost could prevent us from
being able to maintain a technology advantage lavger competitors that have significantly moreotgses to invest in research and
development. In addition, we cannot assure youttieatechnologies which are the focus of our reteand development expenditures will
become commercially successful or generate anynteve

We may experience difficulties demonstrating thduato customers of newer, higher priced and highmargin solutions if they
believe existing solutions are adequate to meet enstomer expectations.

As we develop and introduce new solutions, we fheeaisk that customers may not value or be wiltmdpear the cost of incorporating
these newer solutions into their products, pardidulif they believe their customers are satisfigth current solutions. Regardless of the
improved features or superior performance of theamesolutions, customers may be unwilling to admptnew solutions due to design or
pricing constraints. Owing to the extensive timd a@sources that we invest in developing new smigtiif we are unable to sell customers
generations of our solutions, our revenue couldimie@nd our business, financial condition, opagtiesults and cash flows could be
negatively affected.

The complexity of our solutions could result in unfeseen delays or expenses from undetected defexts;s or bugs in hardware or
software which could reduce the market adoptionaafr new solutions, damage our reputation with cunieor prospective customers ai
adversely affect our operating costs.

Highly complex SoC solutions such as ours freqyertdhtain defects, errors and bugs when they eseifitroduced or as new versions
are released. We have in the past and may in thesfexperience these defects, errors and bugaylbf our solutions have reliability, quality
or compatibility problems, we may not be able tocassfully correct these problems in a timely mawnat all. In addition, if any of our
proprietary features contain defects, errors oshwigen first introduced or as new versions of @lutfons are released, we may be unable to
timely correct these problems. Consequently, oputaion may be damaged and customers may beastuct buy our solutions, which could
harm our ability to retain existing customers atithat new customers, and could adversely affecfinancial results. In addition, these
defects, errors or bugs could interrupt or deldgssto our customers. If any of these problemsatdound until after we have commenced
commercial production of a new product, we may irgignificant additional development costs and pidecall, repair or replacement costs.
These problems may also result in claims againblywsur customers or others.

The loss of any of our key personnel could seriguebarm our business, and our failure to attract oetain qualified management,
engineering, sales and marketing talent could impaur ability to grow our business.

We believe our future success depends in largeupar the continuing services of the members ofsemior management team and
various engineering and other technical persorihehe or more of our senior executives or other personnel are unable or unwilling to
continue in their present positions, we may not be
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able to replace them easily or at all, our busimeag be disrupted, and our financial condition eeglilts of operations may be materially and
adversely affected. In addition, if any member of senior management team or any of our other kesgmnel joins a competitor or forms a
competing company, we may experience material piisnm of our operations and development plans asd tustomers, know-how and key
professionals and staff members, and we may immueased operating expenses as the attentionaf sghior executives is diverted to recruit
replacements for key personnel. Our industry isattarized by high demand and intense competitortalent, and the pool of qualified
candidates is very limited. While we plan to con#rto recruit software and system engineers wiffesise in video processing technologies,
primarily in Taiwan and China, we may not be sustidsn attracting, retaining and motivating suiiéict numbers of technical and engineering
personnel to support our anticipated growth. Thametition for qualified engineering personnel i swdustry, and particularly in Asia, is ve
intense. If we are unable to hire, train and retpialified engineering personnel in a timely manoer ability to grow our business will be
impaired. In addition, if we are unable to retaim existing engineering personnel, our ability taimtain or grow our revenue will be adversely
affected.

Camera manufacturers incorporate components supglt®y multiple third parties, and a supply shortagedelay in delivery of these
components could delay orders for our solutionsdayr customers.

Our customers purchase components used in the antd of their cameras from various sources oplsypften involving several
specialized components, including lenses and sen8ay supply shortage or delay in delivery bydhirarty component suppliers, or a third-
party supplier’'s cessation or shut down of its bess, may prevent or delay production of our custshproducts. In addition, replacement or
substitute components may not be available on cawially reasonable terms, or at all. As a resull@fays in delivery or supply shortages of
third-party components, orders for our solutiongy/iba delayed or canceled and our business mayrbeedaSimilarly, errors or defects within
a camera system or in the manner in which the uarimmponents interact could prevent or delay potiolu of our customers’ products, which
could harm our business.

We outsource our wafer fabrication, assembly andtirg operations to third parties, and if these pias fail to produce and deliver ot
products according to requested demands in speatfan, quantity, cost and time, our reputation, dosner relationships and operatin
results could suffer.

We rely on third parties for substantially all afrananufacturing operations, including wafer fahtion, assembly and testing. Currently,
the majority of our SoCs are supplied by Samsurfgouth Korea, from whom we have the option to pasehboth fully assembled and tested
products as well as tested die in wafer form f@easbly. Samsung subcontracts the assembly anal i@isting of the assembled chips it
supplies to us to Signetics Corporation and STAREAC Ltd. In the case of purchases of testedrdim Samsung, we contract the asser
to Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., or ABf also have products supplied by Global Uni@pporation, or GUC, in Taiwan,
from whom we purchase fully assembled and testedyats. The wafers used by GUC in the assemblyiopmducts are manufactured by
TSMC in Taiwan. The assembly is done by GUC sulbrested assembly suppliers ASE, and Powertech Téatminc, or PTI. Final testing
all of our products is handled by King Yuan Eleaios Co., Ltd. or Sigurd Corporation under the suigéon of our engineers. We depend on
these third parties to supply us with material ofguested quantity in a timely manner that meetstandards for yield, cost and
manufacturing quality. We do not have any long-tsupply agreements with any of our manufacturingp$iars. If one or more of these
vendors terminates its relationship with us, avéf encounter any problems with our manufacturingpuchain, our ability to ship our
solutions to our customers on time and in the qgtyargquired would be adversely affected, whiclium could cause an unanticipated decline
in our sales and damage our customer relationships.

If our foundry vendors do not achieve satisfactoyields or quality, our reputation and customer réil@nships could be harmed.

The fabrication of our video and image processiog Solutions is a complex and technically demangingess. Minor deviations in the
manufacturing process can cause substantial desr@agields, and in some
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cases, cause production to be suspended. Our fpuaddors, from time to time, experience manufastudefects and reduced manufacturing
yields, including in the fabrication of our SoChabges in manufacturing processes or the inadvarsenof defective or contaminat

materials by our foundry vendors could result wdo than anticipated manufacturing yields or unptaide performance of our SoCs. Many
these problems are difficult to detect at an estidge of the manufacturing process and may bedansuming and expensive to correct. Poor
yields from our foundry vendors, or defects, inggigm issues or other performance problems in olutisns, could cause us significe
customer relations and business reputation problears our financial results and give rise to ficiahor other damages to our customers.
customers might consequently seek damages frowr tkdir losses. A product liability claim brougigainst us, even if unsuccessful, would
likely be time consuming and costly to defend.

Each of our SoC solutions is manufactured at aeilogation. If we experience manufacturing protdemha particular location, we wol
be required to transfer manufacturing to a newtlonaor supplier. Converting or transferring maratfaing from a primary location or suppl
to a backup fabrication facility could be expensawel would likely take three or more quarters. Bgisuch a transition, we would be required
to meet customer demand from our thexisting inventory, as well as any partially finkshgoods that could be modified to the requiredipet
specifications. We do not seek to maintain suffitiaventory to address a lengthy transition pebiedause we believe it is uneconomical to
keep more than minimal inventory on hand. As altese may not be able to meet customer needs glgtich a transition, which could delay
shipments, cause production delays, result in fndein our sales and damage our customer reldtipas

We may experience difficulties in transitioning teew wafer fabrication process technologies or inhéeving higher levels of design
integration, which may result in reduced manufactag yields, delays in product deliveries and incseal costs.

We aim to use the most advanced manufacturing psaeehnology appropriate for our products thavalable from our third-party
foundries. As a result, we periodically evaluate bienefits of migrating our solutions to smalleometry process technologies in order to
improve performance and reduce costs. We beliggesttategy will help us remain competitive. Thesgoing efforts require us from time to
time to modify the manufacturing processes forgmaducts and to redesign some products, whichrinrhay result in delays in product
deliveries. We may face difficulties, delays ancréased expense as we transition our productsignacesses, such as 14nm or 16nm pr¢
nodes, and potentially to new foundries. We degmm8amsung and TSMC, as the principal foundriesdomproducts, to transition to new
processes successfully. We cannot assure you dinagusg or TSMC will be able to effectively managetstransitions or that we will be able
to maintain our relationship with Samsung or TSMG@evelop relationships with new foundries. Moreapes we transition to more advanced
process nodes beyond 28nm, we will be increasidgpendent upon Samsung and TSMC, who are two afrtlyethree foundries currently
available for certain advanced process technolodigse or our foundry vendors experience significdelays in transitioning to smaller
geometries or fail to efficiently implement tramsits, we could experience reduced manufacturiniglyjelelays in product deliveries and
increased costs, all of which could harm our retathips with our customers and our operating resfk new processes become more
prevalent, we expect to continue to integrate grdavels of functionality, as well as more endtouser and third-party intellectual property,
into our solutions. We may not be able to achiegbdr levels of design integration or deliver nesegrated solutions on a timely basis.

We rely on third-party vendors to supply softwarevelopment tools to us for the development of oemproducts, and we may be
unable to obtain the tools necessary to develogiminance new or existing products.

We rely on third-party software development toolsissist us in the design, simulation and verificadf new products or product
enhancements. To bring new products or productrer@ments to market in a timely manner, or at adl need software development tools tha
are sophisticated enough or technologically advéecmugh to complete our design, simulations amifications. In the future, the design
requirements necessary to meet consumer demanawferfeatures and greater functionality from aluttons may exceed the
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capabilities of available software developmentdobtlnavailability of software development tools nmagult in our missing design cycles or
losing design wins, either of which could resultifoss of market share or negatively impact o@rafing results.

Because of the importance of software developnuas to the development and enhancement of outisod) our relationships with
leaders in the computer-aided design industryuitiolg Cadence Design Systems, Inc., Mentor Gragbacporation and Synopsys, Inc., are
critical to us. We have invested significant resagrto develop relationships with these industagées. We believe that utilizing next-
generation development tools to design, simulatkvanify our products will help us remain at theefiont of the video compression market,
and develop solutions that utilize leading-edganetogy on a rapid basis. If these relationshigsrert successful, we may be unable to
develop new products or product enhancementsimedyt manner, which could result in a loss of madteare, a decrease in revenue or
negatively impact our operating results.

Our failure to adequately protect our intellectuaroperty rights could impair our ability to competffectively or defend ourselves
from litigation, which could harm our business, famcial condition and results of operation

Our success depends, in part, on our ability téegtaur intellectual property. We rely primarilp patent, copyright, trademark and tr.
secret laws, as well as confidentiality and noreldsure agreements and other contractual protes;ttorprotect our proprietary technologies
and knowhow, all of which offer only limited protection. €hsteps we have taken to protect our intellectuadgrty rights may not be adequ
to prevent misappropriation of our proprietary immfiation or infringement of our intellectual properights, and our ability to prevent such
misappropriation or infringement is uncertain, atarly in countries outside of the United Statés.of January 31, 2014, we had twenty-five
issued and allowed patents in the United Statestpitteen additional continuation patents, theseiéd patents in China, one issued patent in
Japan and thirty-five pending and provisional paggplications in the United States. Even if thedieg patent applications are granted, the
rights granted to us may not be meaningful or glevis with any commercial advantage. For examipéset patents could be opposed,
contested, circumvented, designed around by oupetitars or be declared invalid or unenforceablgidicial or administrative proceedings.
The failure of our patents to adequately protecttechnology might make it easier for our compesitio offer similar products or technologi
Our foreign patent protection is generally not asprehensive as our U.S. patent protection andrmmoaigrotect our intellectual property in
some countries where our products are sold or reasolul in the future. Many U.S.-based companieg les¢countered substantial intellectual
property infringement in foreign countries, inclndicountries where we sell products. Even if fangigtents are granted, effective enforcet
in foreign countries may not be available. For eglamthe legal environment relating to intellectpedperty protection in China is relatively
weak, often making it difficult to create and emf®isuch rights. We may not be able to effectivebtert our intellectual property rights in
China or elsewhere. If such an impermissible useuofintellectual property or trade secrets weredour, our ability to sell our solutions at
competitive prices may be adversely affected andbasiness, financial condition, operating resattd cash flows could be materially and
adversely affected.

The legal standards relating to the validity, ecéability and scope of protection of intellectusdgerty rights are uncertain and evolvi
We cannot assure you that others will not developatent similar or superior technologies, prodectservices, or that our patents, trademark
and other intellectual property will not be chatied, invalidated or circumvented by others.

Unauthorized copying or other misappropriation of proprietary technologies could enable thirdiparto benefit from our technologies
without paying us for doing so, which could harm business. Monitoring unauthorized use of ourllietéual property is difficult and costly.
Although we are not aware of any unauthorized diseipintellectual property in the past, it is pids that unauthorized use of our intellectual
property may have occurred or may occur withoutkmawledge. We cannot assure you that the stegsawe taken will prevent unauthorized
use of our intellectual property. Our failure téeetively protect our intellectual property couktiuce the value of our technology in licensing
arrangements or in cross-licensing negotiations.
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We may in the future need to initiate infringemelatims or litigation in order to try to protect omtellectual property rights. Litigation,
whether we are a plaintiff or a defendant, canxgessive, time-consuming and may divert the effoftsur technical staff and management,
which could harm our business, whether or not ditigation results in a determination favorableus Litigation also puts our patents at risl
being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and oatemt applications at risk of not issuing. Additdy, any enforcement of our patents or othel
intellectual property may provoke third partiesagsert counterclaims against us. If we are unalpedtect our proprietary rights or if third
parties independently develop or gain access t@osimilar technologies, our business, revenyaytagion and competitive position could be
harmed.

Third parties’ assertions of infringement of theintellectual property rights could result in our hang to incur significant costs and
cause our operating results to suffer.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by ngge protection and pursuit of intellectual propeights and positions, which has
resulted in protracted and expensive litigationrffiany companies. Certain of our customers havevetand, particularly as a public
company, we expect that in the future we may regeiemmunications from others alleging our infrimgt of their patents, trade secrets or
other intellectual property rights. In additionrteén of our end customers have been the subjdetafuits alleging infringement of intellectual
property rights by products incorporating our siolus, including the assertion that the allegednigiement may be attributable, at least in part.
to our technology. Lawsuits resulting from suclegdltions could subject us to significant liabifitly damages and invalidate our proprietary
rights, though this has not occurred to date. Aoteptial intellectual property litigation also cdubrce us to do one or more of the following:

» stop selling products or using technology that aimnthe allegedly infringing intellectual proper

» lose the opportunity to license our technologytttecs or to collect royalty payments based uporesgful protection and assertion
of our intellectual property against othe

» incur significant legal expense
* pay substantial damages to the party whose inteliéproperty rights we may be found to be infrirgi
» redesign those products that contain the allegedlinging intellectual property; c

* attempt to obtain a license to the relevant int&lial property from third parties, which may notebailable on reasonable terms or
at all.

Any significant impairment of our intellectual preqty rights from any litigation we face could haonr business and our ability to
compete.

Any potential dispute involving our patents or othimtellectual property could affect our customenshich could trigger our
indemnification obligations to them and result irubstantial expense to us.

In any potential dispute involving our patents traw intellectual property, our customers coula ddscome the target of litigation.
Certain of our customers have received notices tiord parties claiming to have patent rights inta& technology and inviting our customers
to license this technology, and certain of our emstomers have been the subject of lawsuits aligigiiningement of patents by products
incorporating our solutions, including the assertioat the alleged infringement may be attributaatdeast in part, to our technology. Because
we indemnify our customers for intellectual propestaims made against them for products incorpogatiur technology, any litigation could
trigger technical support and indemnification obtigns under some of our license agreements, witahd result in substantial expense to us.
Although we have not incurred indemnity expensésed to intellectual property claims to date, wécpate that we will receive requests for
indemnity in the future pursuant to our licensesagnents with our customers. In addition, otherarusts or
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end customers with whom we do not have formal ageses requiring us to indemnify them may ask usdemnify them if a claim is made

a condition to awarding future design wins to usc@use some of our ODMs and OEMs are larger thaargvand have greater resources thar
we do, they may be more likely to be the targegrofnfringement claim by third parties than we vebhé, which could increase our chances o
becoming involved in a future lawsuit. Although thave not yet been subject to such claims, if aih €laims were to succeed, we might be
forced to pay damages on behalf of our ODMs or OfMs$ could increase our expenses, disrupt ouityatil sell our solutions and reduce our
revenue. In addition to the time and expense reduir us to supply support or indemnification to oustomers, any such litigation could
severely disrupt or shut down the business of astoeners, which in turn could hurt our relationghwdgur customers and cause the sale of oul
products to decrease.

A breach of our security systems may have a matadverse effect on our business.

Our security systems are designed to maintain higsipal security of our facilities and protect austomers’, suppliers’ and employees’
confidential information. Accidental or willful seaty breaches or other unauthorized access bg parties to our facilities or our information
systems or the existence of computer viruses irdata or software could expose us to a risk ofrindion loss and misappropriation of
proprietary and confidential information. Any theftmisuse of this information could result in, argmther things, unfavorable publicity,
damage to our reputation, difficulty in marketingr @roducts, allegations by our customers that sweemot performed our contractual
obligations, litigation by affected parties and gibke financial obligations for liabilities and dages related to the theft or misuse of this
information, any of which could have a material e effect on our business, financial conditiam,reputation, and our relationships with
our customers and partners. We also rely on a nuofhtibird-party “cloud-based” service providersamfrporate infrastructure services relating
to, among other things, human resources, electamiumunication services and some finance functiand,we are, of necessity, dependent o
the security systems of these providers. Any sgchreaches or other unauthorized access by thirikeg to the systems of our cloud-based
service providers or the existence of computersésun their data or software could expose ugrigkaf information loss and misappropriat
of confidential information. Since the techniquagd to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotagensy change frequently and are often not
recognized until launched against a target, we bgaynable to anticipate these techniques or toemeht adequate preventative measures.

We rely on third parties to provide services andhrology necessary for the operation of our busiaeény failure of one or more of
our vendors, suppliers or licensors to provide swsgrvices or technology could harm our business.

We rely on third-party vendors to provide critisgfrvices, including, among other things, serviedested to accounting, human resources
information technology and network monitoring that cannot or do not create or provide ourselvesdégend on these vendors to ensure
our corporate infrastructure will consistently meat business requirements. The ability of thegd-marty vendors to successfully provide
reliable and high-quality services is subject tthtécal and operational uncertainties that are bdyaur control. While we may be entitled to
damages if our vendors fail to perform under thgireements with us, our agreements with these vetidat the amount of damages we may
receive. In addition, we do not know whether wd i able to collect on any award of damages drttitese damages would be sufficient to
cover the actual costs we would incur as a re$uhyg vendor’s failure to perform under its agreameith us. Upon expiration or termination
of any of our agreements with third-party venders,may not be able to replace the services provided in a timely manner or on terms and
conditions, including service levels and cost, #ratfavorable to us, and a transition from onedeeto another vendor could subject us to
operational delays and inefficiencies until thesition is complete.

Additionally, we incorporate third-party technologyo some of our products, and we may do so inr&uproducts. The operation of our
products could be impaired if errors occur in thiedt-party technology we use. It may be more difidor us to correct any errors in a timely
manner, if at all, because the development and
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maintenance of the technology is not within ourtomin\We cannot assure you that these third pawi#€ontinue to make their technology, or
improvements to the technology, available to ushat they will continue to support and maintaigithechnology. Further, due to the limited
number of vendors of some types of technology ay e difficult to obtain new licenses or replagestng technology. Any impairment of the
technology of or our relationship with these thpatties could harm our business.

Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prdices Act, or FCPA, and similar laws associatediwaur activities outside of the
United States could subject us to penalties andesthdverse consequences.

We face significant risks if we fail to comply withe FCPA and other anti-corruption laws that podghimproper payments or offers of
payment to foreign governments and political parbig us for the purpose of obtaining or retainingibess. In many foreign countries,
particularly in countries with developing economiiésnay be a local custom that businesses operatisuch countries engage in business
practices that are prohibited by the FCPA or ottpglicable laws and regulations. We are in theyestdges of implementing our FCPA
compliance program and cannot assure you thaf alimemployees and agents, as well as those caegtmwhich we outsource certain of
our business operations, will not take actionsiatation of our policies and applicable law, foriafnwe may be ultimately held responsible.
Any violation of the FCPA or other applicable aatirruption laws could result in severe criminatiMil sanctions and, in the case of the
FCPA, suspension or debarment from U.S. governegmmitacting, which could have a material and adyveffect on our reputation, business,
financial condition, operating results and caskwfio

We, our customers and third-party contractors angbgect to increasingly complex environmental regtitans and compliance with
these regulations may delay or interrupt our opdmats and adversely affect our business.

We face increasing complexity in our procuremeasign, and research and development operationseasila of requirements relating
the materials composition of our products, inclgdihe European Union’s (EU’s) Restriction on theld§ Certain Hazardous Substances in
Electrical and Electronic Equipment (RoHS) direetiwhich restricts the content of lead and cervéirer hazardous substances in specified
electronic products put on the market in the EU sindlar Chinese legislation relating to markingetéctronic products which became
effective in March 2007. Failure to comply with #eeand similar laws and regulations could subjsdbuines, penalties, civil or criminal
sanctions, contract damage claims, and take-backrftompliant products, which could harm our bes& reputation and operating results.
The passage of similar requirements in additiomasgglictions or the tightening of these standandsiiisdictions where our products are alre
subject to such requirements could cause us ta giguoificant expenditures to make our products jglent with new requirements, or could
limit the markets into which we may sell our prottuc

Some of our operations, as well as the operatibosirocontract manufacturers and foundry vendods@her suppliers, are also regule
under various other federal, state, local, forgigd international environmental laws and requiresiencluding those governing, among other
matters, the management, disposal, handling, alelihg of, and exposure to hazardous substaneésha discharge of pollutants into the air
and water. Liability under environmental laws canjcint and several and without regard to compeagatult. We cannot assure you that
violations of these laws will not occur in the freuas a result of human error, accident, equipifaénte or other causes. Environmental laws
and regulations have increasingly become moreggnnover time. We expect that our products andatipas will be affected by new
environmental requirements on an ongoing basis;lwhill likely result in additional costs, which wldl adversely affect our business.

Our failure to comply with present and future eomimental, health and safety laws could cause ito substantial costs, result in civil
or criminal fines and penalties and decreased teyemhich could adversely affect our operating ltes&ailure by our foundry vendors or
other suppliers to comply with applicable enviromta¢ laws and requirements could cause disrupimasdelays in our product shipments,
which could adversely affect our relations with @DMs and OEMs and adversely affect our businedsesults of operations.
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New regulations related to “conflict minerals” mafprce us to incur additional expenses, may make supply chain more complex
and may result in damage to our reputation with ¢amers.

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform aadsOmer Protection Act of 2010, or the Dodd-Fraik ghe Securities and
Exchange Commission has adopted new requirementefiopanies that use certain minerals and metatsyk as conflict minerals, in their
products, whether or not these products are maturéatby third parties. These requirements willuiegjcompanies to diligence, disclose and
report whether or not such minerals originate ftbmDemocratic Republic of Congo and adjoining ¢nes. The implementation of these n
requirements could adversely affect the sourcingilability and pricing of minerals used in the raéacture of semiconductor devices,
including our products. In addition, we will incadditional costs to comply with the disclosure iiegments, including costs related to
determining the source of any of the relevant nalseand metals used in our products. Since ourlgbgin is complex, we may not be abl
sufficiently verify the origins for these mineralad metals used in our products through the digedite procedures that we implement, whict
may harm our reputation. In such event, we may false difficulties in satisfying customers who reguhat all of the components of our
products are certified as conflict mineral free.

We are subject to warranty and product liabilityaiins and to product recalls.

From time to time, we are subject to warranty cktimt may require us to make significant expeneltio defend these claims or pay
damage awards. In the future, we may also be sutgjgroduct liability claims resulting from failerof our solutions. In the event of a warre
claim, we may also incur costs if we compensataffexted customer. We maintain product liabilitgurance, but this insurance is limited in
amount and subject to significant deductibles. €hgmo guarantee that our insurance will be abkglar adequate to protect against all claims
We also may incur costs and expenses relatingdoal of one of our customers’ products contairong of our devices. The process of
identifying a recalled product in consumer devittes have been widely distributed may be lengthy r@guire significant resources, and we
may incur significant replacement costs, contrarhdge claims from our customers and reputationmah h@osts or payments made in
connection with warranty and product liability cte and product recalls could harm our financialdition and results of operations.

Rapidly changing industry standards could make otideo and image processing solutions obsolete, Whiould cause our operating
results to suffer.

We design our video and image processing solutimeenform to video compression standards, inclydfPEG-2 and H.264, set by
industry standards setting bodies such as ITU-e¥i@oding Experts Group and the ISO/IEC MovingWREExperts Group. Generally, our
solutions comprise only a part of a camera or brasatinfrastructure equipment device. All compogaritthese devices must uniformly
comply with industry standards in order to opesdfiziently together. We depend on companies thatigde other components of the device
support prevailing industry standards. Many of ¢hesmpanies are significantly larger and more @rftial in driving industry standards than
we are. Some industry standards may not be wididpted or implemented uniformly, and competing déads may emerge that may be
preferred by our customers or by consumers. Ifoostomers or the suppliers that provide other @ges@nponents adopt new or competing
industry standards with which our solutions arecwhpatible, or if the industry groups fail to atlsfandards with which our solutions are
compatible, our existing solutions would becoms kgssirable to our customers. As a result, oussatrild suffer, and we could be requiret
make significant expenditures to develop new Sdatisms. In addition, existing standards may belehged as infringing upon the
intellectual property rights of other companiesray be superseded by new innovations or standards.

Products for communications applications are baseiddustry standards that are continually evolvingr ability to compete in the
future will depend on our ability to identify andseire compliance with these evolving industry séadsl, including any new video compres:
standards. The emergence of new industry standardd render our solutions incompatible with pragudeveloped by other suppliers. As a
result, we could be required to invest significtimte and effort and to incur significant expenseetesign our solutions to ensure compliance
with
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relevant standards. If our solutions are not in jgitence with prevailing industry standards for gnéficant period of time, we could miss
opportunities to achieve crucial design wins, wtgohild harm our business.

We are subject to the cyclical nature of the senmidactor industry.

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical and&haracterized by constant and rapid technologltahge, rapid product obsolescel
price erosion, evolving standards, short proddetdycles and wide fluctuations in product suppig demand. The industry experienced a
significant downturn during the recent global rest@s. These downturns have been characterizednhipidhed product demand, production
overcapacity, high inventory levels and acceleratedion of average selling prices. Any future dawms could harm our business and
operating results. Furthermore, any significantiupin the semiconductor industry could resultnareased competition for access to third-
party foundry and assembly capacity. We are deperatethe availability of this capacity to manufaet and assemble our SoC solutions.
None of our thir-party foundry or assembly contractors has provaeslirances that adequate capacity will be avaitahls in the future.

The use of open source software in our productspgesses and technology may expose us to additiosies and compromise our
proprietary intellectual property

Our products, processes and technology sometiniez® @nd incorporate software that is subjectriampen source license. Open source
software is typically freely accessible, usable amatlifiable. Certain open source software licensesh as the GNU General Public License,
require a user who intends to distribute the opemce software as a component of the user’s sadtieadisclose publicly part or all of the
source code to the user’s software. In additiortageopen source software licenses require theafssmich software to make any derivative
works of the open source code available to othertgioms unfavorable to us or at no cost. This cdnjest previously proprietary software to
open source license terms.

While we monitor the use of open source softwareunproducts, processes and technology and epsare that no open source
software is used in such a way as to require giéstdose the source code to the related produstesses or technology when we do not wit
do so, such use could inadvertently occur. Addéilyn if a third-party software provider has incorpted certain types of open source softwar
into software we license from such third-party éoir products, processes or technology, we couldeucertain circumstances, be required to
disclose the source code to our products, procesgeshnology. This could harm our intellectuadgerty position and our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Some of our operations and a significant portion ofir customers and our subcontractors are locatedside of the United States,
which subjects us to additional risks, includingéneased complexity and costs of managing internatiboperations and geopolitical
instability.

We have research and development design centetsuaitess development offices in China, Japan,hS¢atea and Taiwan, and we
expect to continue to conduct business with congsathiat are located outside the United Statedcpkatly in Asia. Even customers of ours
that are based in the United States often useamimranufacturers based in Asia to manufacture ghetucts, and these contract
manufacturers typically purchase products direfttyn us. As a result of our international focus, faee numerous challenges and risks,
including:

e increased complexity and costs of managing internat operations
» longer and more difficult collection of receivahl

« difficulties in enforcing contracts general

e geopolitical and economic instability and militaxgnflicts;

» limited protection of our intellectual property aother asset:

» compliance with local laws and regulations and ticgrated changes in local laws and regulationduiling tax laws and
regulations
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« trade and foreign exchange restrictions and hitgréfs;
» travel restrictions

» timing and availability of import and export licezssand other governmental approvals, permits arddes, including export
classification requirement

» foreign currency exchange fluctuations relatinguo international operating activitie

» restrictions imposed by the U.S. government onadility to do business with certain companies océrntain countries as a result of
international political conflicts

» transportation delays and other consequences étifocal infrastructure, and disruptions, sucleage scale outages or
interruptions of service from utilities or telecomnications providers

» difficulties in staffing international operatior

» heightened risk of terrorist ac

* local business and cultural factors that differirour normal standards and practic
» differing employment practices and labor relatic

» regional health issues and natural disasters

» work stoppages

Our third-party contractors and their suppliers amoncentrated in South Korea, Taiwan and Japan,egion subject to earthquakes
and other natural disasters. Any disruption to tlogerations of these contractors could cause sigrafit delays in the production or
shipment of our products

The majority of our products are manufactured byegeive components from third-party contractocated in South Korea, Taiwan and
Japan. The risk of an earthquake or tsunami intBidatea, Taiwan, Japan and elsewhere in the Pa&iificregion is significant due to the
proximity of major earthquake fault lines. For exae) in December 2006 a major earthquake occurrdaiwan and in March 2011 a major
earthquake and tsunami occurred in Japan. Altheweggare not aware of any significant damage suffegedur third-party contractors as a
result of such natural disasters, the occurren@alditional earthquakes or other natural disasteud result in the disruption of our foundry
vendor or assembly and test capacity. Any disruptgsulting from such events could cause signifidatays in the production or shipment of
our products until we are able to shift our mantifing, assembling or testing from the affectedtastor to another third-party vendor. We
may not be able to obtain alternate capacity ooriahle terms, or at all.

If our operations are interrupted, our business amédputation could suffer.

Our operations and those of our manufacturers @reevable to interruption caused by technical bdeakns, computer hardware and
software malfunctions, software viruses, infradinee failures, fires, earthquakes, floods, powssés, telecommunications failures, terrorist
attacks, wars, Internet failures and other eveey®ihd our control. Any disruption in our servicgoperations could result in a reduction in
revenue or a claim for substantial damages agafstgardless of whether we are responsible &trfdilure. We rely on our computer
equipment, database storage facilities and otHeeaéquipment, which are located primarily in #ssmically active San Francisco Bay Area
and Taiwan. If we suffer a significant databaseetwork facility outage, our business could experéedisruption until we fully implement our
back-up systems.

We are an “emerging growth companydnd we cannot be certain if the reduced reportingguirements applicable to emerging grov
companies will make our ordinary shares less attiige to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetth@nJumpstart Our Business Startups Act, (the “JBBY, enacted in April 2012.
For as long as we continue to be an emerging groasttpany, we may take
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advantage of exemptions from various reporting irequents that are applicable to other public cormgmathat are not emerging growth
companies, including not being required to compighwthe auditor attestation requirements of Sectioa of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
(the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”), reduced disclosuregutions regarding executive compensation in ouogir reports and proxy statements and
exemptions from the requirements of holding a nidinig advisory vote on executive compensation &adeholder approval of any golden
parachute payments not previously approved. Weddoellan emerging growth company for up to five gealthough we could lose that status
sooner if our annual revenues exceed $1 billiowgfissue more than $1 billion in non-convertib&bdin a three year period, or if the market
value of our ordinary shares held by reffiliates exceeds $700 million (measured as ofdsebusiness day of our second fiscal quartes)of
January 31, 2014, the aggregate market value obralimary shares held by non-affiliates was apprately $841 million based upon the
closing price of our stock for such date on the AR Global Market. We cannot predict if investorsl find our ordinary shares less
attractive because we may rely on these exemptibssme investors find our ordinary shares letsetive as a result, there may be a less
active trading market for our ordinary shares amdstock price may be more volatile.

Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies tsmdelay adopting new or revised accounting statedantil such time as those
standards apply to private companies. We havedoahly elected not to avail ourselves of this extéonpfrom new or revised accounting
standards and, therefore, will be subject to tineesaew or revised accounting standards as othdicpugdmpanies that are not emerging gro
companies.

Our management has limited public company experienés a result of becoming a public company, we subject to additional
regulatory compliance requirements, including Semti 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and if fai# to maintain an effective system
of internal controls, we may not be able to accugbt report our financial results or prevent fraud.

We became a public company on October 10, 201hawe and will continue to incur significant legatcounting and other expenses
that we did not incur as a private company. Théviddals who constitute our management team hawiédd experience managing a publicly
traded company, and limited experience complyinity wie increasingly complex and changing laws jm@rtg to public companies. Our
management team and other personnel will needvotel@ substantial amount of time to compliance,\aa may not effectively or efficiently
manage our transition into a public company.

Rules and regulations such as the Sarbanes-Oxlelya¥e increased our legal and finance compliansés@nd made some activities
more time consuming and costly. For example, Sect®} of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that camagement report on, and our
independent auditors attest to, the effectivenéssininternal control structure and proceduredfifuancial reporting. Effective internal contr
are necessary for us to provide reliable finan@pbrts and effectively prevent fraud. Section d6¢hpliance may divert internal resources anc
will take a significant amount of time and effastdomplete. We may not be able to successfully ¢etmphe procedures and certification and
attestation requirements of Section 404 by the tiraewill be required to do so. However, our auditaill not be required to formally attest to
the effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting pursuant to Section 404 until we a0 longer an “emerging growth company”
as defined in the JOBS Act if we take advantagk®fJOBS Act exemptions available to us. In addjttbese Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requirements may be modified, supplemented or aptefrdm time to time. Implementing these changeg take a significant amount of time
and may require specific compliance training of personnel. In the future, we may discover areasiofnternal controls that need
improvement. If our auditors or we discover a mataveakness or significant deficiency, the disalesof that fact, even if quickly remedied,
could reduce the market’s confidence in our finahsiatements and harm our stock price. Any ingitidi provide reliable financial reports or
prevent fraud could harm our business. We may egattbe to effectively and timely implement necegsantrol changes and employee
training to ensure continued compliance with theb&aes-Oxley Act and other regulatory and repontégirements. Our recent growth rate
could present challenges to maintain the interoatrol and disclosure control standards applicébjeublic companies. If we fail to
successfully complete the procedures and certificand attestation requirements of Section 404, ior
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the future our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Firéal Officer or independent registered public actmg firm determines that our internal
controls over financial reporting are not effectasdefined under Section 404, we could be suljesanctions or investigations by The
NASDAQ Stock Market, the Securities and Exchangemfission, or SEC, or other regulatory authoritlegthermore, investor perceptions
our company may suffer, and this could cause drdeini the market price of our ordinary shares. é&enot assure you that we will be able to
fully comply with the requirements of the Sarbaedey Act or that management or our auditors wethclude that our internal controls are
effective in future periods. Irrespective of comaplce with Section 404, any failure of our interoahtrols could have a material adverse effect
on our stated results of operations and harm qutagion.

If we fail to hire additional finance personnel, sgingthen our financial reporting systems and infracture, and implement a new
enterprise resource planning system, we may noabke to timely and accurately report our financiabsults or comply with the
requirements of being a public company, includingrpliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and SEC rdpag requirements, which in turn
would significantly harm our reputation and our busess.

We intend to hire additional accounting and finapeesonnel with system implementation experienceSarbanes-Oxley Act
compliance expertise. Any inability to recruit amdiain such finance personnel would have an adwengact on our ability to accurately and
timely prepare our financial statements. We mayrweble to locate and hire qualified professionath wequisite technical and public comps
experience when and as needed. In addition, nevlogegs will require time and training to learn duisiness and operating processes and
procedures. If our finance and accounting orgaiumds unable for any reason to respond adequtddhye increased demands that will result
from being a public company, the quality and timesis of our financial reporting may suffer, whichuld result in the identification of mater
weaknesses in our internal controls. Any consegenesulting from inaccuracies or delays in ouoreg financial statements could cause thi
trading price of our ordinary shares to decline emgld harm our business, operating results arahéiial condition.

If we fail to strengthen our financial reportingsggms, infrastructure and internal control oveafficial reporting to meet the demands
will be placed upon us as a public company, inclgdhe requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, &g be unable to report our financial
results timely and accurately and prevent fraud.eifgect to incur significant expense and devotstsuitial management effort toward
ensuring compliance with Section 404.

We have implemented a new enterprise resource ipgnor ERP, system. Initial implementation of thisstem was completed in May
2013, but full implementation of the system remangoing. This project has and will continue touieg significant investment of capital and
human resources, the eegineering of many processes of our businesshandttention of many employees who would othenbieséocused ¢
other aspects of our business. Any disruptiongydedr deficiencies in the design and implememadicthe new ERP system could result in
potentially much higher costs than we had antieigaind could adversely affect our ability to depedod launch solutions, provide services,
fulfill contractual obligations, file reports witthe SEC in a timely manner, otherwise operate asimness or otherwise impact our controls
environment. Any of these consequences could hawalgerse effect on our results of operations arah€ial condition.

Changes to financial accounting standards may affear results of operations and could cause us tange our business practices.

We prepare our consolidated financial statementemdorm to generally accepted accounting prinsipte GAAP, in the United States.
These accounting principles are subject to intéagion by the American Institute of Certified Pebfccountants, the SEC and various bodies
formed to interpret and create accounting rulesragdlations. Changes in those accounting ruledaaa a significant effect on our financial
results and may affect our reporting of transastioompleted before a change is announced. Chamgjiesse rules or the questioning of cur
practices may adversely affect our reported firamneisults or the way we conduct our business.
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The complexity of calculating our tax provision magsult in errors that could result in restatemend$ our financial statements.

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands and perations are subject to income and transactiagstaxthe United States, China,
Hong Kong, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and oth&dietions in which we do business. Due to the dexify associated with the calculation
of our tax provision, we have hired independentadxisors to assist us. If we or our independenattvisors fail to resolve or fully understand
certain issues, there may be errors that couldtriesus having to restate our financial statemeRtsstatements are generally costly and could
adversely impact our results of operations or leamegative impact on the trading price of our cadjrshares.

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomessilting from examination of our income tax retuscould adversely affect our
results.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséflgcted if earnings are lower than anticipateddnrries where we have lower statutory
rates and higher than anticipated in countries @/ar have higher statutory rates, by changes imgh@tion of our deferred tax assets and
liabilities, or by changes in tax laws, regulatioascounting principles or interpretations theréofaddition, our income tax returns are subject
to continuous examination by the Internal RevenaiwiBe, or IRS, and other tax authorities. We ragulassess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations to deter the adequacy of our provision for income ta¥és cannot assure you that the
outcomes from these continuous examinations willhawe an adverse effect on our operating resottdiaancial condition.

Unfavorable tax law changes, an unfavorable goverantal review of our tax returns, changes in our gggaphical earnings mix or
imposition of withholding taxes on repatriated eangs could adversely affect our effective tax rated our operating results.

Our operations are subject to certain taxes, ss¢hc@me and transaction taxes, in the Caymands|ehe United States, China, Hong
Kong, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and other juriggtis in which we do business. A change in thddas in the jurisdictions in which we do
business, including an increase in tax rates @dxerse change in the treatment of an item of ikcormrexpense, possibly with retroactive
effect, could result in a material increase indh#unt of taxes we incur. In particular, past psg® have been made to change certain U.¢
laws relating to foreign entities with U.S. connes, which may include us. For example, previogstyposed legislation has considered
treating certain foreign corporations as U.S. ddinesrporations (and therefore taxable on alhgfit worldwide income) if the management
and control of the foreign corporation occurs, diseor indirectly, primarily within the United Stes. If such legislation were enacted, we
could, depending on the precise form, be subject & taxation notwithstanding our domicile outside United States. In addition, the U.S.
government has proposed various other changeg td.8. international tax system, certain of whiohld adversely impact foreign-based
multinational corporate groups, and increased epfoent of U.S. international tax laws. Although eaf these proposed U.S. tax law char
has yet been enacted, and they may never be enadtedr current forms, it is possible that thesether changes in the U.S. tax laws could
significantly increase our U.S. income tax lialilit the future.

We are subject to periodic audits or other revibws$ax authorities in the jurisdictions in which wenduct our activities. Any such audit,
examination or review requires management’s timerts internal resources and, in the event ofréfavorable outcome, may result in
additional tax liabilities or other adjustmentsotar historical results.

Because we conduct operations in multiple jurisdingt, our effective tax rate is influenced by theoaints of income and expense
attributed to each such jurisdiction. If such antewmere to change so as to increase the amounts ofet income subject to taxation in higher
tax jurisdictions, or if we were to commence opiera in jurisdictions assessing relatively higheer tates, our effective tax rate could be
adversely affected. In addition, we may determia it is advisable from time to time to repatriatgnings from subsidiaries under
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circumstances that could give rise to impositiopatentially significant withholding taxes by theigdictions in which such amounts were
earned, without our receiving the benefit of anfgetting tax credits, which could also adverselpaat our effective tax rate.

We may be classified as a passive foreign investngempany which could result in adverse U.S. fedérecome tax consequences for
U.S. holders of our ordinary shares.

Based on the current and anticipated valuatioruoBssets and the composition of our income aret@sse do not expect to be
considered a passive foreign investment companyH€, for U.S. federal income tax purposes for2Qt4 fiscal year or the foreseeable
future. However, a separate determination must &genat the close of each taxable year as to whethare a PFIC for that taxable year, and
we cannot assure you that we will not be a PFI®Eor2015 fiscal year or any future taxable yeardét current law, a non-U.S. corporation
will be considered a PFIC for any taxable yeaither (a) at least 75% of its gross income is passicome or (b) at least 50% of the value of
its assets, generally based on an average of #réegly values of the assets during a taxable yeatfributable to assets that produce or are
held for the production of passive income. PFIQustalepends on the composition of our assets ania and the value of our assets,
including, among others, a pro rata portion ofitftdme and assets of each subsidiary in which we dwectly or indirectly, at least 25% by
value of the subsidiary’s equity interests, fromdito time. Because we currently hold, and exmecbhtinue to hold following this offering, a
substantial amount of cash or cash equivalentsbanduse the calculation of the value of our aseaisbe based in part on the value of our
ordinary shares which may fluctuate after this rifig and may fluctuate considerably given that reaigkices of technology companies
historically often have been volatile, we may teFAC for any taxable year. If we were treated BEEC for any taxable year during which a
U.S. holder held ordinary shares, certain adver&e féderal income tax consequences could applsucoh U.S. holder. See “Taxation—U.S.
Federal Income Taxation—PFIC.”

Fluctuations in exchange rates between and among tlurrencies of the countries in which we do busisemay adversely affect our
operating results.

Our sales have been historically denominated in to8ars. An increase in the value of the U.Slatakelative to the currencies of the
countries in which our end customers operate ciooyichir the ability of our end customers to coseefively integrate our SoCs into their
devices which may materially affect the demandofar solutions and cause these end customers toedhleir orders, which would adversely
affect our revenue and business. We may experienegn exchange gains or losses due to the vityabil other currencies compared to the
U.S. dollar. A significant portion of our solutioase sold to camera manufacturers located outsel®hited States, primarily in Asia. Sales to
customers in Asia accounted for approximately 88%uo revenue in fiscal year 2014. Because mosuoiend customers or their ODM
manufacturers are located in Asia, we anticipaag ahmajority of our future revenue will continwedome from sales to that region. Although ¢
large percentage of our sales are made to customAssa, we believe that a significant numberh# products designed by these customers
and incorporating our SoCs are then sold to conssuigiebally.

A significant number of our employees are locatedsia, principally Taiwan and China. Thereforgaation of our payroll as well as
certain other operating expenses are paid in cciegmther than the U.S. dollar, such as the NewdraDollar and the Chinese Yuan
Renminbi. Our operating results are denominatdd. $ dollars and the difference in exchange ratese period compared to another may
directly impact period-to-period comparisons of operating results. Furthermore, currency exchaagss have been especially volatile in the
recent past and these currency fluctuations mayentalifficult for us to predict our operating résu

We have not implemented any hedging strategiedtigate risks related to the impact of fluctuationgurrency exchange rates. Even if
we were to implement hedging strategies, not eegppsure can be hedged and, where hedges areglatsbased on expected foreign
exchange exposure, they are based on forecasth wiaig vary or which may later prove to have be@agdnrate. Failure to hedge successfully
or anticipate currency risks accurately could aselgraffect our operating results.
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We may make acquisitions in the future that coul@gipt our business, cause dilution to our sharelers, reduce our financial
resources and harm our business.

In the future, we may acquire other businesseslymts or technologies. We have not made any atiguisito date and do not have any
agreements or commitments for any specific acqoirsdt this time. Our ability to make and succeldgfategrate acquisitions is unproven. If
we complete acquisitions, we may not strengthercoapetitive position or achieve our goals in agliymanner, or at all, and these
acquisitions may be viewed negatively by our cugi@nfinancial markets or investors. In additiomy acquisitions we make could lead to
difficulties in integrating personnel, technologaw operations from the acquired businesses arafaiming and motivating key personnel
from these businesses. Acquisitions may disrupbogoing operations, divert management from theimary responsibilities, subject us to
additional liabilities, increase our expenses ahkbesely impact our business, operating resutignitial condition and cash flows. Acquisitic
may also reduce our cash available for operatiodsogher uses, and could also result in an incrisaamortization expense related to
identifiable assets acquired, potentially dilutisguances of equity securities or the incurrenatebt, any of which could harm our business.

We cannot predict our future capital needs, and may not be able to obtain additional financing tarid our operations.

We may need to raise additional funds in the futArey required additional financing may not be dafslie on terms acceptable to us, ¢
all. If we raise additional funds by issuing equsBcurities or convertible debt, investors may erpee significant dilution of their ownership
interest, and the newly-issued securities may higtes senior to those of the holders of our orgirehares. If we raise additional funds by
obtaining loans from third parties, the terms aisth financing arrangements may include negativerzants or other restrictions on our
business that could impair our operational flextipidnd would also require us to incur interestenge. If additional financing is not available
when required or is not available on acceptablasewe may have to scale back our operations atr dion production activities, and we may
not be able to expand our business, develop omeehaur products, take advantage of business appties or respond to competitive
pressures which could result in lower revenue a&ddce the competitiveness of our products.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Ordinary Shares
The market price of our ordinary shares may be wilks, which could cause the value of your investméa decline.

Since our initial public offering in October 201Be market price of our ordinary shares has begimhiolatile. The trading price of our
ordinary shares is likely to remain volatile andicbbe subject to wide fluctuations in price inpesse to various factors, some of which are
beyond our control. These factors include:

» changes in financial estimates, including our aibtlh meet our future revenue and operating payfibss projections

« fluctuations in our operating results or those thieo semiconductor or comparable compar

» fluctuations in the economic performance or maviedtiations of companies perceived by investorsstadmparable to u
e economic developments in the semiconductor indusrg whole

e general economic conditions and slow or negatieevtr of related market:

e announcements by us or our competitors of acqoistinew products, significant contracts or ordessymercial relationships or
capital commitments

e our ability to develop and market new and enhamsodgtions on a timely basi
e commencement of or our involvement in litigatir
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« disruption to our operation

e any major change in our board of directors or manamt;

» political or social conditions in the markets whare sell our product:
» changes in governmental regulations;

» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatioasduyities analyst

In addition, the stock market in general, and tlzekat for semiconductor and other technology corigsaim particular, have experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated or disproportionate to the ojperaerformance of those companies.
These broad market and industry factors may cdiesmarket price of our ordinary shares to decraag@ardless of our actual operating
performance. These trading price fluctuations may make it more difficult for us to use our ordipahares as a means to make acquisitions
or to use options to purchase our ordinary sharasitact and retain employees. If the market pofogur ordinary shares declines, you may
realize any return on your investment in us and fnag some or all of your investment. In additionthe past, following periods of volatility
in the overall market and the market price of a pany’s securities, securities class action litigathas often been instituted against these
companies. This litigation, if instituted against gould result in substantial costs and a divarefoour management’s attention and resources

If securities analysts or industry analysts downgleour ordinary shares, publish negative researatreports or fail to publish report:
about our business, our stock price and trading wwwie could decline.

The trading market for our ordinary shares williuenced by the research and reports that industsecurities analysts publish about
us, our business and our market. If one or moréysisaadversely changes their recommendation réggualir stock or our competitors’ stock,
our stock price would likely decline. If one or reanalysts cease coverage of us or fail to regqupanblish reports on us, we could lose
visibility in the financial markets which in turroald cause our stock price or trading volume tdidec

Our actual operating results may differ significalytfrom our guidance and investor expectations, whiwould likely cause our stock
price to decline

From time to time, we may release guidance in amniags releases, earnings conference calls onvaites regarding our future
performance that represent our management’s estinagtof the date of release. If given, this guidawhich will include forward-looking
statements, will be based on projections prepayeslb management. Projections are based upon aetushlssumptions and estimates that,
while presented with numerical specificity, areérdntly subject to significant business, economit @ompetitive uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are beyond our confrbé principal reason that we expect to releasdagee is to provide a basis for our
management to discuss our business outlook witlystsaand investors. With or without our guidar@ealysts and other investors may pub
expectations regarding our business, financialoperdnce and results of operations. We do not a@gptesponsibility for any projections or
reports published by any such third persons.

Guidance is necessarily speculative in nature jiaceh be expected that some or all of the assumgif the guidance furnished by us
will not materialize or will vary significantly fnm actual results. If our actual performance dogsmeaet or exceed our guidance or investor
expectations, the trading price of our ordinaryrehas likely to decline.

The price of our ordinary shares could decreaseaaesult of shares being sold in the market.

Sales of a substantial number of our ordinary shewr¢éhe public market, or the perception thatéhsses might occur, could cause the
market price of our ordinary shares to declinet&@etholders of our ordinary shares are entitledgbts with respect to registration of such
shares under the Securities Act pursuant to atragien
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rights agreement between such holders and usclif lsalders, by exercising their registration riglstsll a large number of shares, the market
price for our ordinary shares could be adversdiycadd. If we file a registration statement for thepose of selling additional shares to raise
capital and are required to include shares helthége holders pursuant to the exercise of theistragjon rights, our ability to raise capital v
be impaired.

We filed registration statements on Form S-8 uilderSecurities Act to register shares for issuamcker our 2004 Stock Plan, 2012
Equity Incentive Plan and 2012 Employee Stock PagetPlan. Our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan and 20hpl&yee Stock Purchase Plan
provide for automatic increases in the shares veddor issuance under these plans which couldtriesadditional dilution to our shareholde
These shares can be freely sold in the public manken issuance and vesting, subject to restristmovided under the terms of the applicable
plan and/or the option agreements entered into @ytion holders.

We may also issue ordinary shares or securitiegestible into ordinary shares from time to timecionnection with a financing,
acquisition or otherwise. Any such issuance coeflilt in substantial dilution to our existing sheielers and cause the trading price of our
stock to decline.

A limited number of shareholders will have the aityl to influence the outcome of director electioasd other matters requiring
shareholder approval

As of January 31, 2014, our executive officers dineictors and their affiliates beneficially own,thre aggregate, approximately 8.7% of
our outstanding ordinary shares. These sharehgldfi¢hey acted together, could exert substantifllence over matters requiring approval by
our shareholders, including electing directors,mithg new compensation plans and approving mergetgjisitions or other business
combination transactions. This concentration of eship may discourage, delay or prevent a changerifol of our company, which could
deprive our shareholders of an opportunity to mexai premium for their stock as part of a salewfapmpany and might reduce our stock
price. These actions may be taken even if thepppesed by our other shareholders.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our ordinatyases and, consequently, a shareholder’s abilityatchieve a return on its
investment will depend on appreciation in the prioéour ordinary shares.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividenasioordinary shares and do not currently intenda so for the foreseeable future.
We currently intend to invest our future earnin§any, to fund our growth. Therefore, shareholdmes not likely to receive any dividends on
their ordinary shares for the foreseeable futudkthe success of an investment in our ordinaryeshaill depend upon any future appreciation
in their value. There is no guarantee that ournangi shares will appreciate in value or even mairttee price at which our shareholders have
purchased their shares. Investors seeking castiedigts should not purchase our ordinary shares.

Provisions of our memorandum and articles of assaodn and Cayman Islands corporate law may discogesor prevent an
acquisition of us which could adversely affect thelue of our ordinary shares.

Provisions of our memorandum and articles of asdioci and Cayman Islands law may have the effedetafying or preventing a chan
of control or changes in our management. Theseigioms include the following:

» the division of our board of directors into thréasses

» the right of our board of directors to elect a dice to fill a vacancy created by the expansionwfboard of directors or due to the
resignation or departure of an existing board men

» prohibition of cumulative voting in the election @ifectors which would otherwise allow less thamaority of shareholders to el
director candidate:

» the requirement for the advance notice of nomimatimr election to our board of directors or fooposing matters that can be ac
upon at a sharehold’ meeting;
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» the ability of our board of directors to issue,hwitit shareholder approval, such amounts of preferehares as the board of
directors deems necessary and appropriate wittsteetby our board of directors, which rights cdagdsenior to those of our
ordinary shares

» the elimination of the rights of shareholders tlh @special meeting of shareholders and to takieraby written consent in lieu of
meeting; anc

» the required approval of a special resolution efghareholders, being a two-thirds vote of shagéthy shareholders present and
voting at a shareholder meeting, to alter or anthagrovisions of our pc-offering memorandum and articles of associal

Holders of our ordinary shares may face difficulsan protecting their interests because we are irparated under Cayman Islands
law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amenddd@stated memorandum and articles of associdijothe Companies Law (as the
same may be supplemented or amended from timm#&) Bf the Cayman Islands and by the common latkefCayman Islands. The rights of
our shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilitiesur directors under Cayman Islands law areasatlearly established as under statutes or
judicial precedent in existence in jurisdictionghe United States. In particular, the Cayman tiddmas a less developed body of securities
than the U.S. and provides significantly less it to investors. There is no legislation speailly dedicated to the rights of investors in
securities and thus no statutorily defined privatase of action specific to investors such as tposé@ded under the Securities Act of 1933 or
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 of the U.Saddition, shareholders of Cayman Islands compan#snot have standing to initiate
shareholder derivative actions in U.S. federal tourherefore, you may have more difficulty in greting your interests in the face of actions
by our management, directors or controlling shalddrs than would shareholders of a corporationripe@ted in a jurisdiction in the United
States due to the comparatively less developedaafiCayman Islands law in this area.

Shareholders of Cayman Islands exempted compamniels,as our company, have no general rights unaigm@n Islands law to inspect
corporate records and accounts or to obtain cayfiksts of shareholders of the company. Our doechave discretion under our articles of
association to determine whether or not, and unthat conditions, our corporate records may be iciggeby our shareholders, but are not
obliged to make them available to our shareholdérs may make it more difficult for you to obtaime information needed to establish any
facts necessary for a shareholder motion or taisplioxies from other shareholders in connectidtin & proxy contest.

Subject to limited exceptions, under Cayman Isldads a minority shareholder may not bring a ddnxaaction against the board of
directors.

Holders of our ordinary shares may have difficulgbtaining or enforcing a judgment against us because are incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands.

It may be difficult or impossible for you to brirag action against us in the Cayman Islands if yaliete your rights have been infringed
under U.S. securities laws. There is no statutecggnition in the Cayman Islands of judgments olet@in the United States, although the
courts of the Cayman Islands will in certain cir@tamces recognize and enforce a non-penal judgofienforeign court of competent
jurisdiction without retrial on the merits. Whiledre is no binding authority on this point, thidikely to include, in certain circumstances
nonpenal judgment of a United States court imposingpaetary award based on the civil liability prowiss of the U.S. federal securities la
The Grand Court of the Cayman Islands may staygaaiags if concurrent proceedings are being broelgktvhere. There is uncertainty as to
whether the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands woeddgnize or enforce judgments of United Statestsabtained against us predicated
upon the civil liability provisions of the secuds laws of the United States or any state themafrhether the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands would hear original actions brought in @&yman Islands against us predicated upon theigesuaws of the United States or any s
thereof.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in Sa@ltara, California, consisting of approximately@® square feet of office space undel
a lease that expires in April 2018. This facilifcammodates our principal sales, marketing, rebeand development, finance, and
administration activities. We also lease approxetyab4,000 square feet of office space in Hsindfaiwan under lease agreements that
automatically renew each year. These Taiwan faslihiccommodate research and development, busieespment, operations, and
administration support. We lease approximately @3 gquare feet of office space in Shanghai and Bteen China, under leases that expire in
November 2017 and April 2014, respectively, to suppesearch and development and business devetdpWie lease additional facilities
Hong Kong for business development and inventometwausing and in Japan and South Korea for out lngsiness development personnel.

We believe that our existing facilities are wellimained and in good operating condition, and afécsent for our needs for the
foreseeable future. The following table lists owjon locations and primary usage as of Januar@14:

Approximate

Square
Major Locations Footage Usage
United States
Santa Clara, California 35,000 Corporate Headquarters; Sales; Marketing; ReseardlDevelopment; Finance;
Administration
Asia Pacific:
Hsinchu, Taiwatr 54,000 Research and Development; Business Developmenta@mes; Administratiot
Shanghai, Chin 15,00C Research and Development; Business Develop
Shenzhen, Chin 8,00C Research and Development; Business Develop
Kowloon, Hong Kong 4,00C Business Development; Warehous
Shir-Yokohama, Japa 4,00C Business Developme
SeongNam, South Kore 2,000 Business Developme

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are not engaged in any material legal procesdanghis time.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Ordinary Shares

Our ordinary shares have been traded on the NASGASDal Market under the symbol “AMBA” since Octolids, 2012. Prior to that
date, there was no public trading market for odirary shares. The following table sets forth,tfer periods indicated, the high and low sales
prices per ordinary share as reported by the NASBAGbal Market:

Price Range
High Low
Fourth Quarter Fiscal 2014 $36.4¢ $19.5¢
Third Quarter Fiscal 201 $22.67 $13.1¢
Second Quarter Fiscal 20 $19.4¢ $12.94
First Quarter Fiscal 201 $16.0( $ 9.04
Fourth Quarter Fiscal 201 $13.4: $ 7.4z
Third Quarter Fiscal 2013 (from October 10, 20 $ 7.4z $ 5.5¢

On March 26, 2014, there were 68 shareholders ofemorded ordinary shares. We cannot estimatauh#er of beneficial owners sir
many brokers and other institutions hold our sharebehalf of shareholders. On March 26, 2014|gbkereported sale price of our stock was
$26.84 per ordinary share as reported by the NASBAGpal Market.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsioordinary shares and do not currently intenda so in the foreseeable future.

Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed to dleciting material” or “filed” or incorporated byeference in future filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or subjedtediabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Eanpe Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”) except as shall be expressly sehfoy specific reference in such filing.
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The following graph shows a comparison from Octdl®r2012 (the date our ordinary shares commenmaddg on the NASDAQ)

through January 31, 2014 of the cumulative tot@irrefor our ordinary shares, the NASDAQ CompoBitdex and the Philadelphia
Semiconductor Index. The comparisons in the grapthistorical and are not intended to forecasteoinbicative of possible future

performance of our ordinary shares.

Comparison of 15 months Cumulative Total Return
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10/10/201. 10/31/201. 1/31/201: 4/30/201: 7/31/201: 10/31/201
Ambarella, Inc 10C 119.1 164.4 226.1 273.¢ 339.1
NASDAQ Composite 10C 97.€ 103.( 109.1 118.¢ 128.¢
PHLX Semiconductor Inde 10C 99.7 112.% 120.¢ 129.¢ 137.¢

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer
None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financiatadas of and for the last five fiscal years, dmblgd be read in conjunction with Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” and ltemR8nancial Statements and
Supplementary Datagnd other financial data included elsewhere inrdyrt. Our historical results of operations asemecessarily indicati
of results of operations to be expected for anyriuperiod.

Selected Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share datz

Revenue $157,60¢ $121,06t¢ $97,25) $94,73¢ $71,52¢
Income from operation $ 27,91 $ 19,90¢ $11,25¢ $15,47: $12,94¢
Net income $ 25,65¢ $ 18,18¢ $ 9,821 $13,92¢ $13,28¢
Net income per share attributable to ordinary dhalders:

Basic $ 0.9:¢ $ 0.64 $ 0.37 $ 0.54 $ 0.51

Diluted $ 0.8t $ 0.6C $ 0.3C $ 0.5C $ 0.4¢

Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

As of January 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted $143,39° $100,49° $59,46: $42,13¢ $ 31,59¢
Working capital 151,83« 108,31 54,87¢ 35,76« 20,14¢
Total asset 183,30° 138,60: 81,73¢ 64,13: 47,76¢
Total liabilities 26,94¢ 26,27 24,39( 25,96¢ 25,92¢
Redeemable convertible preference sh — — 50,90( 39,27: 39,27:
Total shareholde’ equity (deficit) 156,36: 112,33. 6,44¢ (1,109 (17,437

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

We are a leading developer of semiconductor praegs®lutions for video that enable high-definitiam HD, video capture, sharing and
display. We combine our processor design capaslitiith our expertise in video and image procesaiggrithms and software to provide a
technology platform that is designed to be easilable across multiple applications and enablelrapd efficient product development. Our
system-on-a-chip, or SoC, designs fully integrae\itleo processing, image processing, audio prougssid system functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qualiifferentiated functionality and low power congption.

We sell our solutions to leading original desigmenfacturers, or ODMs, and original equipment mactufiers, or OEMs, globally. We
refer to ODMs as our customers and OEMs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahixt otherwise requires. In the
camera market, our solutions enable the creatidngbf-quality video content for wearable sports eeas, automotive aftermarket cameras,
Internet Protocol, or IP, security cameras, andazaders. In the infrastructure market, our soluiefficiently manage IP video traffic,
broadcast encoding, transcoding and IP video dgligpplications.

50



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

Our sales cycles typically require a significantastment of time and a substantial expendituresdurces before we can realize revenu
from the sale of our solutions, if any. Our typisales cycle consists of a multi-month sales anéldpment process involving our customers’
system designers and management along with ows patsonnel and software engineers. If succegbfslprocess culminates in a customer’s
decision to use our solutions in its system, wiriehrefer to as a design win. Our sales effortdygrieally directed to the OEM of the product
that will incorporate our video and image procegsolution, but the eventual design and incorporatif our SoC into the product may be
handled by an ODM on behalf of the OEM. Volume prcttbn may begin within six to 18 months after aiga win, depending on the
complexity of our customer’s product and otherdasupon which we may have little or no influen@&ce one of our solutions has been
incorporated into a customer’s design, we beliénat our solution is likely to remain a componentha customer’s product for its life cycle
because of the time and expense associated wigkiggiing a product or substituting an alternatsletson. Conversely, a design loss to a
competitor will likely preclude any opportunity féuture revenue from such customer’s product.

Fiscal Year 2014 Financial Highlights and Trends

* We recorded revenue of $157.6 million, an increds#% as compared to fiscal year 2013. The inereasr the prior year was
primarily due to higher demand in our IP securitygl avearable sports camera markets. The increaspavaally offset by a year
over year decline in revenues from the automotigiafrastructure markets. The decline in revemamfthe automotive market
was primarily due to the late roll out of new A7Ilbased camera product and competitive pressurbe &w end of the market. T
decreased revenue in the infrastructure marketdwago weak macro market conditions in the UnitedeS and Europe resulting
lower capital expenditures for video encoding cm@tuipment

* We recorded operating income of $27.9 million, meréase of 40% as compared to fiscal year 2013gpily due to continuing
growth in revenue, as well as efficient contropodduct costs and operating expen

* We generated cash flows from operating activitie®32.4 million in fiscal year 2014, as comparei®.5 million in fiscal year
2013. The increase was primarily due to increaggdncome, adjusted for increased non-cash stoskebeompensation and
depreciation expenses. The increase was alsouttble to improved accounts receivable collectiomfour major customers and
increased deferred revenue. The increase in cawis from operating activities was partially offégtincreased inventory purcha
to support continuing growth of sales and decreasedued liabilities associated with the timingpafyments to supplier

* In March 2013, we entered into a lease agreemermipioroximately 35,000 square feet for our new &&itara, California
headquarters. The lease has an initial five-year snd terminates in April 2018. The monthly basict obligation for this facility
initially will be approximately $44,550, increasiagnually to approximately $65,400 in 2017. Therage monthly basic rent
expense over the term of the lease will be appratéiy $59,800

Factors Affecting Our Performance

Design WinsWe closely monitor design wins by customer and readket. We consider design wins to be criticaluo foture success,
although the revenue generated by each designaminvary significantly. Our long-term sales expeaota are based on forecasts from
customers and internal estimations of customer ddrfectoring in the expected time to market for enstomer products incorporating our
solutions and associated revenue potential.

Pricing, Product Cost and MargifQur pricing and margins depend on the volumes hedeatures of the solutions we provide to our
customers. Additionally, we make significant inveents in new solutions for both cost improvements$ mew features that we expect to drive
revenue and maintain margins. In general, solutions
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incorporated into more complex configurations, sastthose used in the infrastructure market, hagleeh prices and higher gross margins as
compared to solutions sold into the camera mafket.average selling price, or ASP, can vary by reaakd application due to marksgiecific
supply and demand, the maturation of products lagthén previous years and the launch of new praduct

We continually monitor the cost of our solutions we rely on third-party manufacturers for the prattbn of our products, we maintain
a close relationship with these suppliers to cauatity monitor production yields, component costd dasign efficiencies.

Shifting Consumer Preferenc&ur revenue is subject to consumer preferenceardegy form factor and functionality, and how those
preferences impact the video and image capturéretegcs that we support. For example, improved $phane video capture capabilities, and
the rapid adoption by consumers, led to the dedfrocket video cameras aimed at the video andémapture market. The current video an
image capture market is now characterized by agrealume of more specialized video and imageweapdevices that are less likely to be
replaced with smartphones, such as wearable spateras, automotive aftermarket cameras, and IRigecameras. This increasing
specialization of video capture devices has chaongedustomer base and end markets and has impaatedvenue. In the future, we expect
further changes in the market to continue to impactbusiness performance.

Continued Concentration of Revenue by End Mattistorically, our revenue has been significantipoentrated in a small number of
end markets. In fiscal year 2010, the majority of @venue came from the pocket video, camcordeirgrastructure markets. Over the last
four years, we have continued to provide solutimnghe camcorder and infrastructure markets, latt have expanded our focus to include th
wearable sports, automotive aftermarket, and IBré@gacamera markets. We believe our entry intséhmarkets will continue to facilitate
revenue growth and customer diversification. Whikewill continue to expand our end market expossueh as to wearable cameras, we
anticipate that sales to a limited number of endketa will continue to account for a significanrpentage of our total revenue for the
foreseeable future. Our end market concentrationeaase our financial performance to fluctuate isicemtly from period to period based on
the success or failure of video capture marketghith we compete. In addition, we derive a sigaificportion of our revenue from a limited
number of ODMs who build products on behalf ofraifed number of OEMs and from a limited number &NBs to whom we ship
directly. We believe that our operating resultstf@ foreseeable future will continue to dependales to a relatively small number of
customers.

Ability to Capitalize on Connectivity Trenlllobile connected devices are ubiquitous today dayl #n increasingly prominent role in
consumers’ lives. The constant connectivity proditg these devices has created a demand for catheleictronic peripherals such as video
and image capture devices. Our ability to capiatin these trends by supporting our end customdheidevelopment of connected periphe
that seamlessly cooperate with other connectedtdgwnd allow consumers to distribute and shaeovéahd images with online media
platforms is critical for our success. We have add&eless communication functionality into ourwidns for wearable sports cameras,
automotive aftermarket and IP security cameras.cbmebination of our compression technology witheléss connectivity enables wireless
video streaming and uploading of videos and ima&géise Internet. Our solutions enable IP secumyera systems to stream video content tc
either cloud infrastructure or connected mobileides, and our solutions for wearable sports camadlas consumers to quickly stream or
upload video and images to social media platforms.

Sales VoluméA typical design win can generate a wide rangeatdssvolumes for our solutions, depending on tlierearket demand for
our customers’ products. This can depend on sefaadrs, including the reputation of the end costg market penetration, product
capabilities, size of the end market that the pcodddresses and our end customers’ ability taiseit products. In certain cases, we may
provide volume discounts on sales of our solutistich may be offset by lower manufacturing costated to higher volumes. In general, out
customers with greater market penetration and bietéending tend to develop products that geneeagel volumes over the product life cycle.
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Customer Product Life Cycl#Ve estimate our customers’ product life cycles asethe customer, type of product and end mahket.
general, products launched in the camera market slaorter life cycles than those sold into theastitucture market. We typically commence
commercial shipments from six to 18 months follogvandesign win; however, in some markets, moretlgngroduct and development cycles
are possible, depending on the scope and natuhe @iroject. A portable consumer device typicalg la product life cycle of six to 18 months.
In the infrastructure market, the product life @ chn range from 24 to 60 months.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our historical opérg results for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Revenue $157,60¢ $121,06¢ $97,257

Cost of revenu 57,76 40,40t 32,45¢

Gross profit 99,84% 80,66 64,79¢
Operating expense

Research and developmt 48,77, 42,82¢ 37,61¢

Selling, general and administrati 23,15: 17,92¢ 15,92¢

Total operating expens: 71,93( 60,75¢ 53,54+

Income from operation 27,91, 19,90¢ 11,25t

Other income (loss), ni (22) 13€ (90)

Income before income tax 27,89t 20,04: 11,16¢

Provision for income taxe 2,241 1,85¢ 1,344

Net income $ 25,65¢ $ 18,18¢ $ 9,821

The following table sets forth our historical opérg results as a percentage of revenue of eaelitkm for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012

Revenue 10C% 10C% 10C%
Cost of revenu 37 _ 33 33
Gross profit 63 67 67

Operating expense

Research and developmt 31 35 39
Selling, general and administrati 15 _15 _16
Total operating expens: 46 50 55
Income from operation 17 17 12
Other income (loss), n = = =
Income before income tax 17 17 12
Provision for income taxe 1 _ 2 1

Net income _16% _15% _11%

Revenue

We derive substantially all of our revenue from sla¢e of HD video and image processing SoC solstiorDEMs and ODMs, either
directly or through our logistics providers. OurCSsolutions have been used in the
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camera and infrastructure markets, and we expesettill be the primary markets for our solutioosthe foreseeable future. We derive a
substantial portion of our revenue from sales madieectly through our logistics provider, Wintebficroelectronics Co., Ltd., or Wintech, ¢
directly to one large ODM customer, Chicony Elentes Co., Ltd., or Chicony.

We typically experience seasonal fluctuations inquarterly revenue with our third fiscal quartermally being the highest revenue
quarter. This fluctuation has been driven primdpijyincreased sales in the camera market as otoroass build inventories in preparation for
the holiday shopping season. More generally, oarage selling prices fluctuate based on the mxunfsolutions sold in a period which
reflects the impact of both changes in unit safesxwting solutions as well as the introduction @ales of new solutions. Our solutions are
typically characterized by a life cycle that begivith higher average selling prices and lower vasifollowed by broader market adoption,
higher volumes and average selling prices thaloaver than initial levels.

The end markets into which we sell our productsh&een significant changes as consumer preferbagesevolved in response to new
technologies. As a result, the composition of @wenue may differ meaningfully during periods attieology or consumer preference chan
We expect shifts in consumer use of video captudhtinue to change over time, as more specialisedcases emerge and video capture
continues to proliferate.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Cost of revenue includes the cost of materials sisclvafers processed by thjperty foundries, costs associated with packagissgmbly
and test, and our manufacturing support operasach as logistics, planning and quality assura@ost of revenue also includes indirect cost:
such as warranty, inventory valuation reservesahdr general overhead costs.

We expect that our gross margin may fluctuate fp@mod to period as a result of changes in avesatimg price, product mix and the
introduction of new products by us or our compesitdn general, solutions incorporated into mommplex configurations, such as those used
in the infrastructure market, have higher priced ligher gross margins, as compared to solutioldsisto the camera market. As
semiconductor products mature and unit volumes teotdistomers increase, their average selling ptigaically decline. These declines may
be paired with improvements in manufacturing yiedds lower wafer, packaging and test costs, whifdebsome of the margin reduction that
could result from lower selling prices. We beligkiat our gross margin will decline in the futurevas continue to penetrate the highly
competitive camera market and as we launch outisnliinto new markets.

Research and Development

Research and development expense consists primodplgrsonnel costs, including salaries, stock-hasenpensation and employee
benefits. The expense also includes costs of dpredat incurred in connection with our collaborasievith our foundry vendors, costs of
licensing intellectual property from third parties product development, costs of development édtvsare and hardware tools, cost of
fabrication of mask sets for prototype productsl aliocated depreciation and facility expensesrédearch and development costs are
expensed as incurred. We expect our research ametbgenent expense to increase in absolute doliavgeacontinue to enhance and expanc
product features and offerings.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of personnel costs, including salarseck-based compensation and
employee benefits for our sales, marketing, finahcenan resources, information technology and aidinative personnel. The expense also
includes professional service costs related to
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accounting, tax, legal services, and allocatedeatggtion and facility expenses. We expect ourrsghixpense to increase in absolute dollars a
we expand the size of our sales and marketing @rgton to support our anticipated growth. We exmer general and administrative expenst
to increase in absolute dollars and as a percamtvehue as we develop the infrastructure necessanyerate as a public company, which
includes increased audit and legal fees, costsrtply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the suded regulations applicable to companies
listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market, investor relasacosts, and higher insurance premiums.

Other Income (Loss), Net
Other income (loss), net consists primarily of gai loss from foreign currency transactions angegsurements.

Provision for Income Taxes

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands and adrimisiness in several countries such as the USiteigs, China, Taiwan, Hong
Kong, South Korea and Japan, and we are subjeéakation in those jurisdictions. As such, our waiilde operating income is subject to
varying tax rates and our effective tax rate ihhiglependent upon the geographic distributionwfaarnings or losses and the tax laws and
regulations in each geographical region. Consetyyameé have experienced lower effective tax ratea aubstantial percentage of our
operations are conducted in lower-tax jurisdictidhsur operational structure was to change irhsmenanner that would increase the amount
of operating income subject to taxation in higtretjurisdictions, or if we were to commence operagiin jurisdictions assessing relatively
higher tax rates, our effective tax rate couldtilate significantly on a quarterly basis and/oateersely affected.

Comparison of the Fiscal Years Ended January 311202013 and 2012

Revenue
Change
Year Ended January 31, 2014 2013
2014 2013 2012 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Revenue $157,60¢ $121,06¢ $97,257 $36,54: 30% $23,80¢ 24%

Revenue increased for the fiscal year ended Jardlarg014 primarily due to higher demand in ousd@urity and wearable sports
camera markets, partially offset by a year over gealine in revenues from the automotive and stftecture markets. The decline in revenue
from the automotive market was primarily due to ltite roll out of new A7LA based camera product aomhpetitive pressures at the low end
of the market. The decreased revenue in the infretsire market was due to weak macro market camditin the United States and Europe
resulting in lower capital expenditures for videweding capital equipment. In addition, infrasttwetmarket revenue was positively impacted
in fiscal year 2013 due to the renegotiation ofistemer’s contracts that resulted in an additi&3a4 million of deferred revenue being
released. This release of deferred revenue wapeated in fiscal year 2014.

Revenue increased for the fiscal year ended Jardiar®013 primarily due to increased unit sales the camera market as well as the
release of higher than normal deferred revenuibatiible to the infrastructure market. Camera ntaideenue expanded as a result of adoptio
of our A7 SoC in the wearable sports market andicoimg adoption of our SoCs by customers sellind products into automotive and IP
security camera markets. Infrastructure marketmegencreased as a result of an additional $3.Homibf deferred revenue released in the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2013 as describectabaproved ASP’s in the infrastructure markebalentributed to revenue growth, which
was partially offset by lower license revenue assdechnology licenses near the end of their usiédul
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Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2014 2013
2014 2013 2012 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Cost of revenu $57,76: $40,40¢ $32,45¢ $17,35¢ 43% $ 7,941 24%
Gross profit 99,84" 80,66! 64,79¢ 19,18¢ 24% 15,86: 24%
Gross margir 63% 67% 67% — (4% — 0%

Cost of revenue increased for the fiscal years @ddauary 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, prigmdrik to an increase in the number o
units sold in the camera markets and to increaakedo$ our higher cost A7 SoC. The increase in obstvenue was partially offset by cost
reductions received from suppliers for certain Sd@s to increased purchase volumes.

Gross margin declined for the fiscal year endedidgn31, 2014 primarily due to a reduction in thghler gross margin infrastructure
business as a percentage of total sales in thentyrear. The higher gross margin infrastructuvemee declined as a percentage of total
revenue from 22% for the fiscal year ended Jan8&r2013 to 12% for the fiscal year ended Januay®G14.

Gross margin in the fiscal year ended January @13 2vas consistent with the prior year due to aesbinprovement in camera market

gross margin resulting from a more favorable produig, offset by a decline in the higher gross nraigfrastructure business as a percentage
of total revenue.

Research and Development

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2014 2013
2014 2013 2012 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Research and developme $48,77" $42,82¢ $37,61¢ $5,94¢ 14% $5,211 14%

Research and development expense increased fiisthbyear ended January 31, 2014 primarily duedceases in engineering
headcount, foundry development costs and facilibcation costs. Our research and development erging headcount increased to 358 at
January 31, 2014 compared to 334 at January 3B, 284ulting in an increase in salary related ezpsmf approximately $1.7 million in fiscal
year 2014. The increase of salary related expemaspartially offset by $0.4 million for a c-time IPO bonus accrued for China employees i
fiscal year 2013, which was not repeated in figear 2014. Beginning from the initial public offegi date in the third quarter of fiscal year
2013, we granted restricted stock units and offpaaticipation in an employee stock purchase pisuylting in an increase in stock-based
compensation expense of approximately $1.9 miliarfiscal year 2014. Our third party foundry costtated to the development of our next
generation SoCs increased by approximately $2.ltomiior the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014 maned to the prior fiscal year. The
increased development costs were partially offget $1.0 million one-time payment from a customapwagreed to fund custom software
development. At this time, we have no expectatmmsommitments for future product revenues or dgwelent projects with this customer. In
fiscal year 2014, we entered into a lease agreefoentr new Santa Clara, California headquartacsimplemented the initial phase of a new
enterprise resource planning system, resultingniadaitional facility allocation cost of approxinagt $1.3 million.

Research and development expense increased ffisthkyear ended January 31, 2013 primarily dugntincrease in engineering
headcount and additional bonus and stock-basedeusation expense. Our research and developmemtesmiig headcount increased to 334
at January 31, 2013 compared to 311 at Janua3(3d2,
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resulting in an increase in salary, benefits andisbased compensation expenses of approximateriflion. Due to enhanced overall
performance in fiscal year 2013 compared to figealr 2012, we accrued an additional bonus of $lllbmand a one-time IPO related bonus
to China employees of approximately $0.4 milliamthe third quarter of fiscal year 2013, we gramtetricted stock units and offered
participation in an employee stock purchase plaasnumpletion of our IPO, resulting in an increasstock-based compensation expense of
approximately $0.8 million in fiscal year 2013.

Selling, General and Administrative

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2014 2013
2014 2013 2012 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Selling, general and administrati $23,15: $17,92¢ $15,92¢ $5,227 29% $2,000 13%

Selling, general and administrative expense ineéar the fiscal years ended January 31, 2012848 primarily due to an additional
$4.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively, in gennel costs as a result of increases in heademaingtock-based compensation expense fron
issuance of restricted stock units and participaitican employee stock purchase plan. In additaanincurred approximately $1.2 million and
$0.3 million of additional expenditures on outspiefessional services to support our expandingnessi, enterprise resource planning systerm
the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, anddfeirements of being a public company for thediyears ended January 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Other Income (Loss), Net

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2014 2013
2014 2013 2012 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Other income (loss), ni $(22) $13€ $(90) $(158) (116% $ 22¢ 251%

Other income (loss) for the fiscal years preseiellided net foreign currency transaction gainslasdes. In addition, in fiscal years
2013 and 2012, other income (loss) included theaohpf the revaluation of warrants to purchaseegtsble convertible preference shares.
warrants to purchase redeemable convertible predershares converted into warrants to purchasaamdshares upon our IPO in the third
quarter of fiscal year 2013 and, as a result, the®no future impact to net income from the reatiun of such warrants thereafter.

Provision for Income Taxes

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2014 2013
2014 2013 2012 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Provision for income taxe $2,241 $1,85¢ $1,34¢ $ 387 21% $ 51C 38%
Effective tax rate 8% 9% 11% — (D% — (2)%

Income tax expense increased in fiscal year 20bbempared to fiscal year 2013 primarily due toraréase in profitability and non-
deductible stock-based compensation expensesalpadifset by a favorable change in our geogramhiic of profits. The effective tax rate
decreased for fiscal year 2014 as compared td fygea 2013 primarily due to a favorable changelngeographic mix of profits, partially
offset by non-deductible stock-based compensatiperses.
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Income tax expense increased in fiscal year 20X®mmpared to fiscal year 2012 primarily due torsréase in profitability, partially
offset by a decrease in our effective tax rate. @ffective tax rate decreased for fiscal year 284 8ompared to fiscal year 2012 primarily due
to a favorable change in our geographic mix of iggof

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
The following table summarizes our cash flows fa periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activit $34,35( $10,51¢ $12,68¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,689 (1,019 (1,489
Net cash provided by financing activiti 10,23¢ 32,05( 5,84¢
Net increase in cas $42,90( $41,55( $17,04¢

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20C2ish provided by operating activities increasenharily due to increased net income,
adjusted for increased non-cash stock-based cormpemsind depreciation expenses. The increase ls@sitributable to improved accounts
receivable collection from our major customers enwdeased deferred revenue. The increase in cashdperating activities was partially
offset by increased inventory purchases to supgmortinuing growth of sales and a decrease in addiakilities associated with the timing of
payments to suppliers.

Fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 20C2sh provided by operating activities decreasedgnily due to an increase in accounts
receivable resulting from the transfer of saleedly to a large ODM customer with longer paymeniris that were previously sold through
logistics provider. In addition, inventory incredge support growth of sales while deferred reveserreased resulting from renegotiation of
agreements with an infrastructure customer. Theedse was partially offset by an increase in acthiabilities associated with the timing of
payments to suppliers and employees.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20N&t cash used in investing activities increasecharily due to approximately $0.7 million
of leasehold improvements expenditures for our headquarters located in Santa Clara, Californiasgomioximately $0.6 million of
investment in a new enterprise resource plannistegay to manage our business operations.

Fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 202t cash used in investing activities decreasadaily due to the release of $0.5 million
from restricted cash that was previously pledgetthéoTaiwan government and was released upon ctioplef a research and development
project.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20lN&t cash provided by financing activities decregsatiarily due to $30.4 million of net
cash proceeds from selling of our ordinary sharennection with our IPO in fiscal year 2013. Teerease was partially offset by an
additional $7.8 million cash receipts from emplogéack options exercised, proceeds from partiadpaith our employee stock purchase plan,
and warrants to purchase ordinary shares exeriridestal year 2014.

58



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

Fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 202t cash provided by financing activities increapatharily due to $30.4 million of net
cash proceeds in connection with our IPO and apmrabely $0.6 million of cash receipts from emplowadary withholding related to
participation in an employee stock purchase plapsetl upon completion of our IPO. The increase paasally offset by approximately $4.4
million in net cash proceeds from the issuanceasieS D redeemable convertible preference shakgharrepurchase of ordinary shares in
fiscal year 2012.

Sources of Liquidity

We have generated net income in each quarter begimith the first quarter of fiscal year 2010, amd have generated cash from
operations in each of fiscal years 2014, 2013 &1 2As of January 31, 2014 and 2013, we had caapproximately $143.4 million and
$100.5 million, respectively.

Operating and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We have generated net income in each quarter hiegimith the first quarter of fiscal year 2010, amd have generated cash from
operations in each of fiscal years 2009 to 2014 baleve that our anticipated cash generated frpemaiions and our existing cash balances
will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cashuiegments through at least the next 12 monthdérfuture, we expect our operating and
capital expenditures to increase as we increasgchaat, expand our business activities and impleérmed enhance our information technol
and enterprise resource planning systems and meetquirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We éxquacaccounts receivable and
inventory balances to increase, and could be figrtiEiset by increases in accounts payable, whvihresult in a greater need for working
capital. If our available cash balances are insidffit to satisfy our future liquidity requirementg may in the future seek to sell equity or
convertible debt securities or borrow funds comnadlisc The sale of equity and convertible debt s@®s may result in dilution to our
shareholders and those securities may have rightersto those of our ordinary shares. If we raidditional funds through the issuance of
convertible debt securities, these securities coaldain covenants that would restrict our opereti®Ve may require additional capital beyonc
our currently anticipated amounts. Additional calpihay not be available to us on reasonable tevme, all.

Our short- term and long-term capital requiremevitsdepend on many factors, including the follogin
e our ability to generate cash from operatic
e our ability to control our cost:
» the emergence of competing or complementary teckynes or products

» the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending ancetifig any patent claims and other intellectuapprty rights, or participating in
litigation-related activities; an

* our acquisition of complementary businesses, prizdared technologie
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Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingenies
The following table summarizes our outstanding csttial obligations as of January 31, 2014

Payment Due by Period as of January 31, 201
(in thousands)

Less than More than
1-3 35

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years All Other
Contractual Obligations
Facilities under operating leas® $ 6,227 $ 1,56¢ $3,04¢ $1,61¢ $ — $ —
Technology license or other obligations under ofegdease? 775 362 403 10 — —
Purchase obligatior®) 13,69: 13,69: — — — —
Uncertain tax liabilitie<4) 1,46¢ — — — — 1,46¢
Total $22,16: $15,61¢ $3,44¢ $1,62¢ $ — $ 1,46¢

(1) Facilities under operating leases represeiiitfas with initial lease terms in excess of oreay. They are located in Santa Clara
(California), China, Hong Kong, and Japan. Theddas our Santa Clara headquarters has a fivetgearand terminates in fiscal year
2019. The lease for our China facility has a seyesr-term and terminates in fiscal year 2018. ThagHong facility has a three-year
term and terminates in fiscal year 2017. The léaseur Japan facility has tv-year term and terminates in fiscal year 2(

(2) Technology license obligations under operal@ases represent future cash payments for softwanther technology licenses which are
used in product design or daily operati

(3) Purchase obligations consist primarily of inventptychase obligations with our independent contrzantufacturers

(4) Uncertain tax liabilities represent our liabilitiss uncertain tax positions as of January 31, 20%d are unable to reasonably estimatt
timing of payments in individual years due to umeeties in the timing of the effective settlemehtax positions

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units

Grants of stock-based awards are key componenie afompensation packages we provide to attractetath certain of our employees
to align their interests with the interests of &rig shareholders. We recognize that these stoskebawards dilute existing shareholders and
have sought to limit the number of shares granteitevproviding competitive compensation packagesoAJanuary 31, 2014, a total of
4.8 million outstanding stock options and restdctéock units, or RSUs, will potentially dilute oemrnings per share. This potential dilution
will only result if outstanding options vest an@ @xercised and RSUs vest and are settled. Aswahdn 31, 2014, 100% of our outstanding
options had exercise prices less than the curranitetprice for our ordinary shares.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of January 31, 2014, we did not engage in afipafnce sheet arrangements, including the userwétured finance, special purpose
entities or variable interest entities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1, “Organization and Summary of Signifigseccounting Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncetsieof the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Rartem 15 of this report, for a full descriptiai recent accounting standards, including th
respective dates of adoption and effects on ousadatated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Managenent Estimates

Our audited consolidated financial statements egpared in accordance with U.S. generally acceptedunting principles, or GAAP. In
connection with the preparation of our audited otidated financial statements, we are required a@restimates, judgments and assumption
that affect the reported amounts of assets, ltaslirevenue, expenses and related disclosurean@ngoing basis, we evaluate the estimates
judgments and assumptions including those relaté the collectability of accounts receivabl@) {irite down for excess and obsol
inventories; (i) the estimated useful lives ofi¢plived assets; (iv) impairment of long-lived ass&nd financial instruments; (v) warranty
obligations; (vi) the valuation of stock-based cemgation and equity instruments; (vii) the proligbdf performance objectives achievement;
(viii) the realization of tax assets and estimatetax liabilities, including reserves for uncertaiax positions; and (ix) the recognition and
disclosure of contingent liabilities. We believatihe accounting policies discussed below areatito understanding our historical and future
performance, as these policies relate to the mgnéfisant areas involving management’s judgment astimates. These estimates, judgment:
and assumptions are based on historical experamt®n various other factors that we believe toelasonable under the circumstances. Our
actual results could differ from these estimatedenmifferent assumptions or conditions, and suffarénces could be material.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenue from the sale of our SoCs td<0# ODMs, either directly or through logisticopiders. Revenue from sales
directly to OEMs and ODMs is recognized upon shiptpgovided persuasive evidence of an arrangemesiselegal title to the products and
risk of ownership have transferred, the fee isdive determinable, and collection of the resultiaceivable is reasonably assured. We provide
our logistics providers with the right to returncess levels of inventory and to future price adigsits. Given the inability to reasonably
estimate these price changes and returns, revenlueosats related to shipments to logistics prowdee deferred until we have received
notification from our logistics providers that thiagve sold our products. Information reported bilogistics providers includes product resale
price, quantity and end customer shipment inforomaéis well as remaining inventory on hand. At threetof shipment to a logistics provider,
we record a trade receivable as there is a legaligrceable right to receive payment, reduce irgrfor the value of goods shipped as legal
title has passed to the logistics provider andrdisie related margin as deferred revenue in theal@tated balance sheets. Any price
adjustments are recorded as a change to deferedue at the time the adjustments are agreed upon.

Arrangements with certain OEM customers providepiicing that is dependent upon the end produdtsvithich our SoCs are used.
These arrangements may also entitle us to a sh#ne product margin ultimately realized by the OENe minimum guaranteed amount of
revenue related to the sale of products subjetttewe arrangements is recognized when all otheregits of revenue recognition are met. Any
amounts at the date of shipment invoiced in exoé#fse minimum guaranteed contract price are defleuntil the additional amounts we are
entitled to are fixed or determinable. Additionad@unts earned by us resulting from margin sharirgngements and determination of the enc
products into which the products are ultimatelyomporated are recognized when end customer saleseds reported to us.

We sell a limited amount of software under perpidicanses that include post-contract customer sttppr PCS. We do not have
evidence of fair value for the PCS and, accordinigtgnse revenue is recognized ratably over thiemaged supporting period in accordance
with ASC 985, Software Revenue Recognition. We alster into development agreements with certaitoousrs. Revenue is deferred for any
amounts billed prior to delivery of developmentéess. However, if we retain the intellectual prageyenerated from these development
agreements, receipts and costs related to themegaments are included in research and developmpense. The revenue from those license
and services were not material for the years eddadary 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Inventory Valuation

We record inventories at the lower of cost or markbe cost includes materials and other produatmsts and is computed using
standard cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Ineen reserves are recorded for estimated obsolesa@nunmarketable inventories based on
forecast of future demand and market conditionactéial market conditions are less favorable thajepted, or if future demand for our
products decrease, additional inventory write-domiay be required. Once inventory is written downega accounting cost basis has been
established and, accordingly, any associated resemot reversed until the inventory sold or speh There has been no material inventory
loss to date to be recognized.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure stocliased compensation for equity awards granted tdogiegs and directors based on the estimated fhievan the grar
date, and recognize that compensation as expeimggthe straight-line attribution method for sesvimondition awards or using the graded-
vesting attribution method for awards with perforno@ conditions over the requisite service periduictvis typically the vesting period of ec
award. We estimate the fair value of restrictedlstmnits, or RSUs, based on the fair market vafumuo ordinary shares on the grant date. We
use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to deiee the fair value of stock options. Determinihg fair value of stock options on the grant
date requires the input of various assumptionsudieg stock price of the underlying ordinary shahe exercise price of the stock option,
expected volatility, expected term, risk-free ietgrrate and dividend rate. The expected termldsileded using the simplified method as
prescribed in the guidance provided by the Seegrdind Exchange Commission, as neither relevaiorics experience nor other relevant ¢
are available to estimate future exercise behaVioe. expected volatility is based on the historiadétilities of similar companies whose share
prices are publicly available for a period commeaguwith the expected term. The risk-free interatd is derived from the average U.S.
Treasury constant maturity rates during the respeperiods commensurate with the expected terra.eXpected dividend yield is zero
because we have not historically paid dividendstena no present intention to pay dividends. Wehisterical data to estimate pre-vesting
award forfeitures and record stock-based compeansatily for those awards that are expected to ¥esfeitures are estimated at the time of
grant and revised if necessary in subsequent peif@ttual forfeitures differ from estimates.

We recognize non-employee stock-based compensatjpense based on the estimated fair value of thiyagstrument. The fair value
of the non-employee awards is remeasured at epolntireg period until services required under thragement are completed, which is the
vesting date.

Prior to the initial public offering, we engagediadependent appraiser to assist us in the valuafiour ordinary share price. Our board
of directors directed these regular valuationstaamiiinput into determining the relevant objectind aubjective factors accounted for and
relevant approaches in each valuation. After tt@, e exercise price of stock option awards ismeined based on the closing price of our
ordinary shares traded on The NASDAQ Global Madgethe grant date.

Net Income Per Ordinary Share

We apply the two-class method to calculate andgmtaset income per ordinary share. Under the tasscinethod, net income is
allocated between ordinary shares and other gaaticig securities based on their participatingtdgRarticipating securities are defined as
securities that may participate in undistributerthgrys with ordinary shares, whether that partitgrais conditioned upon the occurrence of a
specified event or not. Basic net income per omgishare is computed by dividing net income alldedb ordinary shares by the weighted-
average number of ordinary shares outstandinghfoperiod. Diluted net income per ordinary shaimputed by dividing net income
allocable to ordinary shares and income allocablgarticipating securities, to the extent theydihative, by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, including the dilut¥fects of participating securities on an if-cortgd basis plus the dilutive effects of ordinary
shares. Our
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potential dilutive ordinary share equivalents cehef incremental ordinary shares issuable uporxieecise of options, upon the issuance of
shares pursuant to the Employee Stock Purchase®I&$PP, upon the release of vested restricted sinits, upon the conversion of our
redeemable convertible preference shares and hgoexercise of warrants.

We perform an assessment as to whether instrurgeariged in stock-based payment transactions atigipating securities. Stock-based
payment awards that have not yet vested meet firataba of a participating security provided thight to receive the dividend is non-
forfeitable and norcontingent. These participating securities shoeldhicluded in the computation of basic net incomeqgrdinary share und
the two-class method. We have concluded that oorvested early-exercised options meet the defimitiba participating security and should
be included in the computation of basic net incgraeordinary share.

Income Taxes

We record income taxes using the asset and liabiléthod, which requires the recognition of deféax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events thatteen recognized in our financial statementsordaurns. In estimating future tax
consequences, generally all expected future ewdhés than enactments or changes in the tax laates are considered. Valuation allowance
are provided when necessary to reduce deferreaistsets to the amount expected to be realized.

We apply authoritative guidance for the accounfarguncertainty in income taxes. The guidance nexguthat tax effects of a position be
recognized only if it is “more likely than not” tee sustained based solely on its technical mesits ghe reporting date. Upon estimating our
tax positions and tax benefits, we consider andLat@ numerous factors, which may require periadicistments and which may not reflect
final tax liabilities. We adjust our financial statents to reflect only those tax positions thataoee likely than not to be sustained under
examination.

As part of the process of preparing audited codatdid financial statements, we are required ton@$gi our taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. We estimate aktwrrent tax exposure together with assessingaeany differences resulting from differi
treatment of items, such as accruals and allowamgesurrently deductible for tax purposes. Theaffergnces result in deferred tax assets,
which are included in our consolidated balance tshée general, deferred tax assets representeftdnrbenefits to be received when certain
expenses previously recognized in the consolidstiements of operations become deductible expemsies applicable income tax laws, or
loss or credit carryforwards are utilized.

In assessing whether deferred tax assets may limerbave consider whether it is more likely that that some portion or all of deferred
tax assets will be realized. The ultimate real@atf deferred tax assets is dependent upon theragéon of future taxable income.

We make estimates and judgments about our futiedba income based on assumptions that are comsigitt our plans and estimates.
Should the actual amounts differ from estimates amount of valuation allowance could be materiatigacted. Any adjustment to the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance would berded in the income statement for the periods iithvthe adjustment is determined to be
required.

Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or JOB\ct

The JOBS Act permits an emerging growth company siscus to take advantage of an extended trangiéioad to comply with new or
revised accounting standards applicable to publiopganies. We have elected to opt out of this prowiand, as a result, we will comply with
new or revised accounting standards as requiret Wiey are adopted. This decision to opt out ofetktended transition period under the
JOBS Act is irrevocable.
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Subject to certain conditions set forth in the JORE as an emerging growth company, we intenelp on certain extended transition
periods for other requirements, including withamtitation, providing an auditor’s attestation rejpon our system of internal controls over
financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 and glgimg with any requirement that may be adoptedreémg mandatory audit firm rotation or
a supplement to the auditor’s report providing tiddal information about the audit and the finahstatements (auditor discussion and
analysis). These exemptions will apply for a pewbdive years following the completion of our IR@hough if the market value of our
ordinary shares that is held by nonaffiliates erse®700 million or more as of the last businessafayur most recently completed second
fiscal quarter before that time, we would ceaseet@n emerging growth company.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We had cash and restricted cash totaling $143pménd $100.5 million at January 31, 2014 andX0é&spectively. Our cash and
restricted cash consist of cash in standard bacduats and certificates of deposit. Cash deposlits \with financial institutions are to preserve
principal and provide liquidity without significdgtincreasing risk. Our cash are held for workimgital purposes. We do not enter into
investments for trading or speculative purposes.

Foreign Currency Risk

To date, all of our product sales and inventorycpases have been denominated in U.S. dollars. &eftre have not had any foreign
currency risk associated with these two activitidge functional currency of all of our entitiegli® U.S. dollar. Our operations outside of the
United States incur operating expenses and hoktsaaad liabilities denominated in foreign curresciprincipally the New Taiwan Dollar and
the Chinese Yuan Renminbi. Our results of operatamd cash flows are, therefore, subject to fluina due to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. However, we believe that the expdsiforeign currency fluctuation from operatingpenses is immaterial at this time as the
related costs do not constitute a significant pordf our total expenses. As we grow our operations exposure to foreign currency risk coulc
become more significant. To date, we have not edterto any foreign currency exchange contractscameently do not expect to enter into
foreign currency exchange contracts for tradingp@rculative purposes.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Financial Statements

The financial statements required by this Itemsateforth as a separate section of this Form 18d€. Item 15 for a listing of financial
statements provided in the section titled “Finah8iatements.”
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Supplementary Data (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth unaudited suppleragntjuarterly financial data for the two year pdrended January 31, 2014. In
managemens opinion, the unaudited data has been preparéiteasame basis as the audited information anddeslall adjustments necess
for a fair presentation of the data for the peripdssented.

For the Three Months Ended

Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31, Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31,
2013 2013 2013 2014 2012 2012 2012 2013
(in thousands, except per share datz
Revenue $33,94. $37,71( $4599( $39,96° $25,92: $27,95( $35,66¢ $31,51¢
Cost of revenu 12,24¢ 14,41¢ 16,68¢ 14,40!¢ 7,51¢ 8,62¢ 12,67¢ 11,58«
Gross profit 21,69 23,29 29,30: 25,56: 18,40¢ 19,33: 22,99( 19,93
Operating expense
Research and developmt 11,31° 10,97 13,47¢ 13,01( 11,47: 9,35¢ 10,80: 11,19¢
Selling, general and administrati 5,151 5,38¢ 5,761 6,85( 4,02¢ 4,184 4,60: 5,114
Total operating expens 16,47 16,35¢ 19,23} 19,86( 15,49¢ 13,54( 15,40¢ 16,31:
Income from operation 5,21¢ 6,932 10,06¢ 5,702 2,907 5,792 7,58¢ 3,62-
Other income (loss), ni (5 (11) (12 6 (2 4 137 (©)]
Income before income tax 5,21¢ 6,921 10,05: 5,70¢ 2,90¢ 5,79¢ 7,722 3,61¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 47: 667 92¢ 17t 303 57C 1,00t (24)
Net income $ 4,741 $6,25¢ $9,12¢ $553: $260: $522 $6,717 $ 3,64
Net income per share attributable to ordin
shareholders
Basic $ 017 $ 02: $ 03z $ 01¢ $ 00¢ $ 02 $ 027 $ 0.1«
Diluted $ 01€ $ 021 $ 03C $ 01¢ $ 007 $ 01¢ $ 028 $ 0.1

Net income per ordinary share for the year is cdegbindependently and may not equal the sum ofjtizeterly net income per ordina
share

Our quarterly revenues and operating results dfieudt to forecast. Therefore, we believe thatipdsto-period comparisons of our
operating results will not necessarily be meanihgfd should not be relied upon as an indicaticiutoire performance. Also, operating res
may fall below our expectations and the expectatmfranalysts or investors in one or more futurartgus. If this were to occur, the market
price of our ordinary shares would likely declifer further information regarding the quarterlyctiuation of our revenues and operating
results, see Item 1A, “Risk Factors—Fluctuationsum operating results on a quarterly and annusistimuld cause the market price of our
ordinary shares to decline”.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, asluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of Janugrg(®¥. The term “disclosure controls and procesliii@s defined in Rules 13a- 15(e) and
15d- 15(e) under the Exchange Act,
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means controls and other procedures of a compatath designed to ensure that information requode disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchafgeis recorded, processed, summarized and reoxi¢hin the time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and guaces include, without limitation, controls andgedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a companthe reports that it files or submits under theli&nge Act is accumulated and
communicated to the company’s management, incluitngrincipal executive and principal financiafioérs, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Managemesoignizes that any controls and procedures, ritenfaow well designed and operated,
can provide only reasonable assurance of achigkigig objectives and management necessarily appdigsgdgment in evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and pores. Based on the evaluation of our disclosunérals and procedures as of January 31,
2014, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finat@fficer concluded that as of such date, ourldsoe controls and procedures were
effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaing as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
of the Exchange Act. Our internal control over finel reporting is designed to provide reasonabseigance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivesiés future periods are subject to the risk thatmds may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

Management has evaluated the effectiveness ohtemial control over financial reporting as of Jaryu31, 2014 using the criteria set
forth in the 1992 version of the Internal Controllategrated Framework issued by the Committee oihSpring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“*COSQ”). Based on our evatutmtimanagement has concluded that we maintainedti®® internal control over
financial reporting as of January 31, 2014 basetherCOSO criteria.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includeatiestation report of our registered public actiogrfirm on our internal control
over financial reporting due to an exemption eshakd by the JOBS Act for “emerging growth compariie

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

Other than the continued implementation of our gamige resource planning (ERP) system, there wehanges in our internal control
over financial reporting identified in managememi&luation pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d) or 15d-16{the Exchange Act during the last
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, orraasonably likely to materially affect, our intatwontrol over financial reporting. On May 1,
2013, we completed the initial phase of the impletagon and integration of a new ERP system, whigtrades our information system
capabilities and improves our business processg§irrancial reporting system, but full implementatiof the system remains ongoing. The
new system is expected to result in enhanced iateontrols.

Inherent Limitations of Disclosure Controls and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Because of their inherent limitations, our disclescontrols and procedures and our internal cowtret financial reporting may not
prevent material errors or fraud. A control systemmatter how well conceived and operated, canigieconly reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control systenmet. The effectiveness of our disclosure odsmtind procedures and our internal control
over financial reporting is subject to risks, irdilg that the controls may become inadequate beaafushanges in conditions or that the de
of compliance with our policies or procedures matedorate.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information responsive to this item is incogied herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerddo2014 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A riet than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofrKl

We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethicdlfof aur directors, officers and employees. Wediave a Code of Ethics for
Finance Team applicable to our Chief Executive @ffi Chief Financial Officer and other Senior FiciahOfficers. These documents are
available on our website at http://investor.amidarebm/governance.cfm. To date, there have beewvancers under our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics and Code of Ethics for FinaneanT. We will post any amendments or waivers, ifwhdn granted, of our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and Code of Ethickifeance Team on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information responsive to this item is incoaded herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerdo2014 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A riet than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofrKl

ITEM12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information responsive to this item is incoaded herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerdo2014 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharnge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A ret than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofvKl

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information responsive to this item is incogied herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerddo2014 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A riet than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofrKl

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information responsive to this item is incogded herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerdo2014 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharnge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A ret than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofvKl
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PART IV

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(& (1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statementshaf Registrant and Report of PricewaterhouseCodpd?s Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, are included herewith:

Financial Statement Description Page
. Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 69
. Consolidated Balance Sheets As of January 31, a0d4£01: 70
. Consolidated Statements of Operations For the Yeaded January 31, 2014, 2013 and 2 71
. Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertiglefnce Shares and Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)
For the Years Ended January 31, 2014, 2013 an2l 72
. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows For the Meaded January 31, 2014, 2013 and 2 73
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems 74

(& (2) Financial Statement Scheduli

Financial statement schedules are omitted bechegeare not applicable or the required informatsoshown in the Financial Statements
or the notes thereto.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Amalbarinc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfenpei@tions, of redeemable convertible
preference shares and shareholders’ equity (dedicit of cash flows present fairly, in all materiespects, the financial position of Ambarella,
Inc. and its subsidiaries at January 31, 2014 andaly 31, 2013, and the results of their operat#ord their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended January 31, 2014 in conitfp with accounting principles generally acceptedhe United States of America. The
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted dits af these statements in accordance with thelatals of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaadards require that we plan and perform the dadibtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢@sé basis, evidence supporting the amc
and disclosures in the financial statements, aggpte accounting principles used and signifiestimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@maWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
April 4, 2014
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Restricted cas
Deferred tax assets, curre
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Deferred tax assets, r-current
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Income taxes payab

Deferred revenue, curre

Total current liabilities
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholder equity:

Preference shares, $0.00045 par value per sha@®®000 shares authorized and no shares issued ar
outstanding at January 31, 2014 and January 3B, 284pectivel)

Ordinary shares, $0.00045 par value per sharep@0MO0 shares authorized at January 31, 2014 and
January 31, 2013, respectively; 28,748,513 shased and outstanding at January 31, 2014;
27,035,074 shares issued and outstanding at JaBluaPp1:

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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January 31. January 31,
2014 2013
$143,39: $100,49:

18,83 20,15:¢
10,45 8,91¢
3 3

1,59¢ 1,22(
2,951 2,36(
177,23t 133,14¢
3,01¢ 2,53¢
1,13¢ 93¢
1,91¢ 1,981
$183,30° $138,60:
8,321 7,051
11,70¢ 14,04
54t 28¢€
4,831 3,451
25,40: 24,83(
1,54« 1,441
26,94¢ 26,27
13 12
110,28! 91,91!
46,06 20,40¢
156,36 112,33:
$183,30° $138,60:
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Year Ended January 31,

2014

Revenue $ 157,60¢
Cost of revenu 57,76:
Gross profit 99,84
Operating expenses

Research and developmt 48,77

Selling, general and administrati 23,15¢
Total operating expens 71,93(
Income from operation 27,91"
Other income (loss), ni (22)
Income before income taxe 27,89t
Provision for income taxe 2,241
Net income $  25,65¢
Net income per share attributable to ordinary dhalders:

Basic $ 0.92

Diluted $ 0.8t
Weighted-average shares used to compute net inpenmghare attributable to

ordinary shareholder
Basic 27,680,77
Diluted 30,172,56

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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2013
$ 121,06t
40,40¢

80,661

42,82¢
17,92¢
60,75¢
19,90¢

13€

20,04:
1,85¢

$ 18,18t

0.64
0.6C

A || H

13,511,64
15,016,98

2012

$ 97,25
32,45¢
64,79¢

37,61¢
15,92¢
53,54«
11,25t

11,16
1,34
$ 9,821

0.3Z
0.3(

A ||

7,961,94.
9,469,82i
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE P REFERENCE SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY (DEFICIT) (in thousands, except share data)

Redeemable Retained
Convertible Outstanding Additional Earnings
Preference Shares Ordinary Shares (Accumulated
Paid-In
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Total
Balance—January 31, 2011 12,268,13 $ 39,27: 7,845,241 $ 3 $ 649 $ (7,600 $ (1,109
Issuance of preference sha 1,047,59 11,627 — — — — —
Exercise of stock options, dollar amounts net afested stock option:
exercised earl — — 454,05: — 824 — 824
Vesting of early exercised stock optic — — — — 394 — 394
Stock-based compensation expense related to stearkis granted to
employees and consultat — — — — 3,61¢ — 3,61¢
Net excess income tax benefit associated with shasled
compensatiol — — — — 12t — 12t
Repurchase of ordinary shai — — (698,429 — (7,227%) — (7,227)
Net income — — — — — 9,821 9,821
Balance—January 31, 2012 13,315,72 50,90( 7,600,86! 3 4,22¢ 2,22] 6,44¢
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferenceestta ordinary
shares (13,315,72) (50,900 13,315,72 6 50,89: — 50,90(
Issuance of shares in connection with initial prblifering, net of
issuance cos — — 5,804,65 3 30,41: — 30,41¢
Conversion of preference share warrants to ordishaye warrant — — — — 11C — 11C
Exercise of stock options, dollar amounts net afested stock option:
exercised earl — — 313,82 — 95C — 95(C
Vesting of early exercised stock optic — — — — 314 — 314
Stock-based compensation expense related to stearkis granted to
employees and consultat — — — — 4,99¢ — 4,99¢
Net excess income tax benefit associated with dbasled
compensatiol — — — — 7 — 7
Net income — — — — — 18,18¢ 18,18¢
Balance—January 31, 2012 — — 27,035,07 12 91,91: 20,40¢ 112,33.
Exercise of stock options, dollar amounts net afested stock option:
exercised earl — — 1,160,28! 1 6,91¢ — 6,92(
Vesting of early exercised stock optic — — — — 142 — 142
Vesting of restricted stock uni — — 174,88¢ — — — —
Employee stock purchase pl — — 341,97: — 1,744 — 1,744
Exercise of warrants to purchase ordinary sh — — 36,29: — 13C — 13C
Stock-based compensation expense related to siakia granted to
employees and consultar — — — — 8,563t — 8,53t
Net excess income tax benefit associated with sbasled
compensatiol — — — — 90z — 90:
Net income — — — — — 25,65 25,65
Balance—January 31, 2014 -  $ — 28,748,51 $ 12 $ 110,28! $ 46,06: $156,36:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation of property and equipm
Loss on disposal of loi-lived asset:
Amortization of other intangible asst
Stocl-based compensatic
Net excess income tax benefits associated wittk-based compensatic
Change in value of warrar
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deferred tax asse
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes payab
Deferred revenu
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Restricted Cas
Investment in a private compa
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed as¢
Purchase of property and equipm
Purchase of intangible ass
Net cash used in investing activit
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of preference st
Repurchase of ordinary shares, at |
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warrams,employee stock purchase plan, net of repuraifageck option:
Payment for initial public offering co
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of undeiting discounts and commissio
Net excess income tax benefits associated wittk-based compensatic
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for income tax

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing acthes:
Increase in accrued liabilities related to -monetary assets purcha:

Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing actities:
Increase in accrued liabilities related to -monetary financing activitie

Conversion of redeemable convertible preferenceestta ordinary share
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferenceesharrants to ordinary share warra

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients
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Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
$ 2565: ¢ 1818t $ 9,82
1,00¢ 737 59¢
13 4 23
— 27C 54C
8,53t 4,99¢ 3,61¢
(909) 7 (125)
— (149 102
1,31¢ (10,669 (656)
(1,539 (2,137 624
(379 (1,139 (511)
(439 (877) (149
63 (449 (119
1,27¢ 45 112
(2,539 6,65¢ 98¢
807 (244) 244
1,38 (4,759 (2,419
34,35( 10,51 12,68t
— 514 (274
= — 102
13 — —
(1,709 (1,529 (682)
— — (630
(1,689 (1,019 (1,489
— — 11,62
— — (7,229
9,36( 1,61( 1,32:
(25) (1,950 —
— 32,39( —
90z — 128
10,23t 32,05( 5,84¢
42,90( 41,55( 17,04
100,49 58,94 41,89¢
$14339.  $100,49:  $58,94
$ 1766 $ 340 $ 854
$ 24 $ 122 $ 59
$  — $ 25 0§ —
$  — $ 5090 $ —
N $  1i1c $ —
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AMBARELLA, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountig Policies
Organization

Ambarella, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporatedhie Cayman Islands on January 15, 2004. The Coyripandeveloper of
semiconductor processing solutions for video thatée high-definition video capture, sharing argptiiy. The Company combines its
processor design capabilities with its expertiseid®o and image processing, algorithms and soéwaprovide a technology platform that is
designed to be easily scalable across multiplei@gfins and enable rapid and efficient productettgsment. The Company’s system-on-a-
chip, or SoC, designs fully integrate high-defimitivideo processing, image processing, audio pstogand system functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qualiifferentiated functionality and low power congption.

The Company sells its solutions to leading origaedign manufacturers, or ODMs, and original eqeipmrmanufacturers, or OEMSs,
globally.

In October 2012, in connection with its initial pigloffering, or IPO, the Company completed theesafl 6,000,000 ordinary shares
inclusive of 1,095,349 shares sold by certain di@ders of the Company. In November 2012, a tdt&08,000 ordinary shares were sold to
the Company'’s IPO underwriters in connection wiitbit exercise of the over-allotment option. Thelpubffering price of the shares sold in
this offering was $6.00 per share. The total neteeds from the offering to the Company were apprately $30.4 million after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and othferioly expenses. Upon the completion of the IPOL&B15,727 outstanding redeemable
convertible preference shares converted into orgighares on a one-to-one basis and all outstavaimgants to purchase redeemable
convertible preference shares converted into wesrtapurchase ordinary shares.

Basis of Consolidation

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on January 31. dhedidated financial statements of the Companyi@rmglibsidiaries have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted actimg principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAPAIl intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managenmteninake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities, the disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the date of the financia
statements and the reported amounts of revenuexaahse during the reported periods. Actual resolitd differ from those estimates.

On an ongoing basis, management evaluates itsaegrand assumptions, including those related thdicollectability of accounts
receivable; (ii) write down for excess and obsolrtentories; (iii) the estimated useful lives ohy-lived assets; (iv) impairment of long-lived
assets and financial instruments; (v) warrantygatiions; (vi) the valuation of stock-based comp8asand equity instruments; (vii) the
probability of performance objectives achieveméviti) the realization of tax assets and estimatiesx liabilities, including reserves for
uncertain tax positions; and (ix) the recognitiowl @isclosure of contingent liabilities. These msties and assumptions are based on historice
experience and on various other factors which the@any believes to be reasonable under the cirammss. The company may engage third
party valuation specialists to assist with estirnaédated to the valuation of financial instrumeantsl assets associated with various contractuz
arrangements. Such estimates often require thetiegleof appropriate valuation methodologies amphificant judgment. Actual results could
differ from these estimates under different assionptor circumstances.
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Concentration of Risk

The Company’s products are manufactured, assenabiédested by third-party contractors located prilgnan Asia. The Company does
not have long-term agreements with these contracfosignificant disruption in the operations okasr more of these contractors would
impact the production of the Company’s productsaoitdould have a material adverse effect on itsnmssi, financial condition and results of
operations.

A substantial portion of the Company’s revenueeigwtd from sales through its logistics provideintch Microelectronics Co., Ltd., or
Wintech, which serves as its non-exclusive salpgesentative in all of Asia other than Japan, andugh one large direct ODM customer,
Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd., or Chicony. Termipatof the relationship with these two customensldaesult in a temporary or permanent
loss of revenue and obligation to repurchase ur@aduct. Furthermore, any credit issues from thesecustomers could impair their abilities
to make timely payment to the Company. See Not®rdadditional information regarding concentratiwith these two customers.

Financial instruments that potentially subject @mmpany to concentrations of credit risk consignarily of cash and accounts
receivable. The Company maintains its cash primarichecking and money market accounts with ragatfinancial institutions. Cash
deposits held with these financial institutions neageed the amount of insurance provided on supbgis. The Company has not experier
any material losses on deposits of its cash. Thmpaay does not hold or issue financial instrumésntsrading purposes.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluationsaath of its customers and adjusts credit limitetagon payment history and the
customer’s credit worthiness. The Company regulaadyitors collections and payments from its cust@ame

Foreign Currency Transactions

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for empany and its subsidiaries. Monetary assetsiabilities denominated in non-U.S.
currencies are re-measured to U.S. dollars usingcuexchange rates in effect at the balance sladet Nonmonetary assets and liabilities are
re-measured to U.S. dollars using historical exgeaates. Monetary and other accounts areeasured to U.S. dollars using average exct
rates in effect during each period. Gains or logses foreign currency re-measurement are includeagther income (loss), net in the
consolidated statements of operations, and, tq Hatee not been material.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value accounting is applied to all final@ssets and liabilities and non-financial asaptkliabilities that are recognized or
disclosed in the financial statements on a recgiiasis. The carrying amounts reflected in the aliseted balance sheets for accounts
receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilitres@her current liabilities, approximate fair valdue to the short-term nature.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmensith maturities of less than three months at ttme tof purchase to be cash
equivalents. Investments with maturities at theetwhacquisition greater than three months buttless one year are classified as short-term
investments and considered as available-for-saderirent operations. There were no cash equivamtshort-term investments as of
January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowances for Doulb#ccounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedada@mount and do not include finance charges Cidmpany performs ongoing credit
evaluation of its customers and generally requicesollateral. The Company
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assesses the need for allowances for doubtful atedor estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make required
payments by considering factors such as histociocliéction experience, credit quality, aging of #weounts receivable balances and current
economic conditions that may affect a customeribtalo pay. There were no write-offs of accountgeivable for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively. There was no allowance for tfallaccounts recorded as of January 31, 2014 848,2espectively.

Inventories

The Company records inventories at the lower of opsnarket. The cost includes materials and gbheduction costs and is computed
using standard cost on a first-in, fikatt basis. Inventory reserves are recorded fomes¢id obsolescence or unmarketable inventoriesl lmax
forecast of future demand and market conditionactéial market conditions are less favorable thajepted, or if future demand for the
Company’s products decrease, additional inventarievdowns may be required. Once inventory is wnttlown, a new accounting cost basis
has been established and, accordingly, any asedai@serve is not reversed until the inventory solsicrapped. There has been no material
inventory loss to date to be recognized.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and clafge using the straight-line method over thenestizd useful life of three years for
computer equipment, computer software, machinepipement and furniture and fixture. Leasehold inyeroents are amortized over the
shorter of the lease term or their estimated udeies. Repairs and maintenance are charged tanegpes incurred.

Internal-Use Software

The Company capitalizes certain software that gaimed and developed solely for internal use. Taatalization costs include fees for
services provided to develop software during thaiegtion development stage, costs incurred toinlstaftware, and certain costs for
employees who are directly associated with and ditextly devote time to the project. The capitdii@a begins when the preliminary project
stage is completed and ceases no later than thegiovhich the project is substantially complatd eeady for its intended use after all
substantial testing is completed. The internalaefevare is amortized over its estimated usefal Repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred. As of January 31, 2014, tmep@oy has capitalized approximately $1.1 millionntérnal-use software and has been
recorded in property and equipment, net on theal@ested balance sheets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company records long-lived assets at cost ealda&es them for impairment whenever events ongbsain circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not bevezable. Events or changes in circumstances thgtindicate that an asset is impaired
include significant decreases in the market vafuenaasset, significant underperformance relativexpected historical or projected future
results of operations, a change in the extent ammiain which an asset is utilized, significantlaess in the estimated fair value of the overall
Company for a sustained period, shifts in technglt@ss of key management or personnel, changé®iCompany’s operating model or
strategy and competitive forces. When the sum®gttpected future undiscounted cash flows expdotbd generated by the related asset
group is less than its carrying amount, an impanthess would be recognized. Should impairmenttetti® impairment loss would be
measured based on the excess of the carrying arobthe asset over the asset'stimated fair value. There has been no occuerehevents ti
date that would trigger an impairment analysissish, no impairment charge has been recognizefiJanoary 31, 2014.
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Cost Method Investment

The Company accounts for its investment in a pelyateld company under the cost method and replugtsivestment in other assets in
the consolidated balance sheets. The Company meitite carrying value of the investment and recardesduction in carrying value when a
decline in value is deemed to be other than tenmpofa date, the Company has not recognized angimmgnt losses related to this
investment.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue from the sale §bi@s to OEMs or ODMs, either directly or througbisbics providers. Revenue from
sales directly to OEMs and ODM s is recognized uglipment provided persuasive evidence of an arraageexists, legal title to the produ
and risk of ownership have transferred, the fdixéd or determinable, and collection of the reisgltreceivable is reasonably assured. The
Company provides its logistics providers with thght to return excess levels of inventory and toife price adjustments. Given the inability
reasonably estimate these price changes and retaweniue and costs related to shipments to lagigtioviders are deferred until the Comp
has received notification from its logistics prosid that they have sold the Company’s productsrimétion reported by the Company’s
logistics providers includes product resale pripgantity and end customer shipment information el & remaining inventory on hand. At:
time of shipment to a logistics provider, the Compeecords a trade receivable as there is a legafigrceable right to receive payment,
reduces inventory for the value of goods shippelégal title has passed to the logistics providet defers the related margin as deferred
revenue in the consolidated balance sheets. Aog pidjustments are recorded as a change to deferreadue at the time the adjustments are
agreed upon.

Arrangements with certain OEM customers providepideing that is dependent upon the end produdtsvitnich the Company’s SoCs
are used. These arrangements may also entitledimp&hy to a share of the product margin ultimatedlized by the OEM. The minimum
guaranteed amount of revenue related to the sadeodiicts subject to these arrangements is recegimiben all other elements of revenue
recognition are met. Any amounts at the date qfrsknt invoiced in excess of the minimum guaranteedract price are deferred until the
additional amounts the Company is entitled to axedfor determinable. Additional amounts earnedhgyCompany resulting from margin
sharing arrangements and determination of the ewatlipts into which the products are ultimately iparated are recognized when end
customer sales volume is reported to the Company.

The Company sells a limited amount of software upeéepetual licenses that include post-contracioensr support, or PCS. The
Company does not have evidence of fair value felRES and, accordingly, license revenue is recedmatably over the estimated supporting
period in accordance with ASC 985, Software ReveReeognition. The Company also enters into devetyragreements with certain
customers. Revenue is deferred for any amountsdiltior to delivery of development services. Hoareyf the Company retains the
intellectual property generated from these devekmragreements, receipts and costs related to sinesggements are included in research ar
development expense. The revenue from those lisearse services were not material for the yearsaeddeuary 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes cost of materials, cast@iated with packaging and assembly, testing hipghsg, cost of personnel, stock-
based compensation, logistics and quality assuraven@anty cost, royalty expense, write-downs ekimtories and allocation of overhead.

Warranty Costs

The Company typically provides warranty on its prod. The Company accrues for the estimated warasts at the time when revel
is recognized. The warranty accruals are regutadpitored by management based upon historical eqper and any specifically identified
failures. While the Company engages in
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extensive product quality assessment, actual ptdedilere rates, material usage or service deliversts could differ from estimates and
revisions to the estimated warranty liability woblel required. The Company’s warranty accruals imatdeen material to date.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed adhand consist primarily of personnel costs, poddlevelopment costs, which
include engineering services, development softaarkhardware tools, license fees, cost of fabdoatif masks for prototype products, other
development materials costs, depreciation of eqeigrased in research and development and allocatitatilities costs.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expense canesispersonnel costs, travel and trade show clestal expenses, other professional
services and occupancy costs. Advertising expemees not been material to date.

Operating Leases

The Company recognizes rent expense on a straighbésis over the term of the lease. The diffexdratween rent expense and rent
payment is recorded as deferred rent and is indlidaccrued liabilities in the consolidated baksbeets.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures stock-based compensatiogdity eawards granted to employees and directorsdas the estimated fair value
on the grant date, and recognizes that compensagienpense using the straight-line attributionho@for service condition awards or using
the graded-vesting attribution method for awardd werformance conditions over the requisite serpieriod, which is typically the vesting
period of each award. The Company estimates thedhie of restricted stock units, or RSUs, basethe fair market value of its ordinary
shares on the grant date. The Company uses thk-Blawles option pricing model to determine the ¥alue of stock options. Determining
the fair value of stock options on the grant datguires the input of various assumptions, includitogk price of the underlying ordinary share
the exercise price of the stock option, expectddtility, expected term, riskree interest rate and dividend rate. The expeteted is calculate
using the simplified method as prescribed in thiel@uce provided by the Securities and Exchange Qesiom, as neither relevant historical
experience nor other relevant data are availabdstimate future exercise behavior. The expectétility is based on the historical volatilities
of similar companies whose share prices are pyldichilable for a period commensurate with the etguterm. The risk-free interest rate is
derived from the average U.S. Treasury constanamitatrates during the respective periods commeateuwith the expected term. The
expected dividend yield is zero because the Compasynot historically paid dividends and has ne@néintention to pay dividends. The
Company uses historical data to estimate pre-vgstivard forfeitures and records stock-based conapiensonly for those awards that are
expected to vest. Forfeitures are estimated airtteeof grant and revised if necessary in subsequetiods if actual forfeitures differ from
estimates.

The Company recognizes non-employee stoéed compensation expense based on the estiraatedlfie of the equity instrument. T
fair value of the noremployee awards is remeasured at each reportingdpantil services required under the arrangementampleted, whic
is the vesting date.

Prior to the initial public offering, or IPO, theo@pany engaged an independent appraiser to assle valuation of its ordinary share
price. The board of directors directed these regudhuations and had input into determining thevaht objective and subjective factors
accounted for and relevant approaches in eachti@u@fter the IPO, the exercise price of stocki@p awards is determined by the closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares traded s NASDAQ Global Market on the grant date.
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Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes using the asddtadnility method, which requires the recognitioihdeferred tax assets and liabili
for the expected future tax consequences of evkatdave been recognized in its financial statésnentax returns. In estimating future tax
consequences, generally all expected future ewthés than enactments or changes in the tax laates are considered. Valuation allowance
are provided when necessary to reduce deferreaistsets to the amount expected to be realized.

The Company applies authoritative guidance foratmounting for uncertainty in income taxes. Thalgoce requires that tax effects of a
position be recognized only if it is “more likelgan not” to be sustained based solely on its teethmerits as of the reporting date. Upon
estimating the Company’s tax positions and tax fisn¢he Company considered and evaluated numdamtsrs, which may require periodic
adjustments and which may not reflect the finalliailities. The Company adjusts its financialtetaents to reflect only those tax positions
that are more likely than not to be sustained uegtamination.

As part of the process of preparing consolidatedrfcial statements, the Company is required tonasti its taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which it operates. The Companyreates actual current tax exposure together wisessng temporary differences resull
from differing treatment of items, such as accraeild allowances not currently deductible for tagopsges. These differences result in deferre
tax assets, which are included in the consolidatddnce sheets. In general, deferred tax assetssezyt future tax benefits to be received whe
certain expenses previously recognized in the ditaded statements of operations become deduaitpenses under applicable income tax
laws, or loss or credit carryforwards are utilized.

In assessing whether deferred tax assets may limetbananagement considers whether it is mordylitean not that some portion or all
of deferred tax assets will be realized. The ulterraalization of deferred tax assets is depengigon the generation of future taxable income.

The Company makes estimates and judgments abdutute taxable income based on assumptions teat@rsistent with its plans and
estimates. Should the actual amounts differ frotimeges, the amount of valuation allowance couldnagerially impacted. Any adjustment to
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance woulceberded in the income statement for the perindghiich the adjustment is determined tc
required.

Net Income Per Ordinary Share

The Company applies the two-class method to cdkaiad present net income per ordinary share. Uthéewo-class method, net
income is allocated between ordinary shares anef @idrticipating securities based on their paréitiig rights. Participating securities are
defined as securities that may participate in unbdisted earnings with ordinary shares, whether plaaticipation is conditioned upon the
occurrence of a specified event or not. Basic me&tine per ordinary share is computed by dividingmame allocable to ordinary shares by
the weighted-average number of ordinary sharegandsg for the period. Diluted net income per nadly share is computed by dividing net
income allocable to ordinary shares and incomealite to participating securities, to the extenythre dilutive, by the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, includirgdtutive effects of participating securities anigiconverted basis plus the dilutive effects
of ordinary shares. The Compasyjotential dilutive ordinary share equivalentssistnof incremental ordinary shares issuable uperekercis
of options, upon the issuance of shares pursughet&mployee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, upeaseeof vested restricted stock units,
upon conversion of its redeemable convertible pegfee shares and upon exercise of warrants.

The Company performs an assessment as to whe#fterrents granted in stock-based payment transacgice participating securities.
Stock-based payment awards that have not yet vastetithe definition of a participating securitpyided the right to receive the dividend is
non-forfeitable and non-contingent. These partidigasecurities should be included in the compatatf basic net income per ordinary share
under the
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two-class method. The Company has concluded thabit-vested early-exercised options meet the itefirof a participating security and
should be included in the computation of basicimedme per ordinary share.

Comprehensive Income

There are no differences between comprehensiveniaas defined by ASC 220, Comprehensive Incomenahthcome as reported in
the Company'’s consolidated statements of operations

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standddard (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standardslatp (“ASU”) No. 2013-02,
Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumute@ther Comprehensive Income (“AOCIThis new guidance requires that the Comg
present either in a single note or parenthetiaatlyhe face of the financial statements, the effésignificant amounts reclassified from each
component of accumulated other comprehensive indmsved on its source and the income statementéims affected by the reclassification.
If a component is not required to be reclassifeddt income in its entirety, the Company wouldéasl cross reference to the related footnote
for additional information. This guidance only ingp&disclosures within the Company’s consolidatedrfcial statements and notes to the
consolidated financial statements and does nottri@sa change to the accounting treatment of AOQ®Is new guidance became effective
prospectively for fiscal years, and interim periedth those years, beginning after December 15220he Company adopted this guidance
starting from the first quarter of fiscal year 204 the adoption did not have an impact on itrfgial position, results of operations or
disclosures.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, imedTaxes (Topic 740), Presentation of an Unreceghiax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossadrax Credit Carryforward Exists. The new guidarerplires the netting of unrecognized
tax benefits ("UTBs”) against a deferred tax asset loss or other carryforward that would appiysettlement of the uncertain tax
positions. Under the new standard, UTBs will baatbagainst all available same-jurisdiction lossthier tax carryforwards that would be
utilized, rather than only against carryforwardattare created by the UTBs. The new guidance és&fk for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those years, beginning after December 13324nd should be applied prospectively to all uogaized tax benefits that exist at the
effective date. Early adoption and retrospectiveliaption are permitted. The Company has not yeptatl this guidance but does not expect
the adoption of this guidance to have a signifi¢gangact on its financial position, results of oparas, statement of cash flows or disclosures.

2. Inventories
Inventories at January 31, 2014 and 2013 consgdtdte following:

As of January 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Work-in-progress $ 5,11¢ $3,012
Finished good 5,33: 5,90¢
Total $10,45: $8,91¢
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3. Property and Equipment, net

Depreciation expense was approximately $1.1 millgh7 million and $0.6 million for the years endkthuary 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
respectively. Property and equipment at Januar@14 and 2013 consisted of the following:

As of January 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Computer equipment and softwe $ 4,521 $ 2,81(
Machinery and equipme 2,11¢ 2,05(
Furniture and fixture 411 397
Leasehold improvemen 1,19¢ 642
Construction in progres — 827
8,244 6,72¢

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (5,22€) (4,190
Total property and equipment, r $ 3,01¢ $ 2,53¢

In March 2013, the Company entered into a leaseesgent of approximately 35,000 square feet fanéts headquarters located in Santa
Clara, California with an initial five-year termuBuant to the lease agreement, the Company atygrgxay certain construction costs. As of
January 31, 2014, the Company had capitalized appately $0.7 million of leasehold improvement asult of the construction, which will
be depreciated over the term of the lease.

In August 2012, the Company began implementatidts@nterprise resources planning (“ERP”) systamof January 31, 2014, the
Company capitalized approximately $1.1 million mfernal-use software related to the ERP implemiemtgiroject and amortized over an
estimated economic useful life of three years uadgraight-line method.

4. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities at January 31, 2014 and 2013s¢gied of the following:

As of January 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Accrued employee compensati $ 8,04¢ $ 8,59¢
Refundable exercised unvested opti 59 21C
Accrued warrant 26¢ 352
Accrued rebate 27C 272
Accrued product development co 1,904 2,87¢
Other accrued liabilitie 1,15¢ 1,73¢

Total accrued liabilitie: $11,70¢ $14,04:
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5. Deferred Revenue, net
Deferred revenue and related cost at January 3%, @0d 2013 consisted of the following:

As of January 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Deferred revenue on product shipme $517¢ $3,821
Deferred revenue from licenses & servi 1,02: 48t
Deferred cost of revenue on product shipm 1,36€) (861
Total deferred revenue, r $ 4,831 $3,451

6. Capital Stock
Redeemable Convertible Preference shares

In January 2012, the Company completed the saz=nés D redeemable convertible preference shar&eries D. A portion of the
proceeds from the sale of Series D shares wastasegurchase ordinary shares under a repurchageapn. A total of 1,047,596 shares of
Series D preference were sold at a price of $1ie2Share, resulting in net proceeds of approxip&EL.6 million. Upon the closing of the

initial public offering, or IPO, all outstandingdeemable convertible preference shares, includiegeries D shares, converted into ordinary
shares on a one-to-one basis.

Redeemable convertible preference shares at JaBlLa@p12 consisted of the following:

Shares Initial

Par Value Liquidation

Series Per Share Authorized Outstanding Preference
(in thousands’

A $0.0004! 5,611,11: 5,611,10 $ 10,10(
B $0.0004! 3,665,55I 3,629,25: 13,00(
C $0.0004! 3,027, 77 3,027,77. 16,35(
D $0.0004! 2,222,22. 1,047,591 11,78¢
14,526,66 13,315,72 $ 51,23t

Ordinary Share Repurchase Program

In January 2012, the Company completed an ordislaaye repurchase program. Pursuant to the progin@nompany offered to
repurchase ordinary shares at a price of $10.35no&mary share, which approximated the then-curfi@nmarket value. A total of 698,424
ordinary shares were tendered by employees, foergrioyees and consultants for repurchase by thep@oeyn The ordinary shares tendered
for repurchase were originally acquired throughedkercise of stock options prior to the sharesdg#endered. A total of approximately
$7.2 million cash was paid to ordinary shareholdershe 698,424 shares repurchased. The costofdhurchase program was reflected in
additional paid-in capital in the consolidated eta¢nts of redeemable convertible preference slaadshareholders’ equity (deficit).

Initial Public Offering

In October 2012, in connection with its initial pigloffering, or IPO, the Company completed theesafl 6,000,000 ordinary shares
inclusive of 1,095,349 shares sold by certain di@ders of the Company. In November 2012, a tdt&08,000 ordinary shares were sold to

the Company’s IPO underwriters in connection witéit exercise of over-allotment option. The publifering price of the shares sold in this
offering was
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$6.00 per share. The total net proceeds from tieginf) to the Company were approximately $30.4ionllafter deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions and other offering exgendpon the completion of the IPO, all 13,315,@a%tanding redeemable convertible
preference shares converted into ordinary shar@same-to-one basis and all outstanding warrangsitchase redeemable convertible
preference shares converted into warrants to paecbalinary shares.

Preference shares

After completion of the IPO, a total of 20,000,Q@¥@ference shares, with a $0.00045 par value @eestvere authorized. There were no
shares issued and outstanding as of January 34,a8212013, respectively.

Warrants

In connection with a financing agreement in 2004, Company issued warrants to purchase 36,292medde convertible preference
shares at an exercise price of $3.582 per share.

Prior to the closing of IPO, the Company utilizee Black-Scholes option pricing model to determheefair value of the warrants,
including the consideration of underlying ordinahare price, a risk-free interest rate, expected sad expected volatilities. Certain inputs
used in the model were unobservable. As a resigltyaluation of warrants is categorized as Leval&@cordance with ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurement. The warrants were revalued up toltising of IPO and any change in fair value had breeorded in other income (loss).

Upon the completion of the IPO, the warrants tachase redeemable convertible preference sharegrtedvo warrants to purchase
ordinary shares. As a result, $110,000 of aggrefgatenarket value was reclassified from liabilgi shareholders’ equity. As of January 31,
2014, the warrants were fully exercised and wertnger outstanding.

Ordinary shares

200,000,000 ordinary shares were authorized atadgrdi, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As of JanBar2014 and 2013, the following
ordinary shares were reserved for future issuance:

As of January 31,

2014 2013
Shares reserved for options and restricted stoitk un 5,699,531  5,818,12
Shares reserved for employee stock purchase 456,41( 460,44!
Shares reserved for warral — 36,29:

7. Employee Benefits and Stock-based Compensation
401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a defined contribution 40p{&h (the “401(k) Plan”) for all of its eligible.8. employees. Under the 401(k)
Plan, eligible employees may contribute up to titerhal Revenue Service annual contribution lindtatThe Company is responsible for
administrative costs of the Plan. The Company lba$iad any matching contributions to date.

Stock Option Plans

2004 Stock PlanThe board of directors adopted, and the sharetokjgroved, the 2004 Stock Plan, as amended, Z6@4“Plan”). The
2004 Plan was last amended on August 28, 20122084 Plan provides for
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the grant of incentive stock options (“1SOs”) witlthe meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Reee@ade of 1986, as amended (the “Cdde”
nonstatutory stock options (“NSOs%tock purchase rights to acquire restricted stockrastricted stock units. Upon the completionhef PO
no additional awards will be granted under the 2Blxh and the 2004 Plan was terminated. HoweMVesptdtanding stock options and other
awards previously granted under the 2004 Planresifiain subject to the terms of the 2004 Plan.

2012 Equity Incentive PlanThe board of directors adopted, and the sharetobljgsroved, the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, (the"E
The EIP became effective on October 8, 2012. Tiregermits the grant of ISOs, within the meanin@eétion 422 of the Code, to employees
of the Company and any of the Company’s subsidiarporations, and the grant of NSOs, stock apptieaisights, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance units, performance shaefgsred stock units and dividend equivalentsnpleyees, directors and consultants of the
Company and any of the Company’s subsidiary cotmorsl employees and consultants.

The exercise price of ISOs granted to a holder @fenthan 10% of the voting power of all classethefCompanys shares shall be no |
than 110% of fair market value on the grant dabe &xercise price of ISOs granted to other empkoged NSOs shall be no less than 100¢
fair market value on the grant date. Options gianteder the Plans have a term of up to 10 yearns §n@nt date. Options granted to new
employees generally vest 25% on the first annivgrdate of the grant and remainder vest ratably thefollowing 36 months. Vesting
schedules for other option grants vary and areestilth approval by the board of directors.

Restricted stock units, or RSUs, granted to newleyegs generally vest as to 1/4th of the sharab®fiirst anniversary date of the grant
and 1/16th of the RSUs vest every 3 months thereafd as to be 100% vested on the fourth annigeasahe vesting commencement date.
Vesting schedules for other service and performaonoeition awards vary and are subject to apprbyahe board of directors; provided that
the performance RSUs shall not vest at all unélglerformance conditions are achieved and are cubjéhe RSU holder continuing to prov
services to the Company through such vesting datesperformance condition RSUs are automaticallfefted in their entirety, without any
cost to or action by the Company, if there has beeachievement of the performance.

The EIP provides for annual increases in the nurabshares available for issuance under the Elfheffirst day of each fiscal year
beginning with the 2014 fiscal year, by an amounat to the least of 3,500,000 shares; or 4.5%uobatstanding ordinary shares as of the
day of our immediately preceding fiscal year; aclstesser amount, if any, as our board of direatwag determine.

2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plarhe board of directors adopted, and the sharerohjgproved, the 2012 Employee Stock Purchas
Plan, or ESPP, which became effective upon the tetiop of IPO. The ESPP permits eligible particifsato purchase ordinary shares at a
discount through contributions of up to 10% of thedigible compensation, subject to any IRS limidas. The ESPP provides for offering and
purchase periods of six months in duration. Thelpase price of ordinary shares is 85% of the lai¢he closing market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the first trading ofagach offering period or on the purchase date.

The ESPP provides for annual increases in the nuoftshares available for issuance under the ESPReofirst day of each fiscal year
beginning with the 2014 fiscal year, equal to #est of 1,500,000 shares; or 1.25% of the outstgrstiares of our ordinary shares on the first
day of such fiscal year; or such other amount ag lmeadetermined by the administrator.

Early Exercise RightsCertain employees have the rights to early exeraisested options, subject to repurchase right$ inethe
Company at their original purchase price upon teation of employment until vested. As of JanuaryZ114 and 2013, a total of 86,340 and
84,377 shares of unvested early exercised opti@ns vepurchased, respectively. There were 13,28%3y151 unvested shares subject to the
Company’s repurchase rights as of January 31, 28842013, respectively.
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Stock-based Compensation
The following table presents the classificatiorstafck-based compensation for the periods indicated:
Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Stoclk-based compensatio

Cost of revenu $ 17¢ $ 92 $ 52
Research and developmt 4,88 2,94z 1,821
Selling, general and administrati 3,47( 1,96t 1,74:%
Total stocl-based compensatic $8,53¢ $4,99¢ $3,61¢

As of January 31, 2014, total unrecognized compansaost related to unvested stock options ancksied restricted stock units was
$5.8 million and $17.0 million, respectively, arsdeixpected to be recognized over a weighted-averaged of 1.90 years and 2.99 years,
respectively. As of January 31, 2013, total unretefd compensation cost related to unvested stptiairns and unvested restricted stock units
was $7.3 million and $2.4 million, respectivelydas expected to be recognized over a weightedageeperiod of 2.26 years and 1.77 years,
respectively.

The following table sets forth the weighted-averagsumptions used to estimate the fair value o$tiek options and employee stock
purchase plan awards for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012

Stock Options

Volatility 65% 66% 65%

Risk-free interest rat 1.55% 0.91% 1.64%

Expected term (year: 6.0€ 6.0t 6.0%

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Employee stock purchase plan awa

Volatility 52% 51% N/A

Risk-free interest rat 0.04% 0.1&% N/A

Expected term (year: 0.5 0.94 N/A

Dividend yield 0% 0% N/A
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The following table summarizes stock option aciggtfor the periods indicated:

Option Outstanding

Weighted-
Average
Total Intrinsic Remaining
Weighted- Weighted- Aggregate
Average Value of Contactual Intrinsic
Average Grant-date options Value
Exercise Exercised Term (in
Shares Price Fair Value (in thousands’ (in years) thousands
Outstanding at January 31, 2011 3,814,78. 4.3t
Grantec 1,207,56. 8.8Z $ 5.2
Exercisec (454,05) 2.91 $ 2,68
Forfeited (192,38) 6.7¢
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 4,375,901 5.63
Grantec 451,07: 8.7¢ $ 5.2
Exercisec (313,82) 3.21 $ 2,08
Forfeited (168,619 7.22
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 4,344,53! 6.07
Grantec 255,52 18.1/ 10.8¢
Exercisec (1,160,28) 5.9¢ $ 18,217
Forfeited (81,069 10.3¢
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 3,358,701 $ 6.92 6.24 $ 84,33¢
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 2,529,32. 5.57 5.62 $66,91¢
Vested and expected to vest at January 31, 3,318,39 6.8€ 6.22 $83,53:

Exercisable shares include options with early égerdghts. The vested and expected-to-vest optiomgalculated based on vesting
schedule of each grant as of the reporting date.

The intrinsic value of options outstanding, exeaable and expected-to-vest options are calculateeddban the difference between the fair
market value of the Company’s ordinary shares enréjporting date and the exercise price. The dagiite of the Company’s ordinary shares
was $32.03 on January 31, 2014, as reported byNR&DAQ Global Market. The intrinsic value of exexed options is calculated based on
the difference between the fair market value ofGloenpany’s ordinary shares on the exercise datehenexercise price.

The following table summarizes restricted stocksuattivities for the periods indicated:

Weighted-

Average
Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Unvested at January 31, 2012 — $ —
Grantec 345,17: 9.9¢

Vested — —
Forfeited (5,959 9.9¢
Unvested at January 31, 20 339,21° 9.9¢
Grantec 1,265,47. 14.7¢
Vested (174,88 11.91
Forfeited (19,719 11.9%
Unvested at January 31, 20 1,410,08 $ 14.0:

As of January 31, 2014, the aggregate intrinsioevalf unvested restricted stock units was $45.Ramil
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Non-employee Stock-based Compensation

The fair value of awards granted to nemployees is determined on the grant date and smeghat the end of each reporting period |
such awards vest. The non-employee stock-basedasmwapon was not material for the years ended da3la 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

8. Net Income Per Ordinary Share
The following table sets forth the computation abiz and diluted net income per ordinary sharéhermperiods indicated:
Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands, except share and per share dat

Numerator:
Net income $ 25,65¢ $ 18,18¢ $ 9,821
Less: amount allocable to preference shareho — (9,51%) (7,209
Less: amount allocable to unvested early exer:
options (31) (61) (51
Net income allocable to ordinary sharehol—
basic $ 2562 $ 86K $  2,56¢
Undistributed earnings reallocated to ordinary
shareholder 2 432 277
Net income allocable to ordinary sharehol—
diluted $ 2562 $ 904 $ 284
Denominator:
Weightec-average ordinary shares outstanc 27,713,99 13,599,27 8,118,83
Less: weighted-average unvested early exercised
options subject to repurcha (33,220 (87,627 (156,890
Weightec-average ordinary sha—basic 27,680,77 13,511,64 7,961,94.
Effect of potentially dilutive securitie:
Employee stock optior 2,034,501 1,443,80! 1,507,871
Restricted stock unit 316,35( 16,93( —
Employee stock purchase pl 138,46: 27,23( —
Warrants to purchase ordinary she 2,47¢ 6,737 —
Ovel-allotment share — 10,63¢ —
Weightec-average ordinary sha—diluted 30,172,56 15,016,98 9,469,82!
Net income per ordinary shai
Basic $ 0.9: $ 0.64 $ 0.32
Diluted $ 0.8t $ 0.6C $ 0.3C

Earnings per share (EPS) of ordinary shares waslestd using the two-class method required fotigpating securities. Prior to the
date of the IPO, all series of redeemable conuerfibeference shares were considered to be paticgpsecurities due to their non-cumulative
dividend rights. In connection with the CompanyPOl in October 2012, all outstanding redeemable exdiie preference shares converted to
ordinary shares. Net income has been allocatdtktordinary shares, redeemable convertible prefershares and unvested early exercised
options based on their respective rights to shrareet income and weighted-average outstanding gltine periods.
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The following weighted-average potentially dilutisecurities were excluded from the computationilofed net income per ordinary
share as their effect would have been antidilutive:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012

Options to purchase ordinary shares 183,85¢ 2,053,52 1,698,50!
Restricted stock unit 1,57¢ 60,50« —
Employee stock purchase pl 10,59 20,35¢ —

Early exercised options subject to repurct 30,66! 87,62’ 156,89(

Redeemable convertible preference sh(if-convertecbasis) — 9,131,822 12,344,99

Warrants to purchase redeemable convertible pratershares (if-

converted basis — — 36,29:
Warrants to purchase ordinary she — 24,88¢ —

226,69: 11,378,72 14,236,68

9. Income Taxes
Income before income taxes consisted of the folhgwor the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
U.S. operation $ 1,99( $ 3,264 $ 2,92¢
Non-U.S. operation 25,90¢ 16,77¢ 8,24
Income before income taxe $27,89¢ $20,04: $11,16¢

Income tax provision consisted of the following tbe periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Current:

U.S. federal ta: $1,73¢ $2,02: $ 962
U.S. state taxe 23 5 26
Nonr-U.S. foreign taxe 1,05¢ 701 502
2,81¢ 2,72¢ 1,49(

Deferred:
U.S. federal ta: (952) (743) (73)
U.S. state taxe 341 (109 (36)
Nonr-U.S. foreign taxe 33 (22) (37)
(579 (874) (14€)
Provision for income taxes $2,241 $1,85¢4 $1,34¢
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Income tax provision differed from the amounts caieg by applying the U.S. federal income tax rdit8486 to pretax income as a res
of the following for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
U.S. federal tax at statutory re $9,48¢ $ 6,81¢ $ 3,79¢
U.S. state taxe 361 (107) (13
Non-U.S. foreign tax differentie (7,679 (4,51 (2,30€)
Stoclk-based compensatic 927 682 537
U.S. R&D credit (85¢) (890 (62%)
Other 1 (132) (47
Provision for income taxes $2,24] $ 1,85¢ $ 1,344

Temporary differences that gave rise to signifiqgaottions of the Company’s deferred tax assetdiabdities at January 31, 2014 and
2013 were as follows:

As of January 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets

Federal and state cred $ 2,581 $ 1,24

Expenses not currently deductil 1,14¢ 1,34t

Foreign deferre: 26 60

Stoclk-based compensatic 1,46( 95(

Gross deferred tax asset 5,22z 3,59¢

Valuation allowance 2,302) 1,247%)

Total deferred tax assets $ 2,92( $2,35¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Property and equipme 187) (199

Net deferred tax asset: $2,73:¢ $ 2,15¢

Tax valuation allowance for the periods indicatetblw were as follows:

Deductions
Additional Additions Charged tc
Balance at Charged tc Balance a
Beginning of Charged tc Expenses
Other or Other End of
Period Expenses Account Accounts Period
(in thousands)
Tax Valuation Allowanct
Year ended January 31, 2C $ 1,24: 1,05¢ — — $ 2,302
Year ended January 31, 2C $ 1,301 — — (58) $ 1,242
Year ended January 31, 2C $ 1,15¢ 28C — (132 $ 1,301

The Company conducts its business in several desrdnd regions and is subject to taxation in thwgsdictions. The Company is

incorporated in the Cayman Islands with foreignssdilaries in the U.S., China, Taiwan, and otheeifgm countries and regions. As such, the

Company'’s worldwide operating income is subjectdoying tax rates and its effective tax rate ishhiglependent upon the geographic

distribution of its earnings or losses and theldays and regulations in each geographical regieams€quently, the Company has experienced

lower effective tax rates as a substantial amotiits @perations are conducted in lower-tax
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jurisdictions. If the Compar's operational structure was to change in such anerahat would increase the amount of operatingrme subjec
to taxation in higher-tax jurisdictions, or if t@®mpany was to commence operations in jurisdictamsessing relatively higher tax rates, its
effective tax rate could fluctuate significantly amuarterly basis and/or be adversely affecteddBnd distributions received from the
Company’s U.S. subsidiary and certain other foreigbsidiaries may be subject to local country wittiing taxes when, and if, distributed.
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recordedinpremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries becenm®agement’s intent is to indefinitely
reinvest any undistributed earnings in those sudoséss. If dividend distributions from those subiaries were to occur, the liability as of
January 31, 2014 would be $3.2 million. Cumulativelistributed earnings of foreign subsidiariesvibich no deferred taxes have been
provided approximated $22.0 million at JanuaryZ114.

As of January 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company himirdd tax assets (net of deferred tax liabilitiesfore valuation allowance, of
$5.0 million and $3.4 million, respectively. Realiion of the deferred tax assets is dependent fuyiore taxable income, if any, the amount
and timing of which are uncertain.

The Company has Federal and California state relsesnd development credit carryforwards of appratety $0.4 million and $3.3
million, respectively, at January 31, 2014. Theefadl credits begin to expire in fiscal year 2038e Talifornia credits can be carried forward
indefinitely.

The Company reports its U.S. state deferred taetassd related valuation allowance, net of thefedgral tax rate of 34%. As of
January 31, 2014, the Company has no valuatiowafioe other than state deferred tax assets athpadhy has sufficient positive evidence
to indicate no other valuation allowance is neeafed result of the Company’s history of profitatyperations in the United States. As of
January 31, 2014, the Company has a full valuailmwance against its U.S. state deferred tax sisket to uncertainty regarding the future
utilization of these deferred tax assets.

Utilization of the research credit carryforwardsyntee subject to an annual limitation due to the enship percentage change limitations
as defined by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code Se88@, as amended, and similar state provisions.aimual limitation may result in the
expiration of the U.S. Federal and state reseamtiitccarryforwards before utilization. The Compaloes not expect any tax credit
carryforwards to expire as a result of a Sectioh [B8itation.

The Company applies the provisions of FASB’s guidaon accounting for uncertainty in income taxesofAJanuary 31, 2014, the
Company had approximately $3.6 million in unrecaeditax benefits, $2.4 million of which would affélte Company’s effective tax rate if
recognized. The following table sets forth a red@ton of the beginning and ending amount of wagnized tax benefits:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Beginning balance: $3,01¢ $2,21: $2,001

Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 53¢ 32t 311

Additions for tax positions of prior yea 62 69C 34

Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (36) (210 (139

Ending balance: $3,58: $3,01¢ $2,21:

The Company classified $1.3 million and $1.2 miliof income tax liabilities as other long term llakes as of January 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, because payment of cash desemt is not anticipated within one year from bladance sheet date.
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The Company recognizes interest and penaltieserbtatuncertain tax positions as a component ainmectax expense. The Company
recorded $37,000, $23,000 and $37,000 of intergetrese and penalties related to uncertain taxiposifor the years ended January 31, 2014
2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company recordedurrent liabilities of $153,000 and $116,000 teddao interest and penalties for
uncertain tax positions at January 31, 2014 an@® 2@kpectively.

The Company is subject to income tax in the U.8effal jurisdiction and various state and foreigisflictions. The U.S. Internal
Revenue Service has concluded its audit of the Goryip Federal income tax return for the fiscal yeded January 31, 2010 with no
adjustments.

The Company believes that an adequate provisiobéas made for any adjustments that may result feonexaminations. However, the
outcome of tax audits cannot be predicted withagety. If any issues addressed in the Company’'sitahts are resolved in a manner not
consistent with management’s expectations, the @oypould be required to adjust its provision foadme tax in the period such resolution
occurs. Although timing of the resolution and/arstire of audits is highly uncertain, the Compangsdaot believe it is reasonably possible
its unrecognized tax benefits would materially aam the next 12 months.

As of January 31, 2014, the Company’s long-ternoine taxes payable, including estimated interesipamdlties, was approximately
$1.5 million. The Company was unable to make aaralsly reliable estimate of the timing of paymentsdividual years due to uncertainties
in the timing of tax audits, if any, or their outaes.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its principal facilities andetibased software licenses under operating agresmhtvarious expiration dates
through April 2018. Net rental expenses for thergemded January 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 werexapmiely $5.0 million, $4.3 million an
$3.9 million, respectively. Future annual minimuzade payments under these operating leases with lease terms in excess of one year are
as follows:

As of

January 31, 201
Fiscal Year (in thousands)
2015 1,92¢
2016 1,81¢
2017 1,632
2018 1,38¢
2019 237
Total future annual minimum lease payme $ 7,00z

Contract Manufacturer Commitments

The Company’s components and products are proanédbuilt by independent contract manufacturersedas sales forecasts. These
forecasts include estimates of future demand, igstictrends, analysis of sales and marketing &@iet8; and adjustment of overall market
conditions. The Company regularly issues purchaders to independent contract manufacturers whiettancelable only upon the agreemen
between the Company and the third-party. As of dgn81, 2014 and 2013, total manufacturing purclcasemitments were approximately
$13.7 million and $15.1 million, respectively.

Indemnification

The Company, from time to time, in the normal cews$business, indemnifies certain vendors with mlibenters into contractual
relationships. The Company has agreed to holdtther party harmless against third-
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party claims in connection with the Company’s fetproducts. The Company also indemnifies certagtorners against third party claims
related to certain intellectual property matterss hot possible to determine the maximum potéati@ount of liability under these
indemnification obligations due to the limited loist of prior indemnification claims and the unidfaets and circumstances that are likely to b
involved in each particular claim. The Company hasmade payments under these obligations andibiliies have been recorded for these
obligations on the consolidated balance sheet$ Zanoiary 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

11. Segment Reporting

The Company operates in one reportable segmemtdeia the development and sales of low-power,-digfinition video products. The
Chief Executive Officer of the Company has beemiified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (t8©DM”) and manages the Compasy’
operations as a whole and for the purpose of etiafufinancial performance and allocating resourties CODM reviews financial informati
presented on a consolidated basis accompanieddiynation by customer and geographic region.

Geographic Revenue
The following table sets forth the Company’s reveby geographic region for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Hong Kong $135,38: $104,45¢ $80,62:
Asia Pacific 2,80¢ 55C 1,35(
United State! 7,12¢ 7,99( 9,82¢
North America 4,59¢ 2,60z 1,32¢
Europe 7,69% 5,46¢ 4,132
Total revenue $157,60¢ $121,06¢ $97,25°

As of January 31, 2014, substantially all of ther(pany’s long-lived tangible assets are locatethénAsia Pacific region.

Major Customers

The customers representing 10% or more of revende@ecounts receivable were Wintech, the Compdayistic provider, and
Chicony, a direct ODM customer, which combined aeted for approximately 85%, 80% and 80% of toéalenue for the years ended
January 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. éasoreceivable with these two customers combiredunted for approximately $15.9
million and $17.6 million as of January 31, 2014 2013, respectively.

12. Related-Party Transactions

The Company considers an entity to be a relatety gfat owns more than 10% of the Company’s tataling stock at the end of each
reporting period or if an officer or employee ofetity also serves on the Company’s board of thrscor if it is a significant shareholder and
has material business transactions with the Company

Starting from fiscal year 2008, the Company enténéul several software license agreements with Geel®esign Systems, Inc.
(“Cadence”). A member of the Company’s Board ofddtors is also the Chief Executive Officer, Prestdnd Director of Cadence. Under
these license agreements, the Company committealytan aggregate amount of $10.2 million payableutph January 2014. The Company
paid $1.7 million, $1.8 million and $1.9 million der these agreements for the years ended Janua2®34, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Operating lease expenses related to these agreemelnided in research and development cost wermaiately $1.7 million, $1.8 million
and $1.6 million for the years ended January 31420013 and 2012, respectively.

In addition to the related party transactions natledve, the Company recognized revenue from saléritech Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd, or Wintech, the Company’s logistics providéfintech, along with an affiliate, owned approximpat¢.6% of the Company’s voting stock
as of January 31, 2013, but has sold such stocksamullonger a significant shareholder of the Camypas of January 31, 2014. The Company
recognized revenue from sales to Wintech of appnately $88.7 million, $76.5 million and $77.6 nulfi for the years ended January 31, 2
2013 and 2012, respectively. As of January 31, 20012013, the Company had receivables from Windéepproximately $7.9 million and
$8.2 million, respectively.

13. Subsequent Event

In February 2014, the Company invested $30.0 milliohigh quality, highly liquid debt securitiesiged by the U.S. Treasury and other
U.S. government corporations and agencies. The @oynpolds all of these marketable securities adadbla-for-sale and marks them to
market. As of March 28, 2014, the marketable s&esrhad a fair value of approximately $30.0 milliwith insignificant unrealized gain and
loss. The Company cannot provide any assurandedhvestment portfolio and any significant impadmhcharge for credit losses could
adversely impact its financial position and results

93



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized, on April 4, 2014.

AMBARELLA, INC.

By: /sl George Laplante

George Laplante, Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below hereby constiunig&ppoints Geor:
Laplante as his true and lawful agent, proxy amata¢y-in-fact, with full power of substitution amesubstitution, for him and in his name,
place and stead, in any and all capacities, tactipn, sign, and file with the Securities and Exagfe Commission any and all amendments to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, together withsadhedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, ségnd file such certificates, instruments,
agreements and other documents as may be necessgpropriate in connection therewith, and (aig¢ any and all actions that may be
necessary or appropriate to be done, as fullylfantents and purposes as he might or could deerson, hereby approving, ratifying and
confirming all that such agent, proxy and attorimeyact or any of his substitutes may lawfully dooause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and onlAipr2014.

Signature Title
/sl Feng-Ming Wang President, Chief Executive Officer, Executive
Fen¢-Ming Wang Chairman and Director (Principal Executive Officer
/s| George Laplante Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and daunting Officer)
George Laplant
/sl Les Kohn Chief Technical Officer and Director
Les Kohn
/sl Chenming C. Hu Director
Chenming C. Ht
/sl Christopher B. Paisley Director

Christopher B. Paisle

/s/ Jeff Richardson Director
Jeff Richardsol

/sl Lip-Bu Tan Director
Lip-Bu Tan
/s/ Andrew W. Verhalen Director

Andrew W. Verhaler
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EXHIBITS INDEX

Description

Amended and Restated Memorandum of AssociatiorS&ednd Amended and Restated Articles of Association
the Registran

Third Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agesgndated January 5, 2012, by and among Ambateta,
and certain of its shareholde

Amended and Restated 2004 Stock f

Form of Stock Option Agreement under Amended ansta®ed 2004 Stock Pl:

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement unflerended and Restated 2004 Stock |
2012 Equity Incentive Pla

Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2012 Equitehtive Plar

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under 2012 Fduitentive Plar

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under 2B#jRity Incentive Plai

2012 Employee Stock Purchase F

Form of Indemnification Agreeme

Offer Letter entered into by Ambarella, Inc. wite@ge Laplante dated March 3, 2011, as ame

Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreeneet¢red into by Ambarella, Inc. with the Chief Extree
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief TechngloOfficer

Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreeneaiéred into by Ambarella, Inc. with executive ofiis other
than the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financidfi€er and Chief Technology Office

Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2at3
Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2@t4
Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2@i5

Sales Representative Agreement dated January 31,i80and between Ambarella, Inc. and WT Microetmuts
Co., Ltd.

Amendment No. 1 to Sales Representative Agreenmaatd-ebruary 1, 2012 by and between Ambarellaamnd
WT Microelectronics Co., Ltc

Amendment No. 2 to Sales Representative Agreensatidctober 1, 2012 by and between Ambarella,and.
WT Microelectronics Co., Ltc

Lease dated September 29, 2006 by and between IR&rldandley Employees’ Investment Co. and Ambarell
Corporation

First Amendment to Lease dated November 12, 200gnbybetween Renault & Handley Employees’ Investmen
Co. and Ambarella Corporatic

Lease Agreement dated March 1, 2013 by and bet&edrarella Corporation and Westcore Jay, LI
List of subsidiaries of the registre

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independgigtered public accounting fir

Power of Attorney (included in signature pac

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Regei Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Stesiri
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend
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31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reqadt Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the SiesifExchange Act

of 1934, as amende

32.1+ Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13&H) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, andl3&. §1350

101.INSt XBRL Instance Documet

101.SCHt XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Docum
101.CALT XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docum
101.DEFt XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume
101.LABTt XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Documg
101.PRE1 XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)

+

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on August 22, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on August 22, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-K filed on March 11, 201:

Incorporated by reference to the For-K filed on March 21, 201¢

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 26, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 26, 20

Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on October 5, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33--174838) filed on June 10, 201

Incorporated by reference to the Forn-K filed on April 4, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

Management contracts or compensation plans orgeraents in which directors or executive officers @igible to participat

In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of RegidatS-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47986| Rule: Managemerd'Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting andtffieation of Disclosure in Exchange Act PeriodReports, the certifications furnisr
in Exhibits 32.1 hereto are deemed to accompamsyFbim 10-K and will not be deemed “filed” for poges of Section 18 of the
Exchange Act. Such certifications will not be dedrt@®be incorporated by reference into any filingsler the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the remistspecifically incorporates it by referen

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation SKE, information in these exhibits is furnished ardrded not filed or part of a
registration statement or prospectus for purposeeaions 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1983Jeemed not filed for purposes of
section 18 of the Exchange Act of 1934, and oth&xws not subject to liability under these secti
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢iee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N83-1384506 and 333-187730) of
Ambarella, Inc. of our report dated April 4, 20Bfating to the financial statements, which appeatkis Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
April 4, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

I, Feng-Ming Wang, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fidmbarella, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsedorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 4, 2014

/sl Fen-Ming Wang

Fenc-Ming Wang

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Requir ed Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

I, George Laplante, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fidmbarella, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsedorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 4, 2014

/sl George Laplante

George Laplant

Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PR INCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Feng-Ming Wang, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.@ctn 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@tteoSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ambarella, Inc. on Form KOfor the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014 fotynplies with the requirements of Section 1
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 tirad information contained in such Annual Repart@rm 10-K fairly presents in all
material respects the financial condition and rtssofl operations of Ambarella, Inc.

Date: April 4, 2014

By: /sl Fen-Ming Wang
Name: Fen¢-Ming Wang
Title:  President and Chief Executive Offic

I, George Laplante, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS€ction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@G&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ambarella, Inc. on Form KOfor the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014 fatiynplies with the requirements of Section 1
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 tirad information contained in such Annual Repart@rm 10-K fairly presents in all
material respects the financial condition and rtssofl operations of Ambarella, Inc.

Date: April 4, 2014

By: /sl George Laplante
Name: George Laplant
Title:  Chief Financial Office




